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July 15-19 
July 21-25 
July 19-23 
July 18-22 
July 17-21 
July 16-20 
July 21-25 
July 20-24 
July 12-16 
July 18-22 



• 

Officers and Board Members 

General Officers 

Moderator 
Assistant M~d~~~t~r· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Ralph Hampton 
Clerk . . . . . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . Carl Cheshier 
Assistant Clerk · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Waldo Young 
Executive Secret~~: I ;~~~~r~·r · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. · Keith Burden 

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Melvm Worthington 

General Board 
1991 

Alabama: John Edwards 
Arizona: Paul Thompson 
Arkansas: David Joslin 
Atlantic Canada: Oral McAfee 
California: Doice McAlister 
Colorado: Bob Thomas 
Florida: Robert Owen 
Georgia: Herbert Waid 
Idaho: Tommie Carlson 
Illinois: Wallace Malone 
Indiana: Archie Ratliff 
Kansas: Warner Collier 
Kentucky: Tim York 
Maryland: Lester Horton 
Mexico: Fred Jones 
M!c~ig~n: Charles Cooper 
MISSISSippi: J.L. Gore 
Missouri: Dale Skiles 

1990 
New Mexico: Earl Jenkins 
North Carolina: Tom Lilly 
Northeast Association: Jim Nason 
Northwest Association: Mike 

Criswell 
Ohio: Delmar Sparks 
Oklahoma: Jack Richey 
South Carolina: Joe Cagle 
T enness~e: Raymond Riggs 
Texas: Bill Jones 
Virginia: Jeff Crabtree 
West Virginia: Carl Vallance 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Chairman: Ralph H t 5614 M Clerk Wald y amp on, eadowcrest, Nashville TN 37209 
. o oung, 1101 E. Cammack, Shawnee, OK 74801 

1990 

Raymond Riggs (Tenn.) 
Jack Richey (Okla.) 
Carl Vallance (W.Va.) 

1991 

Charles Cooper (Mich.) 
J.L. Gore (Miss.) 
Bob Thomas (Colo.) 

Officers 

Ralph Hampton (Tenn.) 
Carl Cheshier (Ark) 
Waldo Young (Okla.) 

BffiLE COLLEGE TRUSTEES 

Chairman: James Earl R Rt 1 B 
President: Charles Thigp:er36o6 W otxE40d6A, Turbeville, .sc 29162 

' es n ve., Nashville, TN 37205 
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• 

1990 

Sam Truett (N.C.) 
James Earl Raper (S.C.) 
J .M. Creech (Miss.) 

1992 

Clarence Burton (Mo.) 
W.B. Hughes (Va.) 
Douglas Little (Ark.) 

1994 

Ken Walker (Ky.) 
Bob Ketchum (Okla.) 
Howard Price (Ga.) 

FOREIGN MISSIONS BOARD 

Chairman: Bill Jones, 2207 Carter Creek Parkway, Bryan, TX 77801 
Director: Eugene Waddell, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1990 

Dan Cronk (Tenn.) 
Archie Mayhew (Calif.) 
Galen Dunbar (Ga.) 

1992 

Joe Grizzle (Okla.) 
Bill Jones (Texas) 
Dean Dobbs (N.C.) 

1994 

William Reagan (Canada) 
Robert Trimble (Md.) 
Norwood Gibson (S.C.) 

HOME MISSIONS BOARD 

Chairman: Rue Dell Smith, 209 East Robinson, Springdale, AR 72764 
Director: Roy Thomas, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1991 

Milburn Wilson (Calif.) 
Glenn Thomas (Ga.) 
Larry Russell (La.) 

1993 

Richard Adams (Tenn.) 
Rue Dell Smith (Ark.) 
Wendell Walley (N.C.) 

1995 

Fred Hanson (Canada) 
Earl Hendrix (S.C.) 
J .D. Norris (Fla.) 

MASTER'S MEN BOARD 

Chairman: Wendell Leckbee, 1 Amber Lane, N. Little Rock, AR 72118 
Director: James Vallance, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1991 

Howard Gwartney (Okla.) 
Tim Jordan (Ga.) 
Thurman Pate, Jr. (Tenn.) 

1993 

Wendell Leckbee (Ark) 
Dwight Fletcher (Ga.) 
Charles Denman (Texas) 

1995 

Johnny Fowlkes (Ark.) 
James Orr (Ky.) 
Waymon Ray (Okla.) 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

Chairman: Ron Barber, 5829 E. 46th Place, Tulsa, OK 74135 
Director: Herman Hersey, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202 

1991 

Ron Barber (Okla.) 
Roger Harwell (Okla.) 
Milton Hollifield (N.C.) 

1993 

Robert Morgan (Tenn.) 
Lincoln Varney (Ky.) 
To Be Filled 
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1995 

Jack Daniel (Ga.) 
Waymon Fields (Ala.) 
Wilburn Beasley (S.C.) 



SUNDAYSCHOOLANDCHURCHT~MNGBOARD 

~~:~~:.~Milton Worthington, 368 Starr Drive, Troy, MI 48083 
. oger Reeds, P.O. Box 17306, Nashville, TN 37217 

1990 1992 1994 
David Sutton (Texas) 
James McAllister (Calif.) 
Larry D. Hughes (Ark.) 

Con~e Cariker.(Okla.) ~ton Worthington (Mich.) 
Edwm Hayes (Ohio) Billy Hanna (Ga.) 
Larry Clyatt (Ill.) Jim Shepherd (Okla.) 

COMMISSION FOR THEOLOGICAL INTEGRITY 

Chairman: Leroy Forlines, 3606 West End Ave., Nashville, TN 37205 

1990 Edwin Wade (Okla) 19 . . 
1992 Leroy Forlines (Te~n.) 19:~ ~~e~nH~lkC~s (~o.) 

1994 LC. Johnson (Tenn.) enn. 

HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

Chairman: David Joslin, P.O. Box 1404, Conway, AR 72032 

1990 Steve Hasty (Ala ) . 
1992 Jack Williams (T · ) 1991 DaVId Joslin (Ark.) 

enn. 1993 Mary Wisehart (Tenn) 
1994 Robert Picirilli (Tenn.) · 

RADIO-TELEVISION COMMISSION 

Chairman: Sandy Goodf ll p 0 B 
1990 La H e ow, . . ox 50117, Nashville TN 37205 

rry ampton (Tenn) 199I S d G ' 
1992 Bill Gardner (Tenn) · an Y oodfellow (Tenn.) 

· 1993 Terry Boyd (Tenn) 
1994 James Vallance (Tenn.) · 

MUSIC COMMISSION 

Chairman: Bill Gardner, 2518 Una-Antioch Pike, Antioch, TN 37013 

1990 Vernon Whaley (Okla) 1 1992 Douglas Little (Ark.) . 1999931 BRil?ldGney Whaley (Tenn.) 
ardner (T enn ) 

1994 Blaine Hughes (N.C.) · 
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Proceedings 

The 53rd annual convention of the National Association of Free Will 
Baptists met July 16-20, 1989 in Curtis Hixon Convention Center, Tampa, 
Florida. The theme of the convention was "Growing Through Scriptural 
Stewardship." Blaine Hughes served as music coordinator with Jerry Car­
raway, organist, and Rebecca Williams, pianist. 

Sunday Morning-Sunday School 

Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing "Isn't He Wonderful," 
"King of Kings" and the chorus of "Because He Lives," to begin Adult 
Sunday School. Leroy Cutler presided over both the Sunday School and 
morning worship. He led in prayer. An ensemble from Free Will Baptist 
Bible College sang "Savior, Like a Shepherd." 

Sam Truett was introduced to teach the Sunday School lesson: The 
subject was "Nahum: God's Wrath on Nineveh." 

Morning Worship 

Blaine Hughes led the congregation in singing "What A Savior," "He's 
Been So Good to me" and "He Touched Me," to begin morning worship. 
Leroy Cutler led in prayer. The Rejoice Ensemble from Free Will Baptist 
Bible College presented special music. The congregation sang "Take My 
Life and Let it Be." An offering for convention expense was received. 

The congregation sang "It Is No Secret." Scott Bullman sang"Arise." 
Pastor Larry Montgomery from Hollywood, Florida, was introduced to 
bring the message. His subject was "Stewardship of Our Testimony." He 
read Hebrews 11:5 as a text and delivered the message. After announce­
ments, Nathan Snow led the closing prayer. 

Monday Evening Worship-July 17, 1989 

Doug Little led the congregation in singing "Heaven Came Down and 
Glory Filled My Soul," after which Melvin Worthington led in prayer and 
brought greetings. 

Clerk Waldo Young called the 53rd annual session of the National 
Association of Free Will Baptists into official session and introduced Mod­
erator Ralph Hampton. 

The moderator announced the appointment of committees to serve 
during the convention. Those appointed to the Resolutions Committee 
were Randy Corn (Georgia), A.B. Brown (North Carolina), Berton Perry 
(Oklahoma), Leroy Forlines (Tennessee) and Thurmon Murphy (Texas). 
The Nominating Committee consisted of John Edwards (Alabama), Gene 
Outland (illinois), Bobby Shepherd (Arkansas), Tom Lilly (North Carolina) 
and Bob Thompson (Oklahoma). Those appointed to the Credentials 

21 



Committee were Deice McAlister (California), Carl Vallance (West Vir­
ginia), Fred Jones (Mexico), J.L Gore (Mississippi) and Robert Owen (Florida). 

The Florida state moderator, Leroy Cutler, brought greetings and wel­
comed those attending the convention to Florida. 

Doug Little led worshipers in a sing-a-long of several choruses and favorite hymns. 

An ensemble from Hillsdale FWB College sang "In the Name of The 
Lord." The Mass Choir under the direction of Doug Little sang"There Is 
No Other Name." The congregation sang "Great Is Thy Faithfulness." 

Melvin Worthington led in prayer and called for ushers to receive the 
convention offering. The Gospeliers Quartet sang "Where Could I Go" 
and "He Bought My Soul," as the offering was received. 

Pastor Waldo Young from Shawnee, Oklahoma, was introduced to 
bring the message. Prior to the message, Bill Gardner sang a medley of 
songs about Jesus. Pastor Young read Genesis 43:23 as his text and 
brought the message on "Stewardship of Our Treasure." The congregation 
sang a verse of "Take My Life and Let It Be" as an invitation. Melvin 
Worthington made announcements and led in the closing prayer. 

Tuesday Evening Worship-July 18, 1989 

Raymond Lee led the congregation in singing "I'll Fly Away" to open the 
Tuesday evening worship service. The Rejoice Ensemble from Free Will 
Baptist Bible College sang "His Word Will Stand." 

Presider Earl Hendrix brought greetings, shared prayer requests and led m prayer. 

Doug Little led the Mass Choir in singing "The Song of the Nations" and 
"Worthy Is The Lamb." Raymond Lee led the congregation in singing 
"Since Jesus Came In" and "0 , I Want to See Him." 

The convention offering was received as the Oklahoma Ministers 
Quartet sang ''Happy Day" and "The Sun's Coming Up," ending with a 
medley of songs about Heaven. 

The Men's Quartet from Southeastern FWB College backed up Randy 
Sawyer as he sang "God Will Provide Himself a Lamb." 

Pastor Delmar Sparks from Westerville, Ohio, was introduced to bring 
the message. He read Genesis 1:1, Revelation 22:21 and brought the 
message on "Stewardship of our Text." 

The congregation sang the chorus of "How Great Thou Art" for the 
benediction and the service was dismissed. 

Wednesday Morning-July 19, 1989 

Moderator Ralph Hampton called the business session to order at 9:00 
a.m. He read Matthew 27:38-54, brought devotional thoughts and led in 
prayer to open the morning session. 
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ad the report of the Credentials Committee. A 
Clerk W~ldo Young re rt and seat the delegates. . 

motion earned to adopt the /~o General Board report. A motion earned to 
The clerk read Item #1 oh e rt of the boards departments, commls-ceive Item #1 and heart e repo s , re . t 

sions and comrrut ees. . W rth'ngton gave the report of the Execu-
Executive Secr.etary ~e~~~ e~eiv~ the report and adopt the bud~e~. 

tive Office. A mot10n ca~e dd ol[ gave the report of the Foreign Missions 
Director R. Eugene a. e · h ort and adopt the budget. 

Department. A motio~ c¥~ed tore~:~~~: r~;~~t of Free Will Baptist Bible 
President C~arles : gpen ~a the report and adopt the budg~t. 

College. A motion c~med Jo rece~:d to adopt the following resolution: 
A motion was rna e an f ~eco~ of Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Whereas, the ~oar~~ h r~st~!s boys' basketball team (Flames) be 
recommended m 1 . t a . ms when playing basketball, and 
allowed to wear re.~atton ud~lfor d by the 1988 national conven-Whereas, this deciSIOn was lsapprove 

tion, and, . . n com osing the Board of Trustees 
Whereas, v:e beh.eve thde ~~et ~ed.scern~ent with the best interest of are men of mtegnty an spm ua I 

our college in m~naldi an~, ther Christian schools and Bible colleges 
Whereas, practtc Y a 0 

. d lation uniforms, 
play basketball. and other sports m r:~:~~~ ~:~~er back to the Bible 
Therefore, be It resolved that ~e h dled at their discretion and that 
College Board of T r':lstees. t? e an 

this body abide by this deciSIOn.d d t amend the resolution by deleting 
A motion was made a~d ~e~on ~·d 0 

by this decision." A motion was 
the phrase, "and that this o Y ~~ :esolution and the amendment until 
made and seconded to postpo~e C ·uee The motion to postpone 
the final report of the Resoluttons omml . 

failed. d 1 f f .1 d 
The motion to amend by e e IOdnda; e . end the resolution by substitut­A motion was made and secon e o am 

ing the following: . d ur previous action on this matter 
Be it resolve~ that w~ resc~ar~ of Trustees full approval, thus 

~~wfo~e o~~r B~b~~e C~~e~;e basketball team to play ball in regular 

regulatio~ uniforms. d b b titution carried. After lengthy discussion 
The motion to amen. y su s . moved and carried. The resolu-on the motion, the previous question was 

f as amended was adopted. 
1 

h 
IO~e Wednesday morning session was recessed for unc . 

Wednesday Afternoon 

h h. d ll Timothy 4·1-8 and led m Assistant Moderator Carl C ~s ter rea . 

prayer to open the afternoon sesslonth. t of the Sunday School and 
Director Roger C. Reeds gave e repor 
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Church Training Department A . . . 
rising vote of thanks and a~pre~~:.Ion ~arr~.d to gt~e Harrold Harrison a 
Publicatio~s. He is retiring. IOn or lS servtce at Randall House 

A motion carried to receive the r f 
Church Training Department and ado teihort ~ the Sunday School and 

Item #5 of the General Board re P e · ~ get. 
considered and adopted. port pertammg to NYC dress codes was 

The resignation of Malcolm Fr fr h Training Board was noted La Y om t e Sunday School and Church 
this ter~ which expires in i99~.ry D. Hughes (Arkansas) was elected to fill 

Chatrman Leroy Forlines gave th logical Integrity. A motion ca . d ~ repor~ of the Commission for Thee-
budget. rne o recetve the report and adopt the 

L.C. Johnson (Tennessee) w 1 t d 
cal Integrity for a five-year term :~;i~~gein t~9~e Commission for Theologi-

The clerk read a partial report of th N . . . nomin~es for standing boards. e ommating Committee, those 

. Chatrman Larry Hampton gave the re ort . 
sion .. James Vallance was elected t fi P of the ~~dio:TV Commis-

Director Roy Thomas gave th~ :e ~~;Y~~r term expmn~ U: 1994. 
~ent. A plaque was presented t R P the Home MISSIOns Depart­
mg a self-supporting church in To I ev T and Mls. Ron Parker for establish­
to Rev. and Mrs. E.R. Mayo fo Yt~'· exa~. pla.que was also presented 
tland, Oregon. r etr service as mterim workers in Per-

A motion carried to receive the r f h ment and adopt the budget. eport 0 t e Home Missions Depart_ 

J.D. Norris (Florida) Fred Hanson (C Carolina) were elected, to six- t anada) and Earl Hendrix (South 
terms expiring in 1995. year erms on the Home Missions Board, 

Director James Vallance gave the r f ment. Plaques of appreciation eport o the Master's Men Depart-
Kennedy for their service on t~:r~oprdse~ted to Raymond Lee and Paul 
Earl Larson in appreciation of hi ar_ . plaque was also presented to 
ter's Men. s servtce as conference director for Mas-

A motion carried to receive th f th and adopt the budget. e report o e Master's Men Department 

Johnny Fowlkes (Arkansas) James 0 (K 
(Oklahoma) were elected to the M t ,rr M entucky) and Wayman Ray 
expiring in 1995. as er s en Board for six-year terms 

Thurman Pate, Jr. (Tennessee) 1 d Pau~ M~ore (Illinois) who resigned ;;:s ~:c~ to ~ll the unexpired term of 
exptres m 1991. _ m e asters Men Board. This term 

~irector Herman Hersey gave the r f . 
motion carried to receive the report an~P~d~ ~ t~e Board of Retirement. A 

Jack Damel (Georgia) Wayman F ld AI e budget. 
(South Carolina) were el~cted to th 

1~ : ( abama) and Wilburn Beasley 
expiring in 1995. e e trement Board for six-year terms 
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Herman Hersey gave the report of the Free Will Baptist Foundation. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. 

Proposed changes in the Foundation's Charter and in the By-Laws of 
the National Association were distributed in printed form, and attention 
called to them. Item #2 of the General Board report also pertained to these 
proposed changes. A motion carried that these be tabled. 

Bill Gardner gave the report of the Music Commission. A motion car-
ried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Blaine Hughes (North 
Carolina) was elected to a five-year term on this commission expiring in 

1994. A motion carried to receive Item #3 of the General Board report and 

A motion carried to receive Item #4 of the General Board report and table it. 

table it. Item #6 of the General Board report was considered. A motion carried 

to adopt Item #6. Item #7 of the General Board report was read. A motion carried to 
adopt Item #7. Items #8, #9 and #10 of the General Board report were also 

adopted. Mike Criswell (Northwest Association), Thurmon Murphy (Texas) and 
Joe Cagle (South Carolina) were elected to the General Board for one­
year terms, replacing men who had resigned from the board. 

Those elected to the General Board for two-year terms were John 
Edwards (Alabama}, Paul Thompson (Arizona}, David Joslin (Arkansas), 
Oral McAfee (Atlantic-Canada}, Deice McAlister (California), Bob Thomas 
(Colorado), Robert Owen (Florida), Herbert Waid (Georgia), Tommie 
Carlson (Idaho}, Wallace Malone (Illinois}, Archie Ratliff (Indiana), Warner 
Collier (Kansas), Tim York (Kentucky), Lester Horton (Maryland), Fred 
Jones (Mexico), Charles Cooper (Michigan), J.L. Gore (Mississippi) and 

Dale Skiles (Missouri). 
Charles Cooper (Michigan), J.L. Gore (Mississippi) and Bob Thomas 

(Colorado) were elected to two-year terms on the Executive Committee of 

the General Board. 
A motion carried to recess the business until Thursday morning. 

Wednesday Evening Worship Service 

Dale Skiles called the Wednesday evening worship service to order at 

7:00p.m. and led in prayer. 
Music Director Vernon Whaley introduced the Hispanic instrumental 

ensemble from Miami, Florida. The ensemble played "Onward Christian 

Soldiers." The Men's Quartet from Southeastern FWB College sang "The Mid-
night Cry," after which Vernon Whaley led the congregation in singing "I 

Have Decided to Follow Jesus." 
Eugene Waddell asked the congregation to stand in respect for the 

memory of missionary Paul Woolsey. Mr. Waddell also led in prayer. He 
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introduced the foreign missionaries who were present. Roy Thomas recog­
nized and introduced the home missionaries who were present. 

Thomas Willey directed the Hispanic choir in singing several songs. 
Vernon Whaley led the congregation in singing "To God Be the Glory" 

and "He Is Lord." 
Dale Skiles called for ushers to receive the annual missionary offering. 

The amount of the offering was $21,501.76. 
Janis Williams sang "Christians Arise." 
Pastor Milburn Wilson of the Sherwood Forest FWB Church, El 

Sobrante, California, was introduced to being the message. He read Mat­
thew 28:19-20, Mark 16:15, and brought the message on the subject "Ste­
wardship of our Territory." 

After announcements, the congregation sang "Blest Be The Tie" as the 
benediction. 

Thursday Morning-July 20, 1989 

Moderator Ralph Hampton called the Thursday morning business ses­
sion to order at 9:00 a.m. Keith Burden, assistant clerk, read Psalm 
103:8-14 and led in prayer. 

J im Lauthern gave the report of the National Youth Conference. A 
motion carried to receive the report. 

WNAC Executive Secretary{f reasurer Mary R. Wisehart gave the 
report of the Woman's National Auxiliary Convention. A motion carried to 
receive the report. 

David Joslin gave the report of the Historical Commission. A motion 
carried to receive the report and adopt the budget. Robert Picirilli (T ennes­
see) was elected to a five-year term on the Historical Commission, term 
expiring in 1994. 

The clerk read the report of the Registration Committee. This report 
was received as information. 

Melvin Worthington gave the report of the Budget Committee. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the budgets. 

Herman Hersey gave a report concerning Stewardship Emphasis 
Month. A motion carried to receive the report. 

Herman Hersey gave the report of the Committee for Benevolence. A 
motion carried to receive the report and adopt the financial statements. 

The report of the Resolutions Committee which was distributed 
Wednesday night in printed form was considered. Resolution #1 was read 
by the clerk. A motion carried to adopt this resolution. 

Resolution #2 was read and adopted. 
Resolution #3 was read and adopted. 
Resolution #4 was read and adopted. 
A motion was made from the floor that the Executive Committee draw 

up a statement of clarification to be used by our national departments 
when acting as plaintiffs in litigation. After discussion, the previous ques· 
tion was moved and carried. The motion was defeated. 
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. d Item #2 of the General Board report from 
A motion cante to ~emove #2 

the table. A moti~n canted to adl~~~~~f of the General Board report from 
A motion car~ted to ~edmove f th" s item back to the General Board for 

the table. A mobon carne to re er I . 

further study. . It #4 of the General Board report ft:om 
A motion carn~d to .remohve em. question was moved and earned. 

the table. After dtscusston, t e prevtous 

Item #4 was adopted. h . N . f g Committee was read, nominating 
The final report of t e omma m 

th se to serve as officers. . l k 
o eith Burden (Oklahoma) was elected asststant c er . 
K y (Oklahoma) was elected clerk. 
~:rfche~h~:r (Arkansas) was elected assistant moderator. 
Ralph Hampton (Tenn~ssee) was elected moderator. 
A motion carried to adJourn. 
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1989 
THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARY'S REPORT 

The Executive Secretary attended 18 state associations during 1988. 
Reports at these meetings indicate continued progress. A spirit of unity, 
unselfishness and understanding prevailed. 

The Target 90 Committee continues to monitor the Target 90 Cam­
paign. Statistics for 1988 indicate 7,910 baptisms; 12,436 members added 
and 6,454 members lost-a 5,982 net gain in membership. The campaign's 
1986-1988 net membership goal was 22,500. Actual gains fell6,227 short of 
the campaign goal with 16,273 net membership increase. The campaign's 
1986-1988 church planting goal was 45. Free Will Baptists planted 103 new 
churches, exceeding the goal. 

We urge local, district and state clerks to complete the report forms. 
Form 501 (blue), 502 (green), 503 (yellow) and 504 (white) are available at 
no cost from the Executive Office or from Free Will Baptist bookstores. 

Executive Church Bonds continues to operate on a limited basis. No 
new bond programs are being accepted. Harold Critcher serves as trustee. 

Contact provides information, inspiration and interesting insights for 
Free Will Baptists. We are pleased to give one page each month to each 
national agency. Complimentary copies are provided for students at Free 
Will Baptist Bible College, Hillsdale FWB College, Southeastern FWB Col· 
lege and California Christian College. Escalating printing costs require an 
increase in subscription rates effective January 1990: Individual $10; Bun­
dle Plan $9; Church Family Plan $8. The 1990 Contact budget reflects this 
mer ease. 

Randall House mailed a complimentary copy of the 1989 Free Will Bap­
tist Yearbook to Free Will Baptist churches in early spring. Additional 
copies may be ordered from Randall House. 

The biennial All-Boards Conference met December 5-6, 1988 in Nash­
ville. Participants included members from the national boards, commis­
sions, General Board and WNAC Executive Committee. 

The biennial Leadership Conference, sponsored by the national depart­
ments will meet December 4-5, 1989, in Nashville, Tennessee. Seven 
speakers will develop the theme: "Accountability." 

The Executive Office and Foreign Missions Department continued to 
study the possibility of organizing an International Association (Fellowship) 
of Free Will Baptists. Tentative plans will be presented to the delegates 
during the 1989 convention in Tampa, Florida. 

Site inspection visits for the July 18-22, 1999, convention included 
Savannah and Atlanta, Georgia. We recommend Atlanta, Georgia as the 
site for our 1999 national convention. 

The doctoral program (Ed.D.) in religious education at Vanderbilt Uni­
versity is going well. The course requirements total 87 semester hours. All 
course work will be completed at the end of the 1989 spring semester. 
Plans are to take the qualifying exams during the 1989-1990 school year 
and complete the doctoral dissertation in the spring of 1992. 

The Management Committee continues to explore the possibility of re­
locating the National Offices. 
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. . w·u B tist Hymn Book as of Decem be: _31, 
Sales of ReJOice: The Free I ~~ this new hymnal has been postttve. 

1988, _totaled _52,35~9~;et~:sh~:~ book will cost: $9.?8 (regular); $21.98 
Effecttve Apnld15$,51 98 ,(l ther). This price increase ts necessary to pay 
(loose leaf) an . ea bo k l 
interest costs on the hymn o oa~~ the National Association of Free 

The Executive Secretar¥ _rep:ese_n the Reli ious Conference Manage­
Will Baptists, Inc. by parttctpatmg m real Pr;ss Association American 
ment Associ~ti~n (Presi~ent),~va~fe~hristian Stewardship Association, 
Family Assoctahon (~dt's~ry . _ar {National Board), Association of the 
Citizens for Respons~b e ; f.v~ston Bodies Christian Ministries Manage­
Statisticians _of_ Amen~a~ eAtg1\?us Agai~st Pornography, and lnterna-
ment Assoctatlon, Rehgtous tance . B d) 

. R d' A ·ation (Advtsory oar · tional Btble ea mg ss~ct 988 t t 1 d $1 268 244.15. Of this amount 
Cooperative Channel gtfts for _1 o a e d $944 949.06 was designated. 

$323,295.09 was Co-op · t( _u~dlestgdn:Yt:~ma;ic supp~rt of national ministries 
We commend your sacn tcta an 
through this program. 

Charting C ontributions 
Through the C ooperative C hannel 

Des1gnated Coop Total 

1979 
$105.071.32 $239,764.30 

$134,692.98 
44~. 

56~ 

1980 
$123,740.30 (t17.7lb) $312,805.58 ("t30.4~.) 

$189,065.28 (+40.3'\,) 
6Cf1o 

4{1\, 

1981 
$191 ,661.52 ( +54.8't) $471,492.07 (+50.7<\>) 

$279,830.55 (+48'\.) 
59'\. 41'\. 

1982 $263,766.24 ( +37 .6uo) $759,379.21 (+61'b) 
$495,612.97 ( + 7']0 .. ) 

350 65o.o " 

1983 $314 ,162.76 (+19.1'\.) $802,039.06 (+5.6~) 
$487,876.30 ( -1.5"'o) 

39'\. 61'\, 

1984 $380,000.33 (+21<\,) $940,490.77 ( + 17~) 
$560,490.44 ( + 15'\,) 

40'\. 6fftu 

1985 $374,804.51 ( -1.367<\,) $938,278.56 ( -.235'\.) 
$563,474.05 (+53'\,) 

40"b 6(fto 
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Charting Contributions 
Through the Cooperative Channel 

1986 
$780,988.61 (+38.6%) 

68% 

1987 
$876,378.54 (+12.21%) 

75% 

1988 
$944,949.06 (+7.82%) 

75% 

$368,470.06 ( ·1.69%) 
32% 

$289,547.31 (·21.42%) 
25% 

$323,295.09 ( + 11.66%) 
25% 

$1,149,458.67 (+22.51%) 

$1,165,925.85 (+1.43%) 

$1,268,244.15 (+8.78%) 

Cooperative Channel Contributions Increase From 1979-1988 

Designated 601.56% COOP 207.69<b 
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1979 
1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 

Charting Contributions 
Through the Cooperative Channel 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

Designated Coop 

$ 25,457.15 $ 12,184.22 
28,986.94 20,148.48 
33,071.94 26,592.81 
47,803.36 39,351.22 
31,836.48 42,196.29 
23,947.63 51,900.33 
25,166.41 47,985.31 
27,947.85 46,141 .70 
51,479.96 23,352.50 
57,775.58 29,944.15 
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Total 

$ 37,641.37 
49,135.42 
59,664.75 
87,154.58 
74,032.77 
75,847.96 
73,151.72 
74,089.55 
74,832.46 
87,719.73 



Charting Contributions 
Through the Cooperative Channel 

MASTER'S MEN 

Designated Coop Total 
1979 $ 5,041.22 $ 4,509.39 1980 7,429.10 4,489.07 

$ 9,550.61 
1981 3,374. 71 11,918.17 

10,428.77 1982 1,111.94 15,431.87 
13,803.48 

1983 511.85 23,850.21 
16,543.81 

1984 2,041.91 29,334.90 
24,362.06 

1985 753.60 27,122.71 
31,376.81 

1986 585.38 26,080.81 
27,876.31 

1987 3,617.10 13,199.87 
26,666.19 

1988 4,859.96 16,924.93 
16,816.97 
21,784.89 

FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION 

Designated Coop Total 
1979 $ .00 $ 
1980 .00 

.00 $ .00 
1981 .00 

.00 .00 
1982 .00 

.00 .00 
1983 1,192.06 

.00 .00 
1984 976.00 

11,007.72 12,199.78 
1985 935.86 

13,539.32 14,515.32 
1986 1,217.65 

12,518.03 13,453.89 
1987 840.23 

12,037.33 13,254.98 
1988 3,878.10 

6,092.41 6,932.64 
7,811.61 11,689.71 

HISTORICAL COMMISSION 

Desig-nated Coop Total 
1979 $ .00 $ 
1980 .00 

.00 $ .00 
1981 .00 

.00 .00 
1982 .00 

.00 .00 

.00 1983 137.71 .00 
1984 102.60 

1,834.61 1,792.32 
1985 208.88 

2,256.42 2,359.02 
1986 278.48 

2,086.06 2,294.94 
1987 688.28 

2,005.83 2,284.31 
1988 676.30 

1,015.06 1,703.34 
1,301.90 1,978.20 
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Charting Contributions 
Through the Cooperative Channel 

COMMISSION FOR THEOLOGICAL INTEGRITY 

Designated Coop Total 

1979 $ 1,431.52 $ 225.59 $ 1,657.11 
1980 1,526.98 705.03 2,232.01 
1981 1,046.66 1,564.43 2,611.09 
1982 734.71 2,314.75 3,049.46 
1983 342.00 1,834.61 2,176.61 
1984 100.31 2,256.42 2,356.73 
1985 236.71 2,086.06 2,322.77 
1986 265.32 2,005.83 2,271.15 
1987 705.84 1,015.06 1,720.90 
1988 719.71 1,301.90 2,021.61 

RADIO & TV COMMISSION 

Designated Coop Total 

1985 $ 382.29 $ 2,088.98 $ 2,471.27 
1986 714.33 2,005.83 2,720.16 
1987 1,585.32 1,015.06 2,600.38 
1988 1 '188.13 . 1,162.12 2,350.25 

We encourage churches to support local, district, state and national 
ministries. The Cooperative Plan, when properly and prayerfully imple­
mented, can fairly and fully support all denominational ministries. Bro­
chures explaining the Cooperative Program are available from the Execu­
tive Office. 

Contributions to national ministries in 1988 totaled $6,428,621.22. We 
commend you for your faithful support. Comparative figures since 1980 
are: 

1980 $3 ,520,691.10 1985 $5,634,007.92 
1981 $4,506,067.27 1986 $5,826,768.00 
1982 $4,233,825.98 1987 $5,797,896.42 
1983 $4,627,217.56 1988 $6,428,621.22 
1984 $5,055,269.03 

We commend the Executive Office Staff: Bookkeeper Melody Hood, 
Editorial Assistant Marilyn Pritchard, Maintenance Chief Jack Trotter, 
Contact Circulation Manager and Receptionist Geneva Trotter, Contact 
Editor and Executive Assistant Jack Williams and part-time workers, Anne 
Worthington and Sue Larson. The staff is experienced and efficient. 

Melvin Worthington, Th.D., CMP 
Executive Secretary 
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF 

THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE '·'ILL " BAPTISTS , INC . 

BALANCE SHEET 

OPERATING FUND 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - General 

- Contact Magazine 
- Special Projects 

Accounts receivable - Contact Magazine 
- Special Projects 
- Executive 

Note receivable - Plan t Fund 
Prepaid insurance 

FIXED ASSETS - (Note l) 
Auto 
Office equipment 

Less - accumulated d epreciation 

OTHER ASSETS 
Airlines deposits 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable - General 

- Contact Magazine 
- Special Projects 

Loans payable _ Contact 
- Special Projects 

Payroll taxes 

FUND BALANCE 

1988 

s 27 , 679.20 
678.02 

5 , 716 . 06 
391.74 
71.16 

11,678.46 
500.00 

2,317.59 
49,032.23 

15,985.25 
62,466.18 
78,451.43 
42,685.06 
35 , 766.37 

$ 84,798 . 60 

$ 623.86 

10,400.00 
472,693.10 

1,702.65 
485,419.61 

( 400,621.01) 

$ 84 , 798.60 

1987 

$ 25,767 . 94 
1 , 107 . 89 

43 , 495.80 
549 . 20 
157.00 
407 . 24 

3,061.40 
74,546.47 

15,985.25 
61,001.46 
76,986.71 
30,696.49 
!.6,290.22 

425.00 

$121 , 261.69 

218.00 
104.89 

75.90 

16 , 985.25 
1,539.36 

18 , 923.40 

102,338.29 

5121,261.69 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES , EXPENSES, AND FUND BALANCE 

GENERAL INCOME 
Cooperative Plan 
Gifts 
Leadership Conference 
Interest 
Target 90 
Other income 

To ta 1 income 

OPERATING FUND 

YEAR E~DED 

DECEMBER 31 

1988 

$193 , 102.83 
24,646.15 

3,415.54 

2,191.20 
3,320 . 56 

226 , 676.28 

1987 

$188 , 013 . 53 
23,900 . 46 
5,777.76 

273.06 

13,381.99 
231 , 346.80 

The accompanying notes a r e an integral part of the financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES , EXPENSES , AND FUND BALANCE (Continued) 

OPERATING FUND 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
Accounting and legal 
Bad debts 
Executive Committee - travel 
Insurance - general 
Insurance and retirement - employees 
Office space rental 
Office supplies and printing 
Payroll taxes 
Postage 
Promotion 
Leadership Conference 
Salaries 
Hou s ing allowances 
Telephone 
Travel 
Target 90 expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation expense 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Xet income (Loss) 

CO~TACT ~AGAZI~E I~COME 

l.ess•cost of sales 
1 ess bad debts 

~et income (Loss) 

SPECIAL PROJ[CTS I~COME 

Less cost of sales 

Net income (Loss) 

Total net gain (Loss) 
Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

BALA:-<CE SHEET 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash - general 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid insurance 

Total curren t assets 

PLANT FUND 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1988 

2,500.00 
407 . 24 

4 , 272 . 02 
4,292.44 

16,499 . 24 
15 , 411 . 60 

9,320 . 42 
3,608 . 47 

996 . 05 
607 . 71 

2 , 718 . 95 
91 , 667.36 
23,000.04 

3,446.81 
12,295.27 

1,837 . 01 
4,094.19 

11 , 988.57 
1,247.53 

210,210.92 

$ 16,465.36 

$ 54 , 686.29 
64,507.63 

61.10 

($ 9,882.44) 

$227 , 788 . 62 
738 , 330 . 84 

($510 , 542.22) 

($503,959.30) 
103,338.29 

($400,621.01) 

1987 

2 , 520.00 
1 , 813 . 07 
5,186.47 
3,529 . 03 

14,202.15 
15,411.60 
7,915.28 
3,472 . 91 
1 , 603 . 35 

635 . 07 
7,000.55 

87 , 818.88 
23,000.04 

5,185.15 
11,193.56 

767.01 
7,941.86 
7 , 171.16 

206,367.14 

$ 24 , 979.66 

s 53,765.90 
60,701.86 

($ 6,935.961 

$104,514 . 24 
( 63,117.71) 

$ 41,396.53 

$ 59,440.23 
43,898.06 

$103,338.29 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1988 

$ 1,367 . 10 
142 . 62 

6,287 . 31 
7,797 . 03 

1987 

$ 18,922.93 
371.22 

6 , 836.94 
26,131.09 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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~ROPERTY, PLANT , AND EQUIPMENT (Note 1) 
Land, building, and accessvry equipment 
Telephone equipment 
Vehicle 
Lawn equipment 
Paving parking lot 

Total capital assets 
Less-accumulated depreciation 

OTHER ASSETS 
Deposit 

Total asse t s 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Property taxes 
Payroll taxes 
Board of Retirement and Insurance (Note 2) 
Note payable - telephone system 
Note payable - Executive 

Total current liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

298,853.35 
37,829.40 
5,091.73 
4,016.86 
8,147.00 

353,938 .34 
189 , 612.21 
164,326.13 

176 .62 

$172 ,299.78 

$ 710.09 
3,620 .97 
1 , 212.76 

27,222 .68 
5,624.41 

500 .0 0 
38,890 .91 

133 , 408.87 

$172,299 .7 8 

298,853.35 
37,825.40 
3,482.50 
4 , 016.86 
8,147.00 

352,329.11 
173,551.47 
178,777.64 

176.62 

$205 , 085.35 

$ 6 , 227.31 
2 ,9 50 .97 
1 ,2 15 . 33 

41,406.96 
12,559.80 

64,360.37 

140,724 . 98 

$205,085 . 35 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPE~SES, AND FU~D BALA~CE 

GENERAL INCOME 
Rent 
Telephone 
Hospitalization 
Postage meter 
Other income 

Total income 

GENERAL EXPENSES 
General supplies 

PLA~T FUND 

and life insurance 

Hospitalization and life insurance 
Insurance - general 
Interest 
Janitor service and supplies 
Property taxes 
Retirement expense 
Mail truck expense 
Mail room expense 
Maintenance - general 
Payroll taxes 
Salaries 
Telephone 
Utilitie s 
Postage 
Depreciation 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

1988 

s 85,265.28 
24 , 994.34 
79,630.35 
35 , 654 .08 
3,258 . 20 

228,802 . 25 

975 . 53 
82,137.65 
8,747.76 
4,705 . 41 
3,555.69 
3,620.97 

867.12 
800.55 

3,044.62 
5,797 . 13 
2,463 . 78 

32 , 854 .7 0 
16,430 .11 
12,365.89 
34 ,994.1 3 
19,543 . 24 

3 ,214.08 
236 , 118.36 

YEAR EXDED 
DECE~BER 31 

1987 

$107,198.64 
29,945.62 
71,326.78 
33.~56.37 
1,849.47 

244,176 . 88 

683 . 67 
72 ,2 48.22 
5,311.20 
6,405.16 
3,099 . 47 
2,950 . 97 

921 . 90 
725.35 

2 , 401.49 
4 ,77 3.17 
2,350 . 29 

33,010.07 
23,389.90 
14,832.06 
34,203.97 
18,638.07 
3,625.75 

229,570.71 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 
statearents. 
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Net income 
Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Loans receivable (~ote 2) 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Fund balance 

BALANCE SHEET 

CONVENTION FUND 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

( 7,316.11) 
140 , 724 .98 

$133,408 .87 

14,606.17 
126,118.81 

$140,724.98 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31 

1988 

$35,469 . 57 
509.24 

$35 ,978.8 1 

$ 
35,978.81 

$35,978.81 

1987 

$24 , 515.39 
509.24 

15,985.25 

$41,009.88 

s 35 . 00 
40,974.88 

$41,009.88 

5 AXD FUND BALA~CE STATEME~T OF REVE~UE, EXPE~SE • 

\.1::\I:.R AI 1:\CO~E 

Banquet tickers 
Offerings 
Chl1rch fees 
State fees 
Booth fees 
Host slate gift 
Interest 
Othe r income 

Total income 

ca·:·a:R AI EXPE~SES 

Printin~ and promotions 
Auditorium rent and signs 
Booth installations 
Conven ti on office 
Insurance 
Honorariums 
Telephone 
Truck expenses 
P osta~e 
Travel expenses 
Banquet tickets 
Othe r expenses 

Total expenses 

~et income (Loss) 
Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balonce, ending 

CO:\VE~TIO:-< FUND YEAR E:\DED 
DECE:iBER 31 

1988 

$ 6,710 . 00 
6,408.15 

20.00 
25 ,200.00 

7,175.00 
6,371.00 
3 ,0 57 .33 
4 , 397 . 07 

59,338 . 55 

12,269.58 
18,743 . 07 

7,840.09 
175.00 
700.00 
613 . 21 
988 .7 1 
537.62 

12 , 914 . 53 
8,372 . 54 
1,180 . 27 

64 , 334 .6 2 

( 4,996.07) 
40,974 . 88 

$35,978 .81 

1987 

$ 6,300.00 
5 , 220 . 85 
1,460 . 00 

25,110 . 00 
6,950.00 

10,496.63 
1,306.69 

14,502.17 
71,346.34 

11,819.8S 
16,945 . 68 

2,869 . 70 
2,463.66 

400.00 
1 , 100.00 

10,180.55 
6,300.00 

14,926 . 98 
67,006.42 

4,339.92 
36,634.96 

$40,974.88 

an inte~ral part of the financial The accompanying notes are 
statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CA SH RECE I PTS AND DI SBUR SEMENTS 

CONT Rt BUT I ONS THROUGH TRE COOPE RA'tiVE CHANNEL 

RECEIPTS 
Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkan sa s 
Cal if ornia 
Canada 
Del aw a re 
Florida 
Ge orgia 
Hawai i 
Idaho 
Illinoi s 
Indiana 
I owa 
Ka nsa s 
Ke ntucky 
Ma ryland 
Mexico 
M-ichigan 
Mis sis s ippi 
~ l.ssou ri 

New Je rs e y 
New Mexi c o 
Nort h Carol i na 
Nor thwes t As sociati on 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Sou th Caro lina 
Tenn ess ee 
Texas 
Virginia 
West Virginia 
Intere s t 
Other 

Tot al receipts 

DISBURSEMENTS 
Executive Off ice 
Foreign Mis s ion s 
FWBBC 
Home Mission s 
Retirement & 

Insuranc e 
Ma st er' s Men 
FWB Foundat io n 
Hi s toric al 

Commission 
Commis s ion f o r 

Theological 
Integrity 

Hillsdale FW B 
College 

Radio and TV 
Commi s sion 

Other 

Total 

DE SIG~AT E D 

$ 24 ,646 . 15 
661,447.78 

51 ,7 75 . 58 
160, 94 4 . 26 

2 , 322.02 
4 ,8 59.96 
3 ,87 8. 10 

67 6. 30 

719.71 

22,220.83 

1 ,188 .13 
4,410 .02 

Disbursements $94 5 ,088.84 

$ 

YEAR ENDED 
DE CEMBE R 31 

1988 1987 

7 ,11 0 . 80 $ 4,181.06 
1,638 . 17 50 . 00 

54,876.72 50,874 . 30 
18 ,219.32 10,409. 3 2 

545.98 -0-
3 ,1 48.36 3 , 465 . 50 

24,664.89 21,467. 39 
10 1 , 150. 25 94,454.81 

-0- -0-
760.97 6 82 . 88 

96 , 761.98 100 ,2 47 . 39 
7 ,344.72 8, 8 08 . 64 

-0- - 0 -
946 . 25 613 . 23 

1,436.86 2, 6 79.78 
5,8 06 .5 7 3 , 12 4. 74 

-0- -0 -
72 ,067.18 57,188 . 27 

6,965.97 4 , 735 . 24 
84,956.28 97, 484 . 30 

-0- -0 -
2 5 7 . 30 144 . 58 

22,998.68 16, 62 2. 96 
233.45 -0 -

51,656 . 75 34, 39 6. 30 
428,152 . 09 418, 8 90 . 1 3 
124,422 . 01 ~z . :nl$.t3 

27,532. 12 24,065 . 56 
93 ,3 47. 36 93,604 . 74 

4,906.36 4 , 846 . 69 
26,136. 29 30, :.1 12. 86 

-0- 237 . 05 
. 4 7 - 0-

$1, 268, 244 . 15 $1,165,925.85 

COO P 
$193 ,10 2 .83 

29,944.15 
29 , 944 .1 5 

'23 ,4 34.61 

18 ,2 26.89 
16 ,924.93 

7 , 811.61 

1 ,301.90 

1 , 301.90 

1 ,16 2 .12 
• 2 2 

$323 ,15 5.31 
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TOT AL 
1988 
21 7 , 7!.8 . 98 
691,391.93 

8'7 I 719 , 7 3 
18 4,378.87 

20 , 548 . 91 
21 , 784.89 
11,689.71 

1,978.20 

2,021.61 

22 ,220.8 3 

2 , 350 .25 
4,410 . 24 

s 

TO TA L 
1987 
2 11, 913.9 9 
615,802 . 65 

74 , 83 2. 46 
191,177.73 

16,5 6 4.5 7 
16 , 816 .9 7 
6,932 . 64 

1,703 . 3 4 

1,720.90 

23 , 384 .7 9 

2,600 . 38 
2,4 75 .4 3 

$1,268 ,2 44.15 $1,165,9 25 . 85 
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SUMMARY OF St G~lFICANT ACCOU~TING POT.lCI ES 

DE CEMBER 31, 1988 

fo l lowing i s a summary of th e si gn ifi cant accoun tin g policies 

o f t he Ex ec utive Offic e of Th e ~ ation al As so ci ati on of Free Will 

Baptists, Inc. 

Asset s . liabilities, revenu es , and ex penses ar e re c ogniz ed on 

the accrual bas is except where indicated. 

Property , pl ant, an d eq u ipme nt c o nsisting o f ma j o r items , (land, 

building, and acces sory equi pmen t, te leph one equipment an d certain 

other e quipment) are han dl ed through the Plan t Fund . The Plant 

Fund char ~ e s other departments with a proportional p art of the exp en se s . 

~OTE S TO FI ~A~C IAL STAT EMEN TS 

DEC E~BER 31 , 1988 

~ ot e 1 - Prop ert y , p la nt, and equipment as o f De cember 31, 1 988 , was 

hel d as f ollows: 
OPERAT IN G FUN D PLA~T FUND 

Land , bu ild in g, and 
a cce ssory equ i pment 

Telephon e equ ipment 
Vehicl es 
Of f ice equipment 
Lawn equipment 
Paving parking lo t 

tess - accumulated depreciation 

$ 

15,985 . 25 
62,466 . 1 8 

78,451.4 3 
42,685 . 06 

$298,853 . 35 
37,829 . 40 

5 ,091.7 3 

4, 01 6.8 6 
8,147.00 

353,938 . 34 
189 , 61 2.21 

$3 5,766 . 37 $16 4, 32 6.1 3 

~ote 2 - Obligation s of the Executive Offi c e on not e s we re as follow s 

a t De cember 31, 1988: 

Con ta ct 
Special Projects 

$ 10,400.00 
472,693 . 10 

$48 3, 093.10 

Ob ligat ion s of the Plant Fu nd on notes we re a s follows a t 

December 31 , 1988: 

~ot e pay able - Exe cu tiv e 
~ot e payab l e - telephone sy st em 
Bo ard o f Re tir e ment and Insurance 

39 

$ soo.oo 
5 , 624 .4 1 

27 ,2 22.68 

$33 , 347.09 
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ASSETS 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Notes receivable 
Prepaid insurance 
Deposits 
Land 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 198 8 

GENERAL 
OPERATING FUND 

$27,679.20 
1,278.46 

10 , 900.00 
2,317 . 59 

CONTACT 
MAGAZINE 

$ 678.02 
391.74 

Building & s accessory equipment 
Telephone equipment (net) 
Office furniture (net) 

(net) 

Autos (net) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable - trade 
Property taxes payable 
Note payable - Ret . & Ins 

23,511.01 
12,255 . 36 

$77,941.62 

$ 623.86 

s 1 , 069 . 76 $ 

$ s 

SPECIAL 
PROJECTS 

$ 5,716.06 
71.16 

5,787.22 

Note payable T · Dept. 
Note payable = E elephone system 
Payroll taxes xecutive 

472 , 693.10 

Fund balance 1,643.21 
10,400.00 

59 . 44 75,674 . 55 ( 9 , 330.24)( 466,965 . 32) 
$77,941.62 $ 1,069.76 s 5,787.22 

Loans receivable and payable 
1987, have been eliminated of $10,900.00 in 19 

in 88 and $15,985.25 department totals. in 

EZRA JONES 

If-¥<-<~" .9..6k .>e-~"«><c - .. ..::~&-,...{' 
1161 WUIIFAEES80RO AOAD 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37217 

February 16 , 1989 

To the Executive Committee of 
The National Association 
Nashville , Tennessee of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

I have examined the bala 
and Plant Fund f nee sheets of the Operatin 
ation of Fre Wo the ExecutivinecOffice of the National AgssFoucn~-
1987 and e ill Baptists, • 

• related statements of ;~vas of December 31 , 1988 and 
enues, expenses, and fund 
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PLANT FUND CONVENTION 
TOTAL 

EXECUTIVE 
OFF ICE 
TOTALS 

1988 

EXECUTIVE 
OFFICE 
TOTALS 

1987 

$ 34 , 073.28 
1 , 741.36 

10,900.00 
2,317.59 

$ 1,367.10 
142 . 62 

6 , 287.31 
176.62 

62,044 . 59 
89 , 545.78 

7,565.88 

$35 , 469.57 
509.24 

$ 70 , 909.95 
2,393.22 

8,604.90 
176.62 

62 , 044.59 
89,545.78 

7,565.88 
23,511.01 
17,425.24 

$113,809.95 
1,993.90 

9,898.34 
601 . 62 

62 , 044.59 

23.511.01 
12 , 255.36 5,169 . 88 

101,601.29 
15,131.76 
30,837.81 
15,452.41 

$ 84,798 . 60 $172,299.78 $35,978.81 $282 , 177.19 $351,371.67 

$ 

$ 

623.86 $ 710.09 
3,620 . 97 

472,693.10 27 , 222 . 68 
5 , 624 . 41 

10,400 . 00 500.00 
1 , 702.65 1,212 . 76 

400 , 621.01) 133,408 . 87 

84,798.60 $172 , 299.78 

$ 

35,978 . 81 

$35,978.81 

$ 1 , 333.95 
3,620.97 

499 , 915 . 78 
5 , 624.41 

2,915.41 
( 231,233.33) 

$282,177.19 

$ 6,661 . 10 
2,950.97 

41,406.96 
12 , 559.80 

1 , 000.00 
2,754.69 

284,038.15 

$351,371.67 

balances for the years then ended. I have also examined the 
balance sheets of the Convention Fund as of December 31, 1988 
and 1987, and the related statements of revenues , expenses, 
and fund balance for the years then ended. l also examined 
the Cash Receipts and Disbursements of the Cooperative Plan 
of Support for the years then ended. My examinations were 
made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records 
and such other auditing procedures as I considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

In my opinion , the financial statements identified above 
present fairly the financial position of each of the afore­
mentioned organizations at December 31, 1988 and 1987, and 
the results of their operations and the changes in the fund 
balances for the years then ended, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. 

, { 'l "\... t L 
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1990 
Executive Office Budget 

Administrative 
Convention (1989) 
CONTACT 
Total 

1990 
Administrative Budget 

Projected Expenses 

Salaries 
Ho~sing and Utilities 
Soc1al Security 
Retirement 
Employees Insurance 

Off(~ental, Hospital, Life, Travel) 
1ce Rental 

Office Supplies 
Equipment Maintenance 
Telephone 
Postage 
General Insurance 
Travel 
Executive Committee 
Auditing 
P:om?tion/ Printing 
Ble~mal Leadership Conference 
Eq Ulpment Purchase/ Computer 

Total 

Projected Income 

Cooperative Plan 
Designated Gifts 

Total 

42 

$242,000.00 
70,429.26 
82,575.00 

$395,004.26 

$106,754.57 
25,450.00 
15,041.15 
4,420.53 

18,081.60 

17,124.00 
4,000.00 
5,000.00 
4,000.00 
2,128.15 
4,000.00 

15,500.00 
6,500.00 
3,000.00 
4,500.00 
1,500.00 
5,000.00 

$242,000.00 

$216,000.00 
26,000.00 

$242,000.00 

• 

Convention Budget 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 

July 16-20, 1989 
Tampa, Florida 

Projected Expenditures 

Auditorium 

Total 

Printing and Promotion 
Convention Office 
Convention Personnel 

Meals 
Travel 
Lodging 

Convention Officials 
Honorariums 
Decorator Services 
Meal Functions 
Executive Committee 

Meal and Motel Expenses 
Pre-Convention Expenses 

Projected Receipts 

Booth Fees 

Total 

State Association Fees 
Church Delegate Fees 
Host State (Florida) 
Offerings 

1,744.00 
2,149.00 
3,488.00 

1990 
Contact Budget 

Projected Expenses 

Printing 
Postage 
Art 
Writer's Fees and Photos 
Promotion 
Computer 
Mail Services 
Telephone 
Office Supplies 

43 

$ 21,975.00 
15,243.00 
5,199.00 
7,381.00 

6,093.65 
600.00 

6,795.00 
2,027.05 
1,200.00 

3,915.56 
$ 70,429.26 

$ 10,325.00 
24,960.00 

1,000.00 
10,000.00 
24,144.26 

$ 70,429.26 

$ 50,675.00 
13,000.00 

1,000.00 
4,000.00 
1,000.00 
2,500.00 
6,000.00 

400.00 
1,000.00 



Total 

Travel 
Bound Copies 
Other 
Books Dues R · · I 1 egtstrahons 

Expenses · 

Projected Income 

*Subscriptions 

Total Income 

11400.00 
400.00 
200.00 

11000.00 

$ 821575.00 

$ 821575.00 

$ 821575.00 

*Bas(ed on 81000 subscriptions 
4~350 @ $8 50 = $36 97 ( 400 @ $9.00 = I 5.00 Church Family Plan) 

(4
1
200 @ $10 

00 
$$3 ~600.00 Bundle Plan) 

· 42~000.00 Individual Plan) 

E~EC~TlVE CHURCH BO~DS . - -- - - ,_ r_:-;c. 

SERVICE A.'lD TRUST FU~D 

STATEME:-;T Of ASSETS LIAB -- • ILITIES ,\.'W FL"~D BAL,\.\lC E 

RF.SULTlXG FROM CA<;H 

ASSETS 

Cash 

FUND BALANCE 

fu nd balance 

REVENUES COLLECTED 

Interest on savings 
Transfer to Regular f·und 

Cash beginning 

Cash end ing 

44 

- ----
TRA.'<SACTIO:'\S 

DECENBER 31 ----
1988 

i_i_? . 039. 7_6 $18,394 . 56 
~=-~== 

$18,039 . 76 $18,394 . 56 

DECE.'ffiER 31 

s 1 ,00 7. 9 5 
1, 362 . 75 

18, 394 . 56 

$18, 039 . 76 

- ---

$ 951 .65 

17,442 .91 

$18 , 394 . 56 

EXECUTIVE CHURCH BONDS, INC. 

GENERAL FUND 

STATE~ffiNT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES ~~D FUND BALANCE 

ARISING FRON CASH TP.k'ISACTIO~S 
DEC£J1BER 31 

1988 --ASSETS $3,2.1'::1 .98 

cash 2 ,063 . 70 
Office equipmen t 

$5 , 283 .68 
Total assets 

FUND BALA.'>:CE 
$5 , 283 .68 

Fund balance 

1987 ---
$3,963 .97 

2 ,063 . 70 

$6,027.67 

$6 ,027. 67 

GE:\EP.AL FC:-;D 

S1t\TE.'1E~T OF RE\'E:-;CES COLLECTED A.'lD EXPE~SES PAID 

REVENCES COLLECTED 

Interest on savings 
Transferred from Sen·ice ti Tn.1st r:und 

To tal to be accounted fo r 

EXPE:'\SES PAID 

Advert is in~ 
Leadership & 'lational Conference 
Accounting and auditing 
Digest expenses 
Pay r oll taxes 
Postage 
Salaries, commissions & trustee fees 

Telephone 

Total disbursements 

l::.xcess of revenues over (expenses) 

cash beginning 

cash ending 

45 

Q!&EMBER 31 

19813 1987 

s 152.40 
_ 1,362.75 

s 204.52 

_1,515.15 

374 .00 
250 .00 
91 . 80 

125 .00 
2 . 78 

1 '104 . 71 
310 . 85 

2, 259 . 14 

( 743 .99) 

3,963 .97 

$3,219 . 9~ 

204 . 52 

22.50 
217 .41 
250.00 

98.85 
125 .00 

1, 201. 24 
152.20 -

2 ,067 . 20 

( 1 , 862.68) 

5 , 826.65 

$3!963.98 
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FOREIGN MISSIONS BOARD REPORT 
"DECLARE HIS GLORY ... AMONG ALL NATIONS" 

This is our theme for this year taken from 1 Chronicles 16:24. David's 
prophetic command is an Old Testament version of our lord's great 
commission. The text captures the spirit and objective of our foreign mis. 
sions team. We who know and enjoy His glory gladly go out to the people 
who haven't heard of Him. We believe this is the best way for us to glorify God. 

Global Report 
We are excited over seeing the lord glorified around the world. last 

year our missionaries and national preachers saw 685 people turn from 
Hinduism, Animism, Shintoism, Buddhism, Islam, Romanism and supersti­
tion to serve the true and living God. 

On Roll Call Sunday, March 26, our churches overseas reported: Brazil 
- 760; Cuba - 1,400; France- 128; India - 1,716; Ivory Coast - 1,603; 
Japan- 193; Panama - 534; Spain - 103; Uruguay - 200. This year's 
total of 6,637 is an increase of 1,060 over last year. 

Our brothers in these countries are assuming responsibility for evange­
lizing their own people. Nationals played important roles in opening new 
mission works in India, Ivory Coast, Panama, Brazil and Uruguay within the last year. 

The 10 overseas Free Will Baptist Bible institutes have 165 students 
enrolled. The Sower Bible Institute in Montevideo, Uruguay, graduated six 
in its first commencement exercise last December. The Cedars of lebanon 
Seminary in Cuba reopened last September after being closed for 30 years. 

We appointed our first missionary affiliates, Sgt. Dennis Heath and his 
wife, Mary, who are establishing a Free Will Baptist church for U.S. mil­
itary personnel and dependents in Ramstein, West Germany. 

Our medical staff in Ivory Coast treated 11,523 patients in the Doropo 
clinic, admitted 335 patients to the hospital and delivered 199 babies. The 
new X-ray equipment is a great asset to the medical work. This ministry of 
mercy has been instrumental in opening many villages to the gospel. 

Our missionary family of 194, including dependents, gladly serve as 
ambassadors of the lord and you. Although some have battled illnesses 
and others have worked amid civil unrest during the past year, they con­
tinue to serve faithfully and victoriously. (See the statistical summary of 
the status of our Oll€rseas ministries elsewhere in this report.) 

Missionary Stewardship 
1988 was a record-breaking year for Free Will Baptist Foreign Missions. 

For the first time since 1981 we were able to meet our budget. The total 
income of our department was $3,399,114 including $172,347 for the Advance Celebration. 

We are grateful that missionary account deficits were reduced last year 
from $116,994 at the beginning of January to $60,743 in December. 
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Although we shall not be satisfied until all the deficits are eliminated, we 
are thankful for the progress that has been made. 

This good report is possible because of your generosity. We especially 
commend those states which exceeded their suggested goals for 1988: 
Arizona, California, Colorado, Georgia, Iowa, Idaho, Kansas, Maryland, 
Missouri, North Carolina, Tennessee, Texas and Virginia. 

I wish I could list all of the 1,575 churches which sent at least one offer­
ing last year because we appreciate- every gift. Although space will not 
permit a complete listing, I do want to honor those churches which gave 
most generously to foreign missions. The following churches gave between 
$10,000 and $15,000: 

Cross Timbers-TN - $14,547 
Southern Oaks-OK - $14,524 
Horse Branch- SC - $13,321 
Johnston City-IL - $12,971 
Horton Heights- TN - $12,961 
Good Springs-TN - $12,812 
New Home-OK - $12,809 
Trinity, Greenville-NC - $12,386 
First, Savannah-GA - $12,238 
First, Florence- AL - $12,132 
Limestone-TN - $12,094 
Cramerton-NC - $12,000 
First, Henderson-TX - $11,727 
Sherwood Forest-NC - $11,670 

Faith, Windsor- VA - $11,471 
Great Bridge- VA - $11,276 
Pleasant Acres-NC - $11,165 
Mt. Olive-AL - $11,068 
Statesboro-GA - $11,000 
Goshen-NC - $10,457 
Piney Grove-FL - $10,444 
Friendship-MI - $10,434 
Bellview-GA - $10,360 
Bethany-OK - $10,302 
Garner-NC - $10,189 
Liberty, Durham-NC - $10,155 
Sherwood Forest-CA - $10,040 

These churches gave between $15,000 and $20,000: 
Ina- IL - $19,548 First, Raleigh-NC - $15,571 
Bethlehem- TN - $17,755 First, Locust Grove-OK - $15,446 

First Russellville- AR - $15,326 

These churches gave between $20,000 and $30,000: 
Cofer's Chapel- TN - $23,711 Donelson- TN - $22,508 

Bethei-NC - $21,610 

The churches which gave the most to advance the gospel overseas in 
1988 were Central of Royal Oak, Michigan ($50,140) and Fellowship of 
Kingsport , Tennessee ($39,270). We commend the members of these two 
fine congregations for their outstanding example of missionary stewardship. 

Next year, we plan to list the top supporting churches per capita. If you 
are willing to be considered for this list, please watch HEARTBEAT maga­
zine for details or contact our office. 

Since we believe missions is at the heart of God's purpose for us, we 
welcome and appreciate the strong partnership of other organizations in 
our Free Will Baptist family. For more than 50 years WNAC has been 
leading the way. During 1988, they channelled $210,683 into foreign mis­
sions. In addition, they assist our missionaries by supplying many house­
hold necessities through their provision closet. 
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InformatiOn and Promotion 
$154.!177 ~ 

Foreign Missions Income for 1988 
. Total Income $3,399.114 

Churches and OrgamzatiOOS 
$2,508,826 

75.6'111 

Advance 
$172.347 

5.1'il 

UndeSignated Co-op 
$30.146 
o.w. 

WN/IC. 
$210.684 

6.2'tt 

Interest and Other 
$53,638 

1.6'111 

Individuals 
$360.546 

111.6'111 

M1ss1011ary Salanes and 
Cost of LMng 

$803.612 

MISSionary Supporting MimstrieS 
$319,339 

26.1'il 

iavel. Board. and 
Adm1ntstrat10n 

$393,731 
12.8'il 

Med1cal and Insurance 
$110.636 

3.6'111 

53 

12.3'il 

Language School 
$24.758 

II.J'il 

Missionary Travel to 
and from the F1eld 

$124.194 
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Last year, the Student Foreign Missions Fellowship at Free Will Baptist 
Bible College took the St. Nazaire, France church building as a project. 
They raised almost $12,000. 

The Master's Men continue to assist our missionaries through "Missions 
Projects. " They also encourage laymen to participate in construction proj­
ects overseas. 

The National Youth Conference raised more than $15,000 for the Bible 
institute in Uruguay in 1988. 

There are three main pillars which support our foreign missions work 
financially. 

1. For over 30 years we have depended upon the faith-promise gifts of 
our people to underwrite a large portion of our ministry. 

2. We also recognize that many congregations support foreign missions 
through their church budgets. This is very helpful. I challenge every 
church to set a goal of five percent above their cooperative and/or other 
giving to get the gospel overseas. Perhaps you could increase one percent 
each year until you reach the goal. 

3. We are excited over the response of our people to the "World Mis­
sions Offering." 

For the past 25 years we have encouraged you to receive an offering 
and report the amount on "Call-a-thon Sunday." During the last two years 
we have stepped up our efforts to assist our churches in emphasizing for­
eign missions during April, "Foreign Missions Month." We have provided 
filmstrips, videos, literature, coin folders and speakers. We asked that our 
churches climax the month-long emphasis by receiving a generous offering 
on "Foreign Missions Sunday," the last Sunday in April. 

We salute the 54 churches which had sent in their "World Missions 
Offering "at the time this report went to press. You will find the names of 
all who participated posted at our booth. 

Our board is submitting a regular budget of $3,517,152 for 1990. In addi­
tion, we hope to send $150,000 for Advance Celebration projects. You will 
find detailed categories of the budgets, as well as suggested goals for the 
states, at the end of our report. 

Advance Celebration 
The Advance Celebration is coming to a close in several states. This 

nationwide observance of our fiftieth anniversary was historic. Many pas­
tors have testified to the blessing of the celebration in their churches. 
Through April 1989 the gifts have totaled $556,914. Your generosity has 
resulted in the purchase of a Bible institute/church building in downtown 
Montevideo, Uruguay; the construction of a Bible institute in Ivory Coast; 
the equipping of a Bible college in Brazil; the purchase or construction of 
church buildings in France, Panama, Japan, Spain and India; the purchase 
of evangelistic films in Ivory Coast and India; and helping 22 new mission­
aries get to the field . On behalf of the Free Will Baptists in the eight coun­
tries where our missionaries serve, we say a big "THANK YOU." 

Since the observance just began in North Carolina this year, the cele­
bration will conclude in March of 1992. 
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NATIO~~~RD OF FOREIGN MJSSJONS OF THE 
ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

llalance Sheet 

Assets 

Cash and inlerest bearing de~us (note 2) 
Accrued Interest receivable 
Other assets 

Equipment at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation of $118,634 in 1988 
(nute 3) 

Total assets 

Liabilitiea and Fund Balance 

Notes payable to banlc (note 2) 

Acco~ts payable and accrued expenses 
Res~n~red deferred revenue (note 4 ): 

M1ss1onary accounts 

ADVANCE campaign 

Total restricted deferred 
revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund hlllance: 

Unresrricted 

Net inve~led in planr 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund 
balance 

Commilments (note 6) 

ncccmbcr 3 I, 1988 

(wirh comparahve lolllls for 1987) 

Operar ing ­

Unrestncled 

and 
Rest ricled 

Funds 

$ 1,155,020 

4,005 
15,524 

1988 

Plant 
Fund 

Total 

All Funds 

1,155,020 

4,005 

15,524 

52,605 51,605 ----~ 1,174,549 
·= 

s 
60,643 

883,711 

_206,41 4 

1,090,125 

1,150,768 

23,781 

23,781 

s 1,174,549 

52,605 I 227 • , I 54 

36,083 

36,083 

16,522 

16,522 

36,083 
60,643 

883,71 I 
206,414 

1,090,125 

1,186,851 

23,781 
16,522 

40,303 

1987 

Tot. I 
All Fuf!!!! 

844,869 

3,638 
11,970 

56,949 

917,426 

38,083 
39,343 

637,079 
187,179 

824,258 

901,684 

(3, 124) 

18,866 

15,742 

- - -. . 52,605 1,227,154 917,426 

SL:Itement of Suppon and Revenue Expenses 
Transfers Among Funds and Ch . ' ' 

Support and revenue: 

Contributions (note 1 a) 
lnvesrment income 
Other 

Total support and revenue 

~accompany· 
mg notes to financial statements. 

anges JO Fund Balances 

year ended Decem her 31' 1988 

(with compararive lotals for 1987) 

Unrestricted 

$ 345,042 

49,981 

3,657 

398,680 
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1988 
Opcruting 

Restricted 
M i~iooa riCll Any AN CF. 

2,581,455 153, 112 

2,581,455 153,112 

Planr 
Fund -

1987 
Total Total 

All Funds All Funds 

3,079,609 2,985,41 5 
49,981 43,163 
3,657 826 

3,133,247 3,029,404 

E•penses: . 
Jnformarionol and promotional 154,977 154,977 148,255 

Travel and board 45,652 45,652 55,029 

Admin~strattve 348,079 348,079 332,668 

MiSSIOIVriCS 2,417,795 II 0 ,046 2,535,841 2,490,930 

Depree ration 24, 137 24 , 137 21,722 

Total expenses 548,708 2,4 17,795 118,046 24 , 137 3,108,686 3,048,604 

Excess (deficiency) of supporl 
1nd revenue over expenses ( 150,028) 163,660 35,066 (24,137) 24,561 

Fund bal1nces, begiMing of year (3,124) 18,866 15,742 

Transfers among funds and other ch:~nges : 

To planl fund for asset acquisillon (19,793) 19,793 
Ncr decrease in debt (2,000) 2,000 
Informational and promorional material 
1nll equipment lransf.:rs (nore S) 198,726 ( 198,726) 

Uruguay capital proJect 35,066 (35,066) 

Fund balances, end of year s 23,781 16,522 40,303 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Noles to Financial Swtemcnts 

December 31, 1988 

Board of Forergn Missions rs oper:1ted under the ausprces of The N:1rronal Associallon of Free Wrll Baprists. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles and practices followed by the Board of Foreign M rssions of Narional 

Assocration of Free Will Baptists are presenred below lo assrst the reader in evaluaring the financial slalements. 

The financial slatemenls are presented in accordance wrth standards recommended in • Audits of Ceria in 

Nonprofil Organizallons" an Aullrt and Accounllng Guide (American lnslltule of Certified Public Accounlants). 

Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observance of limilllllons and reslrlcllons pbced on the use of resources available to rhe 

Board, the 1ccounrs of !he Board :~re mamtamed in accorllan..:c w11h rhe pnnciples of • fund :1ccounting". This 
IS the procedure by which resources for vanous purpose:. are classified for accounting and reportmg purposes 

inlo funds lhat are in accordance wirh aclivilles or objectives specrfied. 

The assets, liabilities and fund bnlances of rhe Board are n:ported m self- balancrng fund groups as follows : 

a. Operating funds - such funds mclude unrestncted funds avarlable for support 

of Board operations and resrnctell funds for support of mu,sions. Unrestricred 

funds are reported as revenue 1n the year rec:erved or accrued. Resrncted 

funds are recorded as addiriuns to deferred revenue. Such restncted operal ing 

funds are recorded as revenues during the period they are expended. 

b. Planl funds - such funds represent resources reslrictetl for planl acquisitions 
and funds expended for plant. 

Plant Assets and Depreciation 

Uses of operaling funds for plant acquisllions are accounted for as rransfers ro plan! funds. Deprecrallon 

of equrpment IS provrded over the esrimared useful lives of the respective assets on a straight hne basis. 

Income Taxes 

The Board rs exempl from mcome raxes; accordrngly, nu provrsion for mcome taxes has been made 10 

accompanyrng financral slatemenls. 
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34,942 

15,742 



(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

Noles to f-inancia l Statcmcnts, continued 

No tes Payable 

Notes payable consists of rhe followmg: 

8. 9% note payabl h c: to ank due l:lnuary ">9 1989 
c~ee below fur secunty) - . 

10% tn~rallmo;ut note: pa ahl• I h 
Wtlh final y " 11 .11! 1. , f'J)'.thl<.: monthly :11 5283 

payment due: June:, 199"> ( .. L · f - Ma: •~<= nw lnr ~c:<.unty) 

s 26,083 

I 0,000 

To ~ecure the ah<lvt: mentiOned not··· tl ll S 36,083 ~·. tc: o uti ho~ 1 1 1 · ·- -' ~ f' <:t )!Ct J\ Coll.tt<.:r,el a \ 70 ()()() (' .fi • c:rll tcatt: of Deposit. 

Plant F unds 

A summary of 1 1 fu .• . p an nu asset~ Is as follows: 

Office furnturc and cquipm..:nl 
Cameras and projectors 
Automobiles 
Computer equipment 

s 

s 

32,928 
24,734 
19,862 
93,715 

171,239 
118,634 

52,605 

Less accumulatc:cl dc:preclatton 

Net tnveMed in plant 

Deprecration expen se, computed on the stra1oht 1 ~ me method amounted to $24,137 tn 1988. 
Res tric ted Deferred Revenue 

Changes In restricted deferred rc:ve . nue •~ h follows: 

Mis~oionary ADVANCE 

Balance, beginning of year 
Accounts Campaign 

Contributions s 637,079 187,179 
2,828,087 

Funds available 
172,347 

Expenses and other changes 
3,465,166 359,526 

Balance, end of year 
2,581,455 153,112 

Totul 

824,258 
3,000,434 

3,824,692 
2,734,567 

. s 883,711 2 
Informahon and Promotio n I M . 06,414 1,090,125 
T a are n a ! and Equipment Tra nsfe rs 

he Board charges f, · se . . a ee agamst rhe foreign lield account . 
rvlce productron expenses. These f, s to reimburse the unrestricted fund f, . f, . 

unrestncled operating fund ees are pre~ented h transfers frnm the restricted . or m ormatton · operatmg fund to the 

Pension 

The Board · · parllctpates in the: masre .· 
Assoc r' f r pension plan of the: !loa d f R 
Penst~; ::n o Free Will Baptist. The plan rr. conrnbutory ~h; po;llremc:nr and ln~urance of the National 

penses amounted to $54,490. . ICY rs to fund pension cost accrued. 

The pension plan I s a defined contnbution lan I 

:~~::'::,~:1; a~:=ts~ra:'::~t;o ~~nd~n:c~~~~:~~r~~;:~~:;::'r ::ls~c::e;::c:q::!~~:r3~ed~n~han the 
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lndcocndenl A ud itors' Report on Supplementary Data 

Uoard of Directors 
Board of f-oreign M issions of The 

National J\ssocialion of F ree W ill llaplislS: 

We have tcpoth:d separately hcrctn on tho; ha'IC Jinauctal stnkmcnts of the 13oard ol r o reij!n Mtssions 
of The National Associ.ttion uf Free Wtll Onptlsts. Our cxarmnation .... as directed primarily toward 
forntul:~tln)!. an Optmon on the Jinam·tal s t..1h:ments of the Ooard of Foreign Missions of The National 
Association of Free Wtll Uapll~t~ tul..en ns a whole. The supplo;mentary datu included 1n Schedule I and 
2 is presentcJ for ~upple1111.:ntary anal) M~ put pn~c:s and is not necessary for u fair presentution of the 
financial posttwn and rhe !>upporl and revenue, ex~nses, transfers among funds and changes tn fund 
balance~ of the Uo:ml ol Forc:t)!ll Mt~~•on~ of The National Assoctalton of Free Wtll Baptists. The 
supplementary data ha~ been loUbJectcd lo rhe audtttng procedures applio;d in the examinalion of tl1e b:~stc 
financial statements and, in our opmton, lb stated farrly tn all material respects only when cons1dered tn 

conjnn•twn wtth •h<" fin:~nnal statemen t~ tJJkl"n as a "'hole. 

Contributions 
Investment tncome 
Other 

February I 0, 1989 

BOARD OF FOREIGN MISSIONS OF THE 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

Schedule to Combine U nrestric ted F und Support and 

Revenues and Additions to Restric ted Deferred Revenues 

Year ended December 3 1, 1988 

(With comparat ive totals for 1987) 

1988 
Restricted 

Missionary ADVANCE 

Unrest ricted Accounts Campaign 

s 345,0-t2 2,828,087 172,347 

49,981 
3,657 

Total 
All Funds 

3,345,476 
49,981 

3,657 

Total support and revenue s 398,680 2,828,087 172,347 3,399,114 
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Schedule 1 

1987 
Total 

All Funds 

2,985,415 
43,163 

826 

3 ,0'29 ,404 



NATIO~A~~~~8.~b~N0~l~~EN~~ ~HE 
Schedule of Unrestricled Fund and Restricred Fund Ex=ISTS 

~hedule2 -

I ~ . Unrestric ted fund expenses 
n.orrnatwnal a,,d promotional: 

V_1deo and audro vi~ual 
Films 
Heartbeat 
Po~tage 
Dar" processing 
Publicity 
Telephone 
Dues 
Paper suprlies 
Retreat 
Tracts and books 

Travel and hoard: 
Derartmenr auro 
Board members 
I lonorariums 
Der:trrment travel 
Traveler~' rnsurance 

Administrative: 
Salarres 
Housing 
Social security 
Retrrement 
Hospitalitation 
Audirrng 
Office renr 
Office equrpment 
Ma!ntenance of office equipment 
Ofhce supplies 
M 1scellaneou~ 
Employer payroll faxes 

Total unrestncred fund expenses 

M . . . Restricted fund expenses 
rsslonanes - Foreign Fields -
Ivory coast 
France 
lndra 
Brazrl 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay 
Summer missionaries 
Short- rerm mlssionarres 
Orher rrojects 
Specral rnvestrgallve commiuee 

December 31, 1988 

(wilh comparative totals for 1987) 

Less maintenance fees tr r. 
rnformarron service pr=t~~~ed to unrestrrcted funds 

Net mrssronary expenses 

A DGV ANCE campargn expendrrures: 
eneral expenses 

Project expenses 

Total ADVANCE campargn expenses 

Total restricted fund expenses 
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ill! 1987 
~ 

s 3,215 453 157 1~0 37,517 35,418 
53,187 44,531 
16,140 15,748 
27,350 35,707 
10,250 10,821 

555 935 
3,769 3,962 
1,192 
1,645 540 

154,977 l48,2S5 

2,411 2,191 
11,519 12,388 

350 927 
30,832 39,091 

540 432 
45,652 55,029 

185,985 176,521 
57,420 57,595 
22,523 20,261 
5,740 5,675 

29,039 24,127 
3,800 1,600 

25,612 25,612 

1,167 
612 

2,798 
3,577 2,978 
5,002 6,081 
8,214 8,808 

348,079 332,668 
s 548,708 535,952 

s 802,050 882,178 
363,322 355,m 
81,607 74,176 

324,068 328,899 
443,222 391,666 
131,753 JJ 1,057 
246,236 264,057 
167,557 160,241 

8,422 15,145 
12,300 6,876 
20,574 10,902 
15,410 8,538 

2,616,521 2,628,907 

198,726 I 74,359 
2,417,795 2,454,548 

7,266 4,623 
11 0,780 31 '759 
118,046 36,382 

2,535,841 2,490,930 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Directors 
Board of foreign Missions of The 

National Association of Free Will Baptists: 

We have audited t11e balance sheet of Roard of Fore1p.n M1~sions of The National Assoc1nt10n of Free 
Will Uaplls~ as of i)eccmhcr .II, 1988, and the related s~tement o f support and revenue, expenses, 
transfers :11nong funds und chnnl!es in fund balances for lhe }ear then ended. These financial statements 

are the respons1bil1ty of the Bo:ud"s manap.emenl. Our responsibility is to express nn opinion on tltese 
financtal statements ba~ed on our audrt. The tinanctal s~tements of JJoard of f'o rei~n Missions of The 

National Associatrun of free W11l rlaptists as of Deceml>er 31, 1987, were uuditcd by o ther nuditors 
whose report dated february 3, 1988, expressed an unqualified opmioo on those s~tements. 

We conducted our audit rn accordance w11h generally accepted aud11tng M.and:ud~. Those standards 
reqUire lh.at we plan and pet fo1 m the aud1t to obtain rca!.onnble a~surance about wbelher !he financial 

s tatements :1re free of material m1sstalement. An aud11 mclude.~ examming, on a test bns1s, e\ tdence 
supporlin~ the amounts and tlisclusUJeS in the financu1l statements. An audit also includes a~sessinj;t lhe 
:tccountin$! pnnc1ple~ u,ecf and "l!nific:-tnt e~tunatcs made hy man:lf.ement, as well as cvnluaring U1c 

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit (UOVIdes a reasonable bas1s for our 

oprn1on. 

ln our opimon, !he 1988 financial statements referred to above present fairly, m all material respects, 

!he financ1al posihon of Board of Foretgn M1ssrons of Ute National Assoc1alion of Free Will Bapust~ as 

of December 31, 1988, and rhe support and revenue, expenses, transfers amonp, funds and changt'S in 

fund balances for the year then ended 111 confurm1ty w11h generally accerted accounting rrmc1ples. 

f'ebruary 10, 1989 

61 



State 

Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
lllinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
Nebraska 
New Mexico 
Northeast Association 

• 
Northwest Association 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Pennsylvania 
South Carolina 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Virginia 
Virgin Islands 
West Virginia 
Miscellaneous 
Totals 

Advance Celebration Project 

1990 State Goals 
With 1988 Comparisons 

1988 Goal 

195,000 
4,500 

168,000 
54,000 
3,500 

100,000 
120,000 

2,500 
750 

101,000 
36,000 

1,500 
14,000 
80,000 

600 
15,000 

141,000 
72,000 

215,000 
1,000 
1,000 

500 
7,000 
5,700 

385,000 
125,000 
378,000 

2,000 
200,000 
415,000 
97,000 

111,000 
3,000 

75,000 
55,486 

3,186,036 

1988 Actual 

154,724 
5,332 

154,355 
65,574 
3,840 

90,305 
142,014 

1,685 
838 

94,449 
32,117 
2,523 

17,570 
72,499 

so 
16,482 

130,050 
61,309 

248,775 
425 
848 
379 

3,501 
3,153 

427,905 
99,080 

346,095 
1,973 

173,934 
484,944 
104,659 
130,232 

2,004 
70,485 
82,659 

3,226,767 

Total Regular and Advance Celebration Project 

Northeast Association: 
Maine 
New Hampshire 
Rhode Island 
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Northwest Association: 
Alaska 
Oregon 
Washington 

1990 Goal -
180,000 

6,000 
180,000 
70,000 
4,000 

96,000 
158,000 

2,000 
1,000 

107,000 
43,000 
2,000 

18,000 
87,000 

300 
17,000 

142,000 
66,000 

257,000 
750 

1,000 
500 

5,000 
5,000 

445,000 
125,000 
394,000 

2,100 
195,000 
499,000 
110,000 
140,000 

3,000 
76,000 
79,502 

3,517,152 

150,000 
3,667,152 

1989 Budget Of Expense 

Foreign Fields 
Africa 
Brazil 
France 
India 
Japan 
Panama 
Spain 
Uruguay . 
Short-term missio~anes 
Student mission~n~ 
Cassette tape mmts~ry 
Barnard/Wilson R~ttrement 
Miscellaneous projects 

Foreign Fields Total 

$ 964,786.00 
464,178.00 
389,077.00 
82,900.00 

487,410.00 
133,285.00 
336,488.00 
150,485.00 
10,000.00 
20,000.00 
2,800.00 
2,016.00 

17,200.00 

. I Materials and Equipment Informational and Promottona 13,850.00 

Video 7,100.00 
Audio-visuals 36,800.00 
Heartbeat 65,000.00 
Postage 30,000.00 
Data Processin~ 51,380.00 
Publicity Matenals 12,000.00 
Telephone 600.00 
Services and Dues 4,500.00 
Paper Supplies 2,000.00 
Tracts/ Books 1,000.00 
Foreign Missions Retreat 224,230.00 

Total . 
Less Information/Promotion -198,333.00 

Transfers . 1 d Promotional Materials 
Informattona an and Equipment Total 

Travel and Board 
Department Auto 
Department Travel 
Traveler's Insurance 
Board Members 
Honorariums 

Travel and Board Total 

Administrative 

Salaries . 
Administrative Housmg 
Administrative Soc. Sec. 
Hospitalization Insurance 
Retirement 
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6,000.00 
35,000.00 

600.00 
17,500.00 

750.00 

197,815.00 
57,420.00 
24,425.00 
35,800.00 
6,120.00 

3,060,625.00 

25,897.00 

59,850.00 



Auditing 
Office Rent 
Office Equipment 
Maintenance of Office E . 
Office S 1· quip. upp 1es 
MisceUaneous 
Employer Payroll Taxes 

Administrative Total 
Total Regul F · . . ar orelgn MISSions Budget 
Advance Celebration Budget 

Total Regular and Advance 
Celebration Budgets 
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3,500.00 
27,000.00 

.00 
1,000.00 
3,600.00 
5,500.00 
8,600.00 

370,780.00 
3,517,152.00 

150,000.00 

$3,667,152.00 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE REPORT 
This college takes seriously its task of shaping and molding young lives 

for the service of the Lord . The business of "committing to faithful men 
who shall be able to teach others" is the vital ministry of Free Will Baptist 
Bible College. It has now concluded 47 years of continuous service. 

There were 345 who enrolled at the college for the 1988-89 school year. 
This includes the undergraduate (319) and the graduate (26) enrollments. 
Morale among students, faculty and staff has been excellent. This year was 
designated "the year of prayer" and we have sensed the Lord's blessings 
and presence throughout the year. 

Special thanks to everyone who prayed, everyone who gave and every­
one who encouraged a student to enroll. This ministry is teamwork-with 
prayers, givers, promoters, encouragers, administrators, teachers and staff 
workers- all combining efforts to produce the "faithful men" that Paul 
speaks of. 

Your investment is paying off. Joining the hundreds who have graduated 
in past years are the 66 who graduated this year. They will serve as 
preachers, teachers, missionaries, church musicians, secretaries, account­
ants, housewives and mothers. We are counting on your prayers to 
accompany them as they go forth. 

Please help us get the word to all of our people that we are still enlarging 
the offerings of the college. Baccalaureate degrees are available with the 
following majors: Bible, Pastoral Training, Missions, Church Music, Chris­
tian Education , Elementary (or Kindergarten) Education, Secondary Edu­
cation and Physical Education . There are many combinations that may be 
worked out in the above, such as a Church Music and Christian Education 
major. We also offer three associates degrees in Christian Ministries, Arts 
ahd Business-as well as the Master of Ministry degree. This latter is a 
modular approach with the student attending eight separate weeks of 
courses. Three of these one-week courses are offered annually. 

New programs are being investigated. We hope to offer a major in some 
aspect of Business-such as Business Administration- and a major in 
Counseling. Public announcements will be made when these programs of 
study are available. 

Please pray with us as we seek to enlarge the gift income for the college. 
Every effort is being made to increase salaries at the college for faculty and 
staff personnel. A modest raise is envisioned for the 1989-90 school year. 
We must keep in mind that "the laborer is worthy of his hire" and that we 
have an obligation to the Lord to do what is right and fair toward each 
faculty and staff person- our most valuable asset. 

Recruitment efforts are becoming more prominent. Neil Gilliland is now 
devoting his full-time effort as Director of Recruitment. All traveling groups 
are for recruitment. Of course, they are expected to cover their expenses 
through fund raising-but their main thrust is recruitment. This includes 
the College Choir, Band, Drama, Ensemble and Evangel Players. Next to 
the prayers of God's people, our greatest need is for students to attend 
the college. 
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A new financial approach is being begun. We are seeking to totally 
underwrite the gift budget of the college by December of this year. We Wtll 

ask every present supporter to commit to continue-and hopefully In· 
c rease-his giving to the college. At the same time, we will ask new 
c hurc hes and new individuals to begin to give to the college on a regular 
basis. Pray with us that th is new approach will be honored by the Lord and 
supported by our peo ple . 

The prospects for the 1989-90 school year are good. Pray with us that 
this will be a truly outstanding year for God's glory. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Charles A. Thigpen 
President 

1988-89 
Registration Report 

Enrollment Breakdowns 

By State 

Alabama 18 Lo uisiana 1 South Carolina 16 
Arkansas 21 Massachusetts 1 Tennessee 57 
Califo rnia 3 Mic higan 13 Texas 6 
Delaware 3 Mississippi 5 Virginia 15 
Flo rida 9 Missouri 21 West Virginia 6 
Georgia 16 New Mexico 1 
Illinois 23 New York 1 
Indiana 6 North Carolina 29 
Kansas 2 Ohio 14 
Kentucky 15 Oklahoma 7 Foreign 10 

(The student body represents 25 s tates and 7 foreign countries.) 

By Classification 

Freshmen ................... 106 Juniors ......................... 59 
Sophomores ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68 Se niors ......................... 61 

Special .......................... 25 

Others 

Male .......................... 163 
Female ....................... 156 

Free Will Baptist .......... . 309 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 
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Ministerial . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71 
Miss ionary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 

Single .......... . .............. 240 
Married ....................... 79 

Enrollment Summary 1988-89 . ..... . ...... 286 
First Semester .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26 

duate Enrollment . . . . . . . Second Semester . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 312 
Und~~gral Enrollment . . . . . . . . . . . . . F' t and Second Semesters .. . ...... 7 
Addttlona . . trs d ........ . 

I Enrollment . . .......... N .. t .Already Counte ·············· · · · · ····· 319 
T ota 1988 Enrollment o .......................... . Summer d te Enrollment ............. . 

1 U dergra ua f 1988-89: 26 
T ota n School Enrollment or t d elsewhere) .......... . ......... 345 
Graduate Master of Ministry (Not co~n ~e and Graduate) ........ . ...... . 

1 Enrollment (Undergra ua 
Total Annua • rt 

Financial A•d Repo ... $169,743.54 
219 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 93 682.59 

Loans Issued ... . ..... . ...... : :: : : :: : : :: 0 0 0 ) 110 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62,395.00 
168 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

St dent Workers ...... . .. . 
Sc~olarship Recipients .............. . 

W I h Library . 
e c d" s vtdeo-cas-

bound volumes, microforms, soun~. ~~-~~~ . ~~-~ - : ...... 52,508 
Total b_ooks, . 1 materials, etc. . ............... . 
settes, mstructlona 

d budget of the Bible 
The May 31 , 1_98~, finan~~a\~=~~~i~~~l ~~~~~tion . The audit report 

College will be dtstnb~ted liege's official report. 
will be presented as t e co 

States 

Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Connecticut 
Delaware 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 

Torch Campaign Gift Report 

6/ 1/88-
5/31/89 

$ 52,929.10 
1,669.71 

21 ,768.28 
9,972.42 

.00 
6,075.00 

.00 
21 ,711.47 
51 ,476.38 

645.00 
381.05 

21 ,258.60 
8,537.11 

170.00 
1,296.61 

10,562.28 

67 

$ 

Campaign 
Total 

117,431.50 
2,983.38 

60,432.93 
18,058.14 

150.00 
12,575.00 

170.33 
51,640.65 

134,556.79 
1,706.00 

898.38 
46,563.52 
14,189.96 

660.00 
2,068.92 

25,133.01 



Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Nebraska 
Nevada 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Vermont 
Virginia 
Washington 
West Virginia 
Canada 
WNAC 
Virgin Islands 
College Family 
Matching Gifts 
Foreign Missionaries 
Other (Mise.) 

Total 

Alumni Project 
Special Gift 

Grand Total 

.00 
4,903.99 

22,218.24 
16,725.97 
35,596.66 

320.00 
260.00 
100.00 
16.97 

117,549.49 
15,040.60 
17,566.43 
47,395.56 

3.00 
140,536.56 

7,726.07 
20.00 

21,021.26 
894.76 

5,571.35 
53.94 

5,347.01 
830.00 

19,529.89 
24,805.00 
3,155.08 
2,023.98 

$717,664.82 

11,098.00 
.00 

$728,762.82 

68 

115.(}() 
9,318.22 

45,166.87 
37,930.87 
74,551.05 

755.00 
570.00 
100.00 
237.60 

272,875.17 
29,322.24 
40,907.67 

103,825.58 
13.00 

321,118.32 
17,369.92 

55.00 
49,917.83 
1,795.72 

12,174.28 
153.44 

12,211.06 
1,602.92 

46,704.95 
67,872.08 
5,606.44 

15,629.27 
$1,657,118.01 

100,000.00 
$1,757,118.01 

1989-90 
Gift Income Budget 

Alabama 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Connecticut 
Delaware 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maryland 
Michigan 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Nebraska 
Nevada 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
North Carolina 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Vermont 
Virginia 
Washington 
West Virginia 
W.N.A.C. 
Canada 
Virgin Islands 
Other 

Alumni 
Designated Gifts 
Special Gifts 

Total 

69 

$ 55,000.00 
3,000.00 

25,500.00 
10,000.00 
1,000.00 
7,000.00 

200.00 
26,000.00 
50,000.00 
2,000.00 

500.00 
28,000.00 
14,000.00 

300.00 
2,000.00 

12,000.00 
200.00 

10,000.00 
26,000.00 
26,000.00 
35,000.00 

1,000.00 
300.00 

1,000.00 
1,000.00 

125,000.00 
17,000.00 
25,000.00 
53,000.00 

1,000.00 
175,000.00 
15,000.00 
1,000.00 

25,000.00 
2,000.00 

10,000.00 
12,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

65,000.00 

10,000.00 
30,000.00 
20,000.00 

$925,000.00 



FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 

1988-89 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

-------- - --- ·- - - -----·- ----- --- . - -- -
Pi\,,~~ 
~ ~ II ill , :"l·al N: .\llt·n . l' < . 

lif\t\tlll 

H ,..,,,.a L ....... t1 

'-.olin ) , \ (orll 

: ' ' ll . I I '' \.. I I I 

The Board of Trustees 
Free W ill Baptist Bible College: 

ilrt"''l\\,'i u { , .. t.utt~~ • • , . 

:(' 1 • .J dou<ur v lluuo.: .. HlJ 

tlrrr·o ""tJJ It• J 71)2 i 
<JlS Jn ·.Has 

We ha\c audncd the l:>abncc: shc:c:t o t the Free~ 111 Bapll>l Soble Collc:ce as ot :vla} ~I, 1989, and 

the related st:Hemcnr., •>l o.; hanccs 10 tund balances and .. urrent unrestnc ted fund~ re~enue. 

expc:ndorures and orher c hances for the: }e:lr then c:nded The>e linanc1al sl:Hemc:nts are the 

respons1boll" o t the Collccc: ·, manacemc:nt. Our re>pons1b1l11y IS 10 express an opan1on on these 

financ1al :ol:ltc:menr., ba:.c:d on our audol 

We conducted our audot 1n accordance wath J!enc:rall} accc:oted auda~1n,~t >t.andard.s Those sl:lndards 

requ1re that we plan :~nd pertorm the :~udit to obl:lUl rea>orwble as:.urance a bout whether the lina ncaal 

sl:ltements a re free of m.ltenal miSstatement. An aud1t 10cludes eJ.amuuog. on a leSt bas1s, c:vadence 

supporung the: amounr., and disclosures an the finao.:aal statements. An audll also mcludes assess1n)t 

the accounun~ pnncaples usc:d aod s1gmficant estJmJles made by management. as well as evaluat1nll 

the overa ll financ ial Sl:llemenl presenl:luon We believe that our a udn provu.les a reasonable bas1s 

for our op1mon. 

In our 0p1010n. the financ1al stalements referred lo a bove present fa1rly, 10 a ll ma tenal respects. the 

financ1al position of the Free Will Bapllsl Bohle College as of May 31, 1989, and the changes 10 fund 

bala nces :~nd currenl unrestncled funds revenues, e xpendarures and other chan~es for the yea r then 

ended ID coofonmty w1th genera lly :lccepted accououn~ pnnc1ples. 

June 23, 1989 
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B
.AYflST BffiLE COLLEGE 

fREEWILL 
Balance Sheet 

May 31, 1989 

ative flgures for 1988) 
(with compar 

~ 

nt funds: . 
Curre · ted' · dep<>SltS 

U n~:b~d 'interesf t. b~!!'eg at date of gift 
Investr"Qents at 81! v 
Prepaid e)lpen~ble· 
Accounts rccelva . 

Students accounts 
staff and 9~gf! _ plant fund 
Note rcce1 

Total accounts receivable 

Inventories 

Total unrestricted funds 

Restricted£ : current unrestricted funds 
Due rom 

Total restricted funds 

Total current tunds 

Loan funds: · d sits b f 1 
Interest beardU\gt efess allowance for ooodou .t u1988 
Loans to sfus38 tM in 1989 and S 15 , tn 

loans o • t unrestricted funds 
Due from curren 

Total loan funds 

Endowment fun~s: d sits 
Interest b~rtnblg ~p ant funds 
Note rece1va e -

Total endowment funds 

Annuity funds: · 
Interest bearing deposlts 

Total annuity funds 

Plant funds: . d~sits held by Trustee 
Interest bfmngobligation 

under ease 

Investment in plant: 

~~~ings and improvements 
~ipment 
L rary books 

Total investment in plant 

Total plant funds 

Agenc~ funds: 
Cas f urrent unrestricted fund 
Due rom c . bl 
Accounts recelva e 

Total agency funds 

71 

s 

1989 

36,820 
3 000 
2:471 

13,691 
14,464 

396,749 

424,904 

23,768 

490,963 

24 ,240 

24,240 

S 515,203 
=== 

s 118.189 

331.781 
35,120 

S 485 ,090 
==== 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

177,027 
1,968 

178 ,995 

55 ,000 

55 ,000 

101,176 

373,069 
3 539,614 

'809,178 
93,324 

4,815,185 

4 ,916,361 

431 

1988 

19,735 
4,250 
3,115 

13,393 
6 ,282 

436,311 

455.986 

21 .731 

504.817 

17,631 

17,631 

522.448 

114 .628 

288.5 17 
62,880 

466.025 

188 , 186 
7 ,686 

195 ,872 

55,000 

' 55,000 

95,630 

373,069 
3 536,417 

'782,758 
90,394 

4 782,638 , 

4,878,268 

4,496 s 
10 ,~cri 

3 ,800 
412 

s 11,643 
8,708 



Current funds: 
Liabilitiea and Fund Balances 1989 1988 

Unrestricted: 
Note payable to bank 
Accounts payable 

A
Students' credit balances and d . 

ccrued salaries epos1ts 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other funds :- summer school and other 

L
Current restricted funds 

oan funds 
Agency funds 

Fund balance 

. Total unrestricted funds 
Restncted: 

Fund balances . private 

Total restricted funds 

Total current funds 

Loan funds: 
Accrued interest 
~~tesd J>alayable to ~dividuals 

n u ances - pnvate 

Total loan funds 

Endowment funds· 
Fund balances· · 

Endowment 
~~ha6i:rsnhd_owment) unrestricted 

1p, restncted 

Total endowment funds 

Annuity .funds: 
Annu1ty payable 
Fund oalance 

Total annuity funds 

Plant funds : 
Due to other funds · 

Not · N e payable - current unrestricted 1': 

' -- ote p~ya~le - endowment 1': d JUnds &,A;Gse obl1gat1on 1 un s 
Notes payal>le 

Fund balances· 
Une~pended 
Net mvestment in plant 

Total fund balances 

Total plant funds 

Agency funds : 
Funds held in custody for others 

Total agency funds 

72 

s 215,000 
40,760 
29,580 
68,493 
10,325 

24,240 
35,120 
10,800 

70,160 

56,645 

490,963 

24,240 

24,240 

$ 515,203 

s 4 ,707 
167,880 
312,503 

s 485,090 

$ 46,466 
85,867 
46,662 

$ 178,995 

14,400 
40,600 

$ 

$ 55,000 

248,000 
22,246 
25,900 
66,901 
15,491 

17,631 
62,880 
3,800 -

84,311 
-

41,968 

504,817 

17,631 

17,631 

522,448 

4,596 
159.191 
302,238 

466,025 

46 ,466 
105,485 
43 ,921 

195,872 

18,607 
36,393 

55,000 

-
-
. 

. 

$ 396,749 436,311 
1,968 

24l:~ 190,000 
128,774 161,545 

-
4,198,870 -

4,027,726 

4,198,870 4,027,726 
$ 4,916,361 4,878,268 

s 11,643 8,708 

s 11,643 8,708 

II 
I ~ 

II 

FREE WllL BAPTIST BffiLE COLLEGE 

Statement of Current Unrestricted Funds Revenues, 
Expenditures and Other Changes 

Year ended May 31 , 1989 

(with comparative figures for 1988) 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees 

Gifts 
Endowment income 

Investment income 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 

Other sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Educational and general : 

Instruction 

Academic support 

Student services 
Operation and maintenance of plant 

Institutional support 

Total educational and general expenditures 

Mandatory transfers for debt service 

Total educational and general 

Auxiliary enterprises: 

Expenditures 
Mandatory transfers for debt service 

Total auxiliary enterprises 

Total expenditures and mandatory transfers 

Revenues over expenditures and other changes 

73 

s 

s 

1989 

664,489 

637,579 

11,960 

40,410 

605,570 

6 ,819 

1,966,827 

493,550 

104,858 

181,311 

204,153 
431 ,808 

1,415,680 

22,252 

1 ,437,932 

432,063 
82,155 

514 ,21 8 

1 ,952,150 

14,677 

1988 

616,472 

666,734 

13 ,945 

43 ,3 15 

534,472 

3,044 

1,877,982 

503,075 

116,984 

124,813 

182,468 
455 ,013 

1 ,382,353 

24,036 

1,406,389 

390,236 
80,515 

470,751 

1,877' 140 

842 
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Revenues: 
Tuition and fee 
Gifts: 

Together Campaign 
Less Building Fund 
Net Operating Gifts 

Endowment income 
Investment income 

Proposed Budget 
1989- 1990 

Current Unrestricted Funds 

$925,000 
150.QOQ 

$775,000 

Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 
Graduate school 
Other sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Education and general: 
Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 

Operation and maintenance of plant 
Institutional support 

Total educational and general expenditures 
Mandatory transfer for energy and telephone system 

Total educational and general 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Expenditures 

Mandatory provision for lease obligations 
Total auxiliary enterprises 

Graduate school 
Contingency fund 

Total expenditures and mandatory transfers 

76 

$715,000 

775,000 
11,500 
38,000 

635,500 
10,000 
19.300 

2.204.300 

533,625 
123,980 
179,800 
242,400 
483.225 

1.563.030 
5.725 

1.568.755 

476,700 
71.325 

548.025 

16,975 
70.545 
87.520 

$2204.300 

FREE WILL BAPTIST BIBLE COLLEGE 
Proposed Budget 

Revertues: 
Tuition and fee 
Gifts: 

Together Campaign 
Less Building Fund 
Net Operating Gifts 

Endowment income 

1989-1990 

Current Unrestricted Funds 

$925,000 
150.QQO 

$775,000 

Investment income . 
ili terpn.ses Sales and services of aux ary en 

Graduate school 
Other sources 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Education and general: 

Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Institutional support . 

Total educational and general expenditures 
Mandatory transfer for energy and telephone system 

Total educational and general 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Expenditures . . 
Mandatory provision for lease. obltgauons 

Total auxiliary enterpn.ses 

Graduate school 
Contingency fund 

Total expenditures and mandatory transfers 

77 

$715,000 

775,000 
11,500 
38,000 

635,500 
10,000 
19.300 

2.204.300 

533,625 
123,980 
179,800 
242,400 
483,225 

1.563.030 
5.725 

1.568.755 

476,700 
71.325 

548.025 

16,975 
70.545 
87.520 

$2.204.300 



Free Will Baptist Bible College 
Statement About Research Study 

July 14, 1989 

At its December 1988 meeting the Board of Trustees of FWBBC approved 
the idea of a serious research study of the educational interests of Free 
Will Baptist young people. Such a study had already been given some 
consideration by Executive Secretary Dr. Melvin Worthington and the 
Executive Committee. Discussions between the college administration and 
Dr. Worthington led to the making of this recommendation to the Board. 
We intend for this study to satisfy the concerns not only of the college 
board but also of other denominational agencies and leaders about the 
educational needs (at the college level) of the denomination. To this end 
we will include input from the Executive Secretary and others who repre­
sent these broader interests. 

We propose that this research study cover the entire denomination and 
attempt to discover, in summary, the college-level programs of study that 
really are needed by Free Will Baptist young people. To that end, the study 
should answer such questions as: 
1. How many FWB Young people graduate from high school each year? 
2. How many go on to college anywhere, for any kind of post high school 

study? 
3. What various programs of study do they actually (or plan to) take? 
4. What factors play significant roles in influencing their choice of a col­

lege? 
5. Would they attend FWBBC if we had the programs they desire? Why? 

Why not? 
6. What factors are important to those who influence the young people 

(like parents and pastors, etc.)? 

Answering such questions as these can help us, and others in the denomi­
nation, know exactly what kinds of programs of study we can offer at the 
college level and expect enough students to make the offering of those 
programs feasible. Such a study will therefore be of great importance in 
helping us give direction to the further development of curriculum at 
FWBBC or in any other kind of formal educational effort. 

After considerable investigation, we have determined that the best way to 
go about this is to employ a professional marketing research agency with 
experience in educational research. We have worked with three such 
agencies to produce bids on the study and have almost reached a conclu­
sion about the agency we propose employing. The cost of such a study will 
be about $25,000, more or less. We believe this is the best way for at least 
three reasons: (1) The results will be more objective. Were we to do the 
study ourselves, the conclusions might be subject to"political" interpreta-

78 

openly and objectively to an 
think people will respond more th . time or manpower to do 

tions. (2) We (3) We simply do not have e the professionals under-
. artial agency. d b done Furthermore, 
ll'll_P ell as it nee s to e . h better than we do. 
thiS as w . ments of such researc 
stand the reqwre . d . the fall, with results 

that this study will be earned out unng 
Our plans are · of 1990 

. bl by mid)spnng . . 
avrula e . h art of the denorm-

. f tun cooperation on t e P d stors 
Our most important need lS s~~rs The researchers will depen ore~~ their 

nation, espec;~l~t~i~i~:t~: nam~s and addresse~ ~~i~~~~;!!~~n. We call 
as the way o l -the only way they can ge 

h for examP e · h ways· d 
churc es~stors therefore, to help us m ~ es~ving the information requeste 
on our P ' d lease cooperate Y 9l 
1. When co~t~~~~ ~r~mpt\y any survey forms sent t~~~~te by responding 

and comp e I l . n your churches to co 
2 Urge the young peop e t . . e 

. promptly to survey forms. eop\e involved to cooperate m thts sam 
3. Urge the parents of the young P 

way· . . that all of us have 
btain precise mformatton ing and 

:!~e'd~;;;o~e;~n~e~m~~ ~~~~na~~~t ~~:~ te~:~:at~~n~0~u~a~~~nal pro· 
enable us to speak accurate Y a 

grams. 

79 



SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAINING 
REPORT 

Randall House Publications is now beginning its twenty-eighth year of 
operation. God has certainly blessed us during these years. We continue 
to try to fulfill our commitment to produce the best literature available anywhere. 

The Lord has blessed us with a good year. I am plea~ed with the pro. 
gress our department is making. We have moved from a minus in our sales 
to a plus. Our curriculum plans for this winter are progressing well. We are 
introducing our new teen materials at this National Convention. A number 
of new products will be ready for the winter quarter. 

Our commentary on the Gospel of John is ready for your purchase. 
This is the fourth in our set of Randall House Bible Commentaries that are 
being prepared with our doctrinal persuasion. Other volumes will be com­
ing forth in future years. 

The decade of the 90's is upon us. If the Lord tarries it will bring a great 
deal of change to our denomination. We need to seek the face of God and 
pray that a revival fire will carry us into the next century. 
Yours in His service, 
Dr. Roger C. Reeds, General Director 
Randall House Publications 

SUNDAY SCHOOL AND CHURCH TRAJNJNG BOARD 
AND RANDALL HOUSE PUBLICATJONS 

Balaucc Sheets 

february 28, 1989 and f-ebruary 29, 1988 
Assets 

Current assets: ill2 
Cnsh and interest bearin,g deposits 
Accounts receavahle: $ 76.279 

Trade, net of nllowance for doubtful accounts 
of $8,000 an 1989 and $8,71 8 rn 1988 

169,696 IJue from offilaated or#tanization (note 7) 
Employees 

Total recervables 1,911 

171,607 
Inventory, at lower of cost (lir~-m. fi rst-out metlaod) or market 

849,532 Deferred charges 

·1 otal current assets 17,613 

I , 115,031 
Property, plant and equipment and capitalized leases (notes 2 and 3): 

Land 
Bualdmg 127,873 
Pranting service equipment 638,195 

483,139 Office and administrative equipment 
273,243 Automobiles and trucks 

68,401 

Less occurnulnted deprecintion and arnortizntion 1,590, 85 I 

691,100 
Net property, plant and equipment and capitalized leases 

899,751 

$ 2,01 4,782 

80 

.!ill 

166,880 

184,074 
42,511 

55 

226,640 

700,037 
17,278 

1,110,835 

127,873 
637,602 
420,578 
436,713 
53,609 

1,676,375 
689,541 

986,834 

2,097,669 

F nd Balance Liabahties and u 

t habihties: . ( te 3) 
Cullen bl to bank d "talized lease obhgataons no 

NoleS r•Y• e r long-term debt an cnpl 
Current anstallments o 
Accounts rayable 

Accrued exren:,es nization (note 7) 
Due to affiliate orga 
Cu(tonaer deposits 

Total current liabilities . . ole 3 
. I" d lease obhgallons (n ) debt and cnpata aze Long- term 

Fund balance 

Commitments (notes 4,5 and 7) 

$ 150,000 
107,046 
234,673 

46,717 
105,360 

643,796 

36?,173 

1,003,813 

$ 2,014,782 

. . d Changes in Fund Balance 
Statements of Act.Jvtly an 29 1988 

28 1989 and February • Years ended February ' 

Revenues: 
Net sales: 

Curraculum 
Randall House books 
Merchandase 
Bulletins 
Vacation Bible School 
llookslore 
Printing 
Other sales 

Net 'ales 
Freight and handling 

Other income 
1 

les (note 7) 
. . . on hymna sa Comamssaon mcome 

Gain on di~J)OSilion of assets 

Ellpenses: 
Cost of sales: 

· · of year Inventory at beg.annang 
Merchandise purchases 

Depreciation . 
Editorial and printing preparataon 

Pr inling production 
Spanasb department 

Less anventory at end of year 

d dmioistrative: Selling, general ao a 
Admanistretive 
Bookstore 
Bookkeeping 
Bualding 
IJepreciallon 

General 
Interest ellpense 
Sales and promotion 

Shipping 

Total ellpenses 

. les to rinnncial statements. See accompanyang 00 

81 

s 1,723,027 
86,546 
22,037 
80,900 
10,5?1 

147,930 
10,436 
80,263 

2,161,710 
97,219 

4,725 
41,372 

6,591 
2,311,617 

700,037 
265,328 

48,612 
371,870 
631.622 

75,763 
2,093,232 

849,532 
1,243,700 

86,858 
99,881 

136,178 

137,064 
86,741 
56,779 
82,457 
82,997 

166,921 
935,876 

2,179,576 

200,000 
96,528 

317,530 
42,353 

145,349 

801,760 

359,792 

936,117 

2,097,669 

1,686,070 
84,098 
34,166 
76,199 

6,959 
125,957 

8,619 

80,785 
2,102,853 

66,963 
7,180 

249 
3,548 

2,180,793 

534,940 
276,507 

38,007 
396,347 

693,543 
91,233 

2,030,577 
700,037 

1,330,540 

85,347 
84,527 

114,942 

128,238 
106,157 
105,240 
70,080 
67,973 

133,583 
896,087 

2,226,627 



Excess of revenues 
before youth D over (under) expenses 

youth epDrtment 
Department (note 6) 

Excess of revenues over u 
Fund balance be . . ( nder) expenses 
Fund b I ' gmnmg of year 

a ance, end of year 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended FebrUDry 28, 
1989 •od February 29 

Cash Flows r 
. rom Operating Activiries 

Net earnings (loss) 

Adjustmenrs to rec ., onc1 e net e · 
provided by opera!' .. arnlngs to net cash 

D . . mg aciJVIIies 
eprecrahon and amo I' . 

G · r rzahon 
orn on disposal of e . 

(Increase) de . qurpment crease 111 • 

Receivables · 

Inventories 

Deferred charges 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

~~:,:rom doffifia.led organizalion 
mer eposrts 

Net cash used b 
y operating activities 

Cash flows from lnv r 
Purch es rng Activities 

ase of equrpmenl 

Proceeds from disposition of equipment 

Net cash used b . . y Investing act ' ., . 1v1 res 
Cash flows from Fioa . 

Proceeds from: ncmg Activities 

Shorr- term debt 
Lonj!- lerm debt 

Repayments of: 

ShorHerm debt 
Long- term debt 

Net cash provided ( 
Net . used) by financing achviues 

mcrease (decrease) . c tn cash 
ash at begu'Uling of year 

Cash II end of year 

See accompanying notes t fi . 
o rnanctal statements. 

Noles to Financial State menLs 
'II february 28 19 

te Board operntes under II • 89 and February 29 1988 

' 1988 

s 

s 

132,04 I 

(64,345) 

67,696 
936,117 

s 1,003,813 

1989 
~ 

67,696 

135,353 

(6,591) 

55,033 
( 149,495) 

(335) 

(82,857) 
4,364 

105,360 
(145,349) 

(16,821) 

(60,529) 

18,850 

(41 ,679) 

103,611 

(50,000) 
(85, 712) 

(32, 101) 

(90,601) 

166,880 

(45,1~) 

~ 
CI14,36J) 

L,oso.418 
936,ii7 

1988 
~ 

(114,361) 

144, 164 

(3,548) 

(67,279) 
( 165,097) 

(4,466) 

27,172 

(450) 

145,349 

(38,516) 

(361 ,569) 

68,000 

(293,569) 

295,000 

355,062 

(200,000) 

(80,317) 

369,745 

37,660 

129,220 

76,279 166,880 

Uoord of l.>trecrors. te auspices of lhe National Ass . • 
OCtllhOn of free W'JI 1 Uaphsls Dnd is o · .,.ovcrned by D (I) Suruma nificant Ace . ountrn Pol' · tCJes 

82 

(2) 

(3) 

NoleS to financial Statemenls, continued 

Inventories 
ln•entories .re stated at the lower of cost or nlllrket, with cost being determined by use of the first- in, 

first-out method. 

l'roucrty. l'lanl and Equipment 
Properly, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provtded using the straight-line method. 

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, renewals, and betterments that do not significantly extend the 

useful lives of assets are expensed os incurred. 

Income Ta xes 
The Board is exempt from Federal and state income taxes; accordingly, no provisions for income taxes is 

made in the accounts. 

Change in Presentation 
The 1989 financial st.atements include n statement of cash flows showing cosh and cosh equivlents provided 

1nd used by operating, investing and financing activities in place of 1 statement of changes in financinl 
position as presented in prior yeors. Amounts for 1988 hove been restnted to conform with the 1988 

presentation. 

Cash and Cash DquivalenLs 

For purposes o f the statement of cash nows, the Board constders all cash funds, cash bank accounts and 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity withtn three months of the balance sheet dale to be 

cash and cash equivalents. 

ProperlY . Plant and Equipment and Capitalized Leases (sec note 3} 

Components of capit.alized leases are as follows: 
1989 1988 

205,879 205,879 

66,523 66,523 Printing service equipment 
Office and administrative equipment 

s 

272,402 272,402 

Less accumulated amortization 
56,988 23,096 

215,414 s===== 
249,306 

Depreciation and amortization charged to operations computed on ll1e straight- line melltod was $135,353 in 

1989 and $144, 164 in 1988. 

Long- term debt and Capitalized Lease Obligations 

A summary of long-term debt and capitalized lease obhgations is as follows: 
1989 

Long-term debt: 

8 9' to 14.4% equipment obltgattons, maturing throu~h 
January 1993 payable monthly $3 ,290 includtng mterest, 

secured by related equipment. 

11.5% unsecured installment nole, payable monthly 
at $466 including interest through January 1992. 

13.5% unsecured installment note. 

s 

10.75% to 13.875% installment obligations payable to llte 
Board of Retirement and Insurance of the Notional Association 
o f rree Will Onplists, pnynhle in nmnlhly tnslnlltnents of 
$4,242 including interest, thruujth rehrunry 1994. 

Toto I long -term debt 

Capitalized lease obligations: 

9.1% to 15.8% obligntior1s under capitnlleases payable monthly 

$5,443 - see note 2 

83 

63,043 

13,799 

192,109 

268,95 I 

205,268 

474,219 

60,979 

17,565 

9,630 

122,500 

210,674 

245,646 

456,320 



Noles lo Financial Slate . rnenls, conLJnucd 

Less current maturites of Jon -
lease obligations g term debt onu capitol 

107,046 

Matunties of long-term debt d $=~3,;;6,;,7~, 1::;7,;;;3= 
Long-term debt: an C:lp11.1lized leases ore as follows: 

1990 
1991 
1992 

1993 
1994 

$ 6 1,887 

60,298 
51,463 
47,397 

47,906 

Capitalized leases: S 268,951 

96,528 

359,792 

1 he Board leas a . . es certmn equipment under en . 

r:,~:t:::~i~~ ~~~~:.:·~~:i~1 1~f1~·;~l'~·entdnls j 11p~~~e':sa:~s11~::;e:~tel~~~r~~:·::~l~gationds are being 
• 
1 

· "' u.1se on t1te le . . . . · Impute usmg 
he following is" sched l b ssor s tmpllctt rate of return 

f u e, Y years of lut · · · 
os o February 28, 1989. , ure llllnamum lease payments d . un er capatal leases 

1990 

1991 
1992 
1993 

1994 

Less amount representing Interest 

Present value f . o net mmamullt le:~se p:tyments 

$ 

$ 

65,3 J I 
65,311 

65,311 

32,312 

26,049 

254,294 

49,026 

205,268 

(4) Ooeraliug Leases 

(5) 

(6) 

The Board leases · . certam equtpment u d 
operatmg leases amounted to $74 n er a number of operating leases Ren 
Mmimum annual rentals d ,349 for the yenr ended February 28 ;989 t expense under such 

, un er noncancelable o . ' . 
I 990 pernllng leases are as follows: 

Pension 

1991 
1992 

1993 

The Board participates in t1•e master . 

$ 60,281 
52,026 

9,860 

2,01 8 

124,185 

As~ociation of Free Will B ' pensiOn plan of the Bonrd of Ret 
covered. The policy is to ~~t~sts. 1 he plan is contributory and em larement .and Insurance of the National 
$16,055 in 1988 '!he . n pensmn cost nccrued. Pensaon ev p oyees wath two years of servace are 

· pensaon plan · d fi ~reuses amou 1 d S 
actuarial values are equal t I as a e med contnbullon nnnully I n e to 17,690 in 1989 ami 

0 or ess than tl Pan. Under tJae 1 
actuaraal praor servic . , te accumulateu value of tJ p an, parllcapants 

e or past service benefits and no un~ d d Je assets. There is no unfundeu 
Youlh Dcoarlment un e value of accrued plan benefits. 

·1 h e purpose of the Youth !Je 
ministries and services t . partment of the Free Wall Baptist Sunua 
the department's achviti=s~outJt nnd )·outh oworkers of the 1\ssocultior:. ~;:::o:o~::rd is. to proviue 

rng JS a summary of 

Revenue from ~ con erences and related se . rvaces 

Expenditures for conferences a 
General and administ r· nu relnteu services 

ra 1 ve expenses 

Excess of expenses over revenue 
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s 

$ 

1989 1988 
62,433 43,470 

52,856 35,510 
73,922 76,487 

126,778 I J 1,997 

(64,345) (68,527) 

(8) 

1\ recment with 1\.flltialcd Or anizalion to Distribute ll mnals 

1 he Board has ap,reed to warehou~e anu uistnbute hymn:~ls for the Executi~e Board of the National 
A~sociation of Free Will Baptists. further, the Board will invoice the customer, collect funds and remit 
<uch collection~. net of comm•~ions of S. 195 per hymnal sold, to the Executi~·e Buaru. As of February 28, 
1989 t•

1
e Boaru was warehousin~ appruxianately 51,000 hymnals w1th nn e~timated replacement value of 

~55,000. The following summarizes the tr:msachons unuer thas agreement as of February 28, 198_9. 

Total sales of hym031s S 436,981 
Less total commissions e;JCneu (41,62 1) 
Less remittnnces made to the Executive lloord (190,000) 

$==1=0;;5 ·:360~ /\mount due to Executave IJnaad 

Presentalion 
Certam reclossi lications have been made in the 1988 financial statements to conform to the current year 

presentation . 

~!.~ 
~ ...- II ill , "'t'al & \lien. P.( . 

I " \ ltsll 
I • til I • • ol 

\ "' \ ' \II." 

l<llllllll 

Jntlcvcmlcnt Auditors' Report 

Board of Oireclors 
Sunday Sehoul anti Church Training Uoartl 

anti Randall House PublicatiuiiS 

1\niH\\t•l'C.(I--.\l( Ull\\.. C dlh I 

it' t t..lld I lod;nl} 1\.,uln.ud 
'utr..: h' \ 
11,, '"""'"' 1 N l7ll2 i 
hi~ li7- \4~') 

We hnve audited lhe bnlnnce ~heel of Sundny School nnd Church 'l anininl!, iloaad nnd Rnnu:lll llou~e 
l'ublicnllons ns <Jf Feluu:11y l8, 1989, nnd the 1elnlcd slnlements of nclivity nnd chnnges in fund hnlnnces 
end casb Jlows for tl1e yenr then ended 1 hese financia l statements ore the responsibility of tJ1e Boord's 

manngemenl. Our responsibility is to expaess on opanion on tlrese financial statements based on our 

audit. 'I he financtnl statements of Sunday School anu Church Training IJoard and Randall !louse 
Publicotions as of Fehrun•y 29, 1988, \\ere ouditeu by other auuit01s whose report dnleu May 24, 1988, 

expressed on unqunli!ieu opinion on tJ1ose stoteanents. 

We conducted our audit 111 accorun11Ce wath ~enernlly occepteu auditing sl:lndards. Those stand:uds 

requne tJ1at we plan and perfurm the nudit to obtaan reasonable ossur ance about whel11er ll•e finoncial 

statements nre free of analerinl misstntement. An ouuit includes ex:unininJ!, on a lest basis, ev1dence 
supporhn~ !he amounts and di~closures in the finoncaol st.1lements. An auuit also includes assessing the 

accountinst principles used nnu siJ!nificant estimates n1nde by rnanngement, as well as evalunting the 
overall finonci11l statement pre~entntion. We beheve that our audat proviues a re.1sonnble bosis for our 

opinion. 

In our opinion, the 1989 !in:mcanl stntements referreu to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
tJ1e financial position of Sunday School nnu Church Taaanang Board ond Randall !louse Publications as 

of February 28, 1989, nnu the results of its achvity and changes 111 fund balances and cash (lows for llre 

year l11en enued in conformity with generally accepteu accounting principles. 

Apail 19, 1989 
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Curriculum 

Sunday School Curriculum 
Spanish Curriculum 

1990 Budget 

Revenues 

Church Training Curriculum 

Total Curriculum Sales 
Less Discount to Bookstores 

Other Sales 

Randall House Books 
Merchandise 
Bulletins 
Vacation Bible School 
Bookstore Sales 
Printing Sales 
Sunday School/Church Training Helps 
Sunday School Helps - Spanish 
Competitive Activities 
Children's Church 
ETTA 
Camping Materials 
Enlargement Campaigns 

Total Other Sales 
Total All Sales 

Other Income 

Freight and Postage 
Service Charges 
NYC '90 
Truth and Peace '90 
YET '90 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Other Income 
Total AU Revenues 

Cost of Sales 

Merchandise Purchases 
Sunday School 

Expenses 

Sunday School/Church Training Helps 
Randall House Books 
Merchandise 
Competitive Activities 
Vacation Bible School Materials 

86 

$2,118,730.00 
40,000.00 

145,005.00 
$2,303,735.00 

350,000.00 
$1,953,735.00 

$ 110,000.00 
40,000.00 
80,000.00 
8,000.00 

170,000.00 
20,000.00 
50,000.00 
2,000.00 

25,000.00 
4,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,000.00 
6,000.00 

$ ·518,000.00 
$2,471,735.00 

$ 65,000.00 
1,800.00 

25,000.0Q 
18,000.00 
2,400.00 

20,000.00 

$132,200.00 
$2,603,935.00 

$ 55,000.00 
12,000.00 
40,000.00 
60,000.00 
5,000.00 

20,000.00 

Bulletins 
ETTA . 
Enlargement Campatgns 
Miscellaneous Costs 

Cost of Printing 
Editorial 

Salaries . 
Youth Division Salanes 
Travel 
Housing 
FICA 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
Royalties 
Writer's Fees 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Postage 
Curriculum Development 
Telephone 
Miscellaneous 

Preparation 
Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
Art Services 
Free Lance Layout 
Maintenance 
Outside Typesetting 
Postage 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Production 
Salaries 
Travel 
Equipment Rental 
Negatives 
Plates 
Ink 

87 

60,000.00 
2,500.00 
4,000.00 
5,000.00 

$ 263,500.00 

$ 87,000.00 
12,264.00 
10,000.00 
6,000.00 
8,000.00 
1,000.00 
2,000.00 
8,000.00 

32,000.00 
3,000.00 
8,000.00 
1,000.00 
8,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

$ 188,264.00 

$ 93,548.00 
1,000.00 
7,000.00 

38,000.00 
7,500.00 
2,500.00 

10,000.00 
2,000.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 
9,000.00 
1,000.00 
9,000.00 
2,000.00 

$ 184,548.00 

$ 151,268.00 
2,000.00 

19,000.00 
7,000.00 
5,000.00 
5,000.00 



Stock 5,000.00 
125,000.00 Postage 8,000.00 Outside Printing 
200,000.00 Telephone 7,000.00 Color Separation 
12,000.00 FICA 2,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 
10,000.00 Retirement 8,000.00 Telephone 
1,000.00 Insurance 1,000.00 Supplies 
8,000.00 Miscellaneous 

$ 141,240.00 Insurance 
12,000.00 FICA 
11,000.00 Retirement Shipping $ 73,112.00 4,000.00 Miscellaneous 
1,000.00 Salaries 60,000.00 

$ 573,268.00 
Freight and Postage 4,000.00 
Travel 10,000.00 Cost of Operations 
Supplies 3,000.00 Administration Equipment Rental 10,000.00 Salaries $ 51,584.00 Equipment Maintenance 1,000.00 Housing and Utilities 12,000.00 Telephone 5,200.00 Travel 

9,000.00 FICA 2,000.00 Supplies Retirement 4,000.00 1,000.00 Equipment Maintenance 200.00 Insurance 1,000.00 Equipment Rental 
500.00 Miscellaneous 

$ 173,312.00 Postage 
500.00 Telephone 

1,200.00 Youth $ 50,056.00 FICA (12,264.00 in Editorial) 8,500.00 Salaries 4,000.00 Insurance 
2,800.00 Travel 500.00 Retirement 
2,000.00 Supplies 25,000.00 Miscellaneous 

500.00 NYC '90 18,000.00 
$ 89',784.00 Truth and Peace '90 2,500.00 

YET '90 1,000.00 Sales and Promotion Postage 1,000.00 Salaries $ 63,406.00 Telephone 4,000.00 Travel 
10,000.00 FICA 1,800.00 Supplies 
1,000.00 Retirement 5,200.00 Advertising 
8,000.00 Insurance 2,000.00 Promotion 
9,000.00 Miscellaneous 

$ 115,056.00 Postage 
7,000.00 Telephone 
1,000.00 Spanish $ 43,888.00 FICA 
2,000.00 Salaries 2,000.00 Retirement 
1,200.00 Travel 2,000,00 Insurance 
2,500.00 Equipment Rental 3,000.00 Miscellaneous 
1,000.00 Translation 800.00 

$ 106,106.00 Postage 800.00 
Telephone 800.00 Bookkeeping and Order Supplies 3,400.00 Salaries $ 84,240.00 FICA 1,200.00 Travel Retirement 4,000.00 1,000.00 Supplies Insurance 1,000.00 3,000.00 Equipment Rental 

12,000.00 Miscellaneous 
$ 62,888.00 Equipment Maintenance 

10,000.00 
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Bookstore 
Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
Equipment Maintenance 
Postage 
Utilities 
Rent 
Advertising 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

Building 
Salaries 
Travel 
Supplies 
Equipment Rental 
Eq~i~ment Maintenance 
Butldmg Maintenance 
Bu.il_d.ing Improvements 
Ut11JtJes 
Building Insurance 
Telephone 
FICA 
Retirement 
Insurance 
Miscellaneous 

General 
Taxes 
Board Travel 
Legal and Auditing 
Interest Expense 
Miscellaneous 
Depreciation 
Reduction of Capital Obr . 
Working Capital JgatJons 

Total All Revenues 
Total All Expenses 

90 

$ 41 ,184.00 
1,000.00 
1,000.00 

200.00 
300.00 
200.00 

4,500.00 
32,000.00 
6,000.00 
3,000.00 

900.00 
2,600.00 
1,000.00 

$ 93,884.00 

$ 50,960.00 
1,800.00 
5,000.00 
9,000.00 
5,000.00 
6,000.00 

10,000.00 
30,000.00 
20,000.00 

600.00 
3,500.00 
1,500.00 
6,000.00 
2,000.00 

$ 151,360.00 

$ 9,000.00 
12,000.00 
10,000.00 
50,000.00 
10,000.00 

140,000.00 
160,000.00 
69,725.00 

$ 460,725.00 

$2,603,935.00 
$2,603,935.00 

The Sunday School and Church Training Board respectfully 
requests that the foUowing change be granted: 

That a change in the National Youth Conference dress code be allowed. 
The change involves Section 1, Point B, Item 1, from "Boys and men are to 
wear coats and slacks," to "Boys and men are to wear a shirt, tie and 
slacks (coats are optional)." 

National Youth Conference, 1989 

Theme: SonShine '89 
Registration- 1380 
Bible Competition entries- 109 
Music and Arts Competition entries- 614 
Total entries-723 
Keynote Service Speaker- Kent Hubbard 
Organized TEAM Youth Congress Officers 

President-Chris Truett (North Carolina) 
Vice President-Donald Myers (Colorado) 
Secretary-Charity VanWinkle (Mississippi) 

1990 National Youth Evangelistic Team Announced 
1. Larae Clyatt, Illinois 
2. Melissa White, Alabama 
3. Diane Walls, Missouri 
4. Jamie Harris, Texas 
5. Paula King, Oklahoma 
6. Angie Wolfenbarger, Tennessee 
7. Donald Myers, Colorado 
8. Chad Shockley, Kentucky 
9. Mark Stone, Tennessee 

10. Greg Cavett. Oklahoma 
11. Donnie Price, Illinois 
12. Eric Thomeson, Florida 
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Eltpenses: 

389,329 
389,329 453,299 

AdministraiJVe eJtpenditures 
MissiOnary maintenance 
Depreciation 

Loss on sale of investments 
Loss on sale of assets 

I ,409,891 1,409,891 1,427,994 
15, 176 15,176 24,239 

8,551 5,659 
5,659 1,984 

394,988 
Total upenses 

Eltcess (deficiency) 
support and revenue 

1,409,891 I 5,176 I ,820,055 1,916,067 

over eltpeoses 

Fund balances, beginning of year 
Transfer to plant for acquistions 

Fund balances, end of year 
$ 

(53,598) 

(2,927) 
(14,380) 

(70,905) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988 

(15,176) (68,774) 

46,200 43,273 
14,380 

45,404 (25,501) 

Board of Home M issions ts operated under the ausptces of The Nauonal Assoctatton of Free Will 
BapllMs. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles and practices followed by the Board of Home Mtssions of National 
Assoctallon of Free Will Baptists are presented below to asstsl the reader 10 evaluating the financ ial 
statements. The financial statements are presented in accordance with standards recommended in 
• Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organizations• an Audit and Accounting Guide (Amencan Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants). 

Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observance of limiiJltions and restrict tons placed on the use of resources available 
to the Board, the accounts of the Board are maintained in accordance with the principles of "fund 
accounting • . This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are c lassified for 
accounting and reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activtties or obJectives 
specified. 

The assets, liabilittes and fund balances of the Board are reported •n self- balancing fund groups as 
follows: 

a. Operating funds - such funds include unrestricted funds available for support of 
Board operattons and restricted funds for support of mtsstons. Unrestricted 
funds are reported as revenue in the year recetved or accrued. Restricted funds 
are recorded as additions to deferred revenue. Such restn cted operating funds 
are recorded as revenues during the penod they are upended. 

b. Plant funds - such funds represent resources restncted for plant acquisttions 
and funds expended for plane 

Plant Assets and Deoreciation 

Uses of operating funds for plant acquisitions ore accounted for as transfers to plant funds. 
Dcprecullion of equtpment is provided over the esllmateo.l u~c:ful lives of the re~pective assets on a 
~l raight lme basis. 

Income Taxes 

The Board of Home Missions is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income 
taltes has been made 1n the accompanying financial statements. 
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(93,95 1) 

J37,224 

43,273 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(T) 

(8) 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Plant Funds 

A summary Of Plant fund assets ts as follows: 

Furniture and Equipment 
Automobiles 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net invested in plant 

Restricted Deferred Revenue 

. stricted deferred revenue is as foll ows: Changes tn re 

Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions 

Funds available 
Expenses 

Balance, end of year 

s 119,935 
20,747 

140,682 
95,278 

s 45,404 

s 283,874 
1,432,922 

1,716,796 
1,409,891 

s 306,905 

Deferred Compensation m nsation 
. ach full - lime employee defe rred co pe 

The Board of Home Missions provtdes fore d s of service. The amounts are 
based on a formula combimng a ~rcent of salary an year 
payable when employment is termmated. 

be 31 1988 is as follows : A summary of the liability at Decem r • $ 101,239 

Balance, beginning of year 
Contributions for benefit of: 

Missionaries 
Administrative employees 

Terminations 

Balance, end of year $ 

21,980 
8,229 

131,448 
9,829 

121,619 

Note Receivable ld . Wisconsin. Such note bears 
. $15 576 relates to property so '" $14 715 ·s The note receivable amountmg to ' h . I dmg mterest. A final payment of ' ' 

. able at $25 l per mont me u 
14 % interest and IS repay . ed by the real property. 

J !990. The note ts secur required in anuary • 

Commitments . $4
3 000 

for the guarantee of debt 
The Board has contingent liabihues tn the amount of approxtmately • 

relating to certain churches. 

R I ted Partv Transactions . d 
e a 'V h s the office facthlles an I an affiliated orgamzallon, s are 

The Church Eltteosion Loan Fund, nc., . at no c~t. Also, the Board has an II% note 
administrative staff of the Board of Home ~~s~o~amzation to be repaid monthly in installments of 
payable m the amount of $17,462 to thts re ate or 
$274 with final payment in 1996. 

Notes Payable 

Notes payable consists of the following: . . . . 
. A ry MISSISSlppl Note payable secured by renl property '" mo ' 

ll% note payable to related party (see note 7) 
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s 8,316 
17,462 

S 25,778 
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Schedule of Unrestricted F d as un and Restricted Fund Expenses 
Compared to Budget 

Unrestriclcd Fund E xpenses: 
Administrative 

Salaries 

Computer service 
Rent 

Printing and postage 
Office supplies and eq . u1pment 
Housing allowance 

PaY roll taxes 
Legal and audit 
Telephone 
Miscellaneous 

Employee savings 
Insurance 

Board member expense 

Automobile and travel 
Promotion 
Lllerature 

Personal revivals 
UtilitieS 

Interest expense 

Total unrestricted fund expense 

Res~iclcd fund expense: 

MISSIOnary maintenance: 
Salaries 

Travel and promotion 

Employee savings expense 
Postage and printing 
Miscellaneous 

Land and bui~ding 

Total restricted fund expense 

Plant fund: 

Deprecullion 

Year coded December 31, 1988 

s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

Actual 
Budget Expenses 

165,000 149,738 
2,500 1,076 

19,000 18,284 
60,000 69,788 
15,000 11,811 
42,000 30,079 
17,500 7,732 
4,000 3,900 

14,000 8,604 
7,000 6,454 

10,000 8,228 
22,500 22,988 
10,000 8,887 
35,000 20,184 
5,000 1,900 

14,000 5,983 
16,000 6,000 
6,500 4,160 

2,933 

465,000 389,329 

1,240,000 I ,224,552 
60,000 64,246 
25,000 21,980 
30,000 25,314 
15,000 16,892 
45,000 56,907 

1,415,000 1,409,89 I 

20,000 15,176 

CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN FUND, INC. 
Balance Sheels 

December 31, 1988 and 1987 

Assets 
1988 

s 19,160 

966,806 

602,647 

Interest bearing de . poSits 
Marketable securities a 
$94 I 500 . 198 ' t cost (market value 

• In 8 and $960 957 . N t · • m 1987) 
o es receivable (note 6) 

Accrued interest 
4,890 

Total assets 

Schedulc,l 

Actual 
(Over) 
Under 

Budget 

15,262 
1,424 

716 
(9, 788) 
3,189 

11 ,921 
9,768 

100 
5,396 

546 
1,772 
(488) 

1,113 
14,216 

3,100 
8,017 

10,000 

2,340 
(2,933) 

75,671 

15,448 

(4,246) 
3,020 

4,686 
( 1,892) 

( 11,907) 

5,109 

4,824 

1987 

257,259 

1,021,164 

323,233 
11,103 

See accompanying notes to financial state ments. 

s 1,593,503 1,612,759 
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l-iabilities and Fund Balance 

LIJblliUCS: 
Accrued 1nterest 
Revoc~ble trust (note 2) 
Deferred compensation (note 3) 

Notes payable (note 4) 

Total habJiities 

fund balance: 
Undesignated 
Designated (note 5) 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Statement of Support and Revenue, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

Years ended December 31, 1988 and 1987 

Support and revenue: 

Contnbutions 
Investment income 
Interest income 

Total support and revenue 

Expenses: 
Interest expense 
M iscellaJICOUS 

Total expenses 

Excess of support and revenues 

over expenses 
Fbnd balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year (note 5) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

Notes to Financial Statemenls 

DeGember 31, 1988 and 1987 

$ 20,459 20,957 

75,000 75,000 

31,943 35,322 

1,178,155 1,229,820 

1,305,557 1,361,099 

143,634 107,348 

144,312 144,312 

287,946 251,660 

$ 1,593,503 1,612, 759 

1988 1987 

$ 700 

102,523 90,874 

45,883 43,776 

149,106 134,650 

109.647 97,689 

3,173 214 

112,820 97,903 

36,286 36,747 

251,660 214,913 

$ 287,9.t:46 251,660 

The Church Extension Loan Fund, Inc. is operated under the ausp1ces of the Nauonal Association of Free W11l 
Oapllsts. The fund is administered under the dlfecllon of the Board of llome M iss10ns. This fund was eslllbhshec.l 

pumauly to assist churches in their bu1lding projects. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The major accounting principles and practices followed by the Church Extension Loan Fund, lnc. are 
presented below to assist the reader in evaluating the financ1al statements. The financial statements are 
presented in accordance with standards recommended in • Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organizations, • an 

Audit and Accounting Guide (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants). 

Basis of Financial Statements 
The accompanying fmancial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Income Taxes 
The Church Extension Loan Fund, Inc. is exempt from income taxes; accordingly no provision for income 

taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 
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(7) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

Noles to Financial Statements, Continued 

Revocable Trust 

The Loan Fund · · · make IS recipient of a revocable trust ID the amou 
payments to the beneficiary of75% f . nt of $75,000. The Loan Fund . . 

o Interest earned on the trust fun . . IS requued to 
Deferred Comoensation ds Within certain lim.itati _ ODS. 

The Board of Ho M ' . me ISSions, a related ar 
compensation based on • formul . ~ ty (see note 7), provides for each full- . 
payable to the employee when a combmm~ • per~e:nl of salary and years of se .time employee deferred 
periodically to the Loan Fund employment IS lermtnaled. Certain employee's ::rice. The amounts ere 

· ances are transferred 

A summary of the liability at December 31 I 988 . 
• and I 987 IS as follows: 

Balance, beginning of year 

Transfer from the Board of Home M ' . 
Withdrawals ISSIOnS 

Balance, end of year 

Noles Payable 

!ill 
$ 35,322 

5,080 
8,459 

$ 31,943 

1987 -
27,654 

7,668 

35,322 

Notes payable, amounting to $1 178 ISS . 
to individuals and churches. Su~h ~nds :il:9!81and $1,229,820 in 1987, consist of 5% to 8% d d 

Des
. oaned to quallfymg h h eman notes 
rgnated Fund Balance c urc es to finance building projects. 

The Loan Fund · received as a contnbution 
Alask.a. This contribution bas been d • proceeds from the sale of church real prope I . 
such time that new fa Tu· eslgnated by the admimstrauon of th Lo r y lD Anchorage, 

Cl I es are acquired. e an Fund to be held in trust to 

Notes Receivable 

10% to 12% 1 • noes recetvable are as follows: 

Secured by fi 1 Irs mortgage on the I rea estate: 

First Free Will Baptist Church - Salem 0 • regon 

Grace Free Will Baptist Church - Memphl·s T . , ennessee 
First Free Will Baptist Ch h urc - Fort Collins, Colorado 

Thompson Memorial Free Will Baptist Church- v· I 
The Harvest Free Will . tne ancJ, New Jersey 

Baptist Church - Colorado S . 
H · , pnngs 

entage Free Will Baptist Church -Elkhart lnd . • lana 
Trt- Cities Free Will Baptist Church - K 
M ennewlck, Washtngton 

aranatha Free Will Bapltst Church - Omaha, Nebraska 

Heartland Free w·11 Ba . I piJst Church - Ehzabethto K M ~. ~t~~ 
aryland State Mission Board 

Heritage Free Will Baptist Church - F ed . 
guaranteed by the Ma I d r encksburg, Ylrgin•a 

ry an State Home MISSIOns Board 

Unsecured notes payable: 
Heritage Free w ·11 B . 

1988 1987 

s 28,797 32,410 

27,014 76,959 

47,694 12,781 

54,146 5,283 

33,499 25,637 

76,249 59,438 

23,600 25,000 

99,270 

44,448 

80,000 

17,387 19,495 

I aptist Church - Gilbert, Arizona 
Alabama State Mission Board 49,133 47,475 

Board of Home Missions (note 7) 3,948 
17,462 18,755 

Related Party Transactions S 602,647 323,233 

The Loan Fund Shares office ~ T . 
cost. acl liJes and administrative staff With th B d e oar of Home Missions at no 
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/\S indicated in note (6), the Loan Fund has 1 II W. not.e receivable from the Board of Home Missions to 
be repaid monthly in installments of $274 with final payment in 1996. The balance at December 31, 

1988 amounted to $17,462. 
/\s indicated in note (3}, The Board of Home Missions transferred $5,080 in 1988 and $7,668 in 1987 to 

fund deferred compensation arrangements. 

~~~ 
~ ~ Hill, Neal & Allen, P.C. 

Cernfied Public.: Ac.:coumants 

li,t)•\lhll 
llll'>< Ill No:.tl 
:'in1o.) '> Alt.·n 

Indeoendent Auditors' Reoort 

Board of Directors 
Board of Home Missions of The 

National Association of Free Will Baptists: 

lhl'nl"'"xl F'l'lltiJW ( ,nrcr 
7ol Old llk.i-.M") ll.•ub.u,l 
:-.uu,· h \ l 
llt<·nt\\\Mlll IN Hl\.!7 
ol"> 377- HW1 

We have audited the halnnce sheet of Ooord of llomo Mtssions uf The Nntinnnl Assnciotinn of Ftee 
Will Baptists as of December 31, 1988, and the related statement of support and revenue, expenses, 
capital additions, transfers among funds and changes in fund balances for the year then ended. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board's management. Our responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The financial 
statements of Board of Home Miss ions of The National Association of Free Will Baptists as of 
December 31, 1987, were audited by other auditors whose report dated February 8, 1988, expressed 

an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our aud1t provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the 1988 financ1al statements referred to above present fairly , in all material respects, 

the financial position of Board of Home Miss1ons of The Nallonal Association of Free Will 
Baptists as of December 3 I, 1988, and the support and revenue, expenses, capital additions, 

transfers among funds and changes 1n fund balances for the year then ended in conformity with 

generally accepted accounllng principles. 
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Proposed Faith Budget For 1990 

Missionary Maintenance 
1989 Budget 1990 Budget 

Salaries 
$1,265,000.00 $1,265,000.00 Travel & Promotion 

65,000.00 65,000.00 Employee Savings 
25,000.00 25,000.00 Postage & Printing 
30,000.00 30,000.00 Miscellaneous 
20,000.00 20,000.00 Land & Building Fund 
60,000.00 60,000.00 Total 

$1,465,000.00 $1,465,000.00 *Administrative 

Salaries 
$ 140,000.00 $ 145,000.00 Housing 

30,000.00 35,000.00 Social Security 
10,000.00 10,000.00 Pay Roll Taxes 
9,000.00 6,500.00 Employee Savings 
7,000.00 8,000.00 Insurance 

20,000.00 22,500.00 Utilities 
5,000.00 4,500.00 Total 

$ 221,000.00 $ 231,500.00 *Missionary Assistance 

Printing & Postage 
$ 71,000.00 $ 65,000.00 Telephone 

12,000.00 9,000.00 Board Member Expense 
10,000.00 10,000.00 Computer Service 
3,000.00 Auditing 
3,000.00 4,000.00 Miscellaneous 
7,000.00 7,000.00 Total 

$ 106,000.00 $ 95,000.00 *Evangelism 

Auto & Travel 
$ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 Promotion 

8,000.00 8,000.00 Literature 
10,000.00 10,000.00 Revivals 
6,000.00 6,000.00 Roll Call Sunday 
6,000.00 6,500.00 Total 

$ 55,000.00 $ 55,500.00 *Plant 

Office Space 
$ 18,000.00 $ 20,000.00 Equipment & Supplies 

15,000.00 15,000.00 Depreciation 
20,000.00 18,000.00 Total 

$ 53,000.00 $ 53,000.00 
*Total General Fund Budget $ 435,000.00 $ 435,000.00 
Total Faith Budget 

$1 '900,000. 00 $1,900,000.00 
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State 

d State Quotas For 1990 Propose 

1990 Quota 

..... $150,000 ...... 500 ••••• 0 ••••• 0 •••••• 

Alabama · · · · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........... : : : · · · · · · · -· · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -· · . ·9 000 
.. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. . .. ....... ' 

Alaska .. · · · -· · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : : ........ 85,000 
Arizona · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·- ............... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 100,000 
Arkansas · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·::: .............. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ::: ... 2,000 
California · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ................. · · · · · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 7 000 

........ 1 ' Canada ········ ············-····· ................ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·: .... .... 70,000 Colorado . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. 70 000 ................. 
.. . .. .. .. ' Florida .. · · · · · · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 500 

Georgia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............................ .. ......... 2 500 
....... . .. .. ... .. .......... , Hawaii . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 55 000 

••••••••• 0 • • • • • • • • • •••••• 0 • • , Idaho .. .................. -. . . . ................. - 25 000 
•••••••• 0 ••• 0 .. .. ........ ... .. .. ' Illinois ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 1 000 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •••••• 0 , Indiana . · · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 15 000 
.. .. .. .. . .. . .. .. .. . .. .. . ' 

Iowa .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 60 000 
••••• 0 • • • • • • 0 0 0 •• 0 0 •• 0 , Kansas ... -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 500 

• 0 ••• 0 •• 0 • , 

Kentucky ....... -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..................... -................... 2 500 
Louisiana -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ....................................... 2. o' 000 

........ ......... ' Maine .. d ................................................................ :: ............ 500 
Marylan .. · .. -· · · .... · · .... · · · · · · ................. · · .. · · ...... · · · ....... 55,000 
Mexico ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 500 

• • • • • • • • • • 0 0 0 ••• 

0 

•••••• 

Michigan · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ................... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .......... 48,000 
Minnesota . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .................. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 50 000 

. . .. .. .. ..... 1 ' Mississ1pp1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 500 
Missouri . · · · · · · · · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... ·5 000 

.. ................ . ....... , Montana. -· · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 15 000 
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 0 • • • • ) 

Nebraska · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · - . . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 500 
New Hampshire · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ::::: ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · :::::::: 500 
New Mexico· ························ · · · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · · · · · · 150 000 

• 0 ••• 0 ••••• 

New York · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... :: ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 90' 000 
North Carolina·· ························ ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·i5o' 000 
Ohio ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. : . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -· · 6, 000 
Oklahoma ......... -... -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............................ 1, 000 

............................... .. .............. ' Oregon ...... -.. · .. .. .. .. ............ · .. -.. · .. 2 500 
. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . . ......... ' Pennsylvania ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2 000 

..... .. .. ' Puerto Rico · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............ · · · · · · -· · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 90 000 
Rhode Island ............ -. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3, 000 
South Carolina ····· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · :: ........... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · '245 '000 
South Dakota · · ·-· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 31'000 

••••• 0 • • • • • • • • • ' .......... - ............ . Tennessee .... · .... · .. · .. . ........... · .. · .. .. .. .. .. .. . 500 
Texas ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... -. . . . . . . . . . . ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... ... ........ 6 .. 5 000 

............... ........ ' Vermont · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 27 000 
Virginia . · · · · · -· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... :::::: ...... · · · · · · · ·- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ... 3' 000 
Virgin Islands ·························· ............... ·························· .15' 000 

....... ...... ' Washington . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
••••• 0 • 0 West Virginia .. ·········· -·· ··········· 
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Wyoming ............. . 
Other States · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. . .. . . . . . 
Other Income .. ························· .. . ... . .. . .... ·.· .·.·.· .·.· ...... ···· · ·············· · 1,00() 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 ooo 
Total 1990 Quotas . . . . . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . .. · .·: .· .· _.so'ooo 

. . . . . . . . . . . . ' 
... .. .. . .. . .. . .. . ....... . .. . .. . ...... $1,900,000 
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MASTER'S MEN DEPARTMENT REPORT 

The major goal of Master's Men remains the same since 1956: to bring 
the Master and men closer together. Every layman should mirror the 
image of the Master. We challenge our laity to achieve their God-given 
potential in His service. 

Our Executive Secretary, Dr. Melvin Worthington recently stated, "The 
organization is designed to help laymen find their niche in the Lord's work 
... Every Free Will Baptist church needs an active Master's Men chapter. 
The benefits are well worth the effort . ... , 

The laymen supply our denomination with a wealth of resources, includ­
ing talent, time, willingness, as well as tithe. They affect all denominational 
ministries. Their achievements in witness, mission and ministry will provide 
further growth in Master's Men and Free Will Baptist denomination. 

Appreciation 

Raymond Lee (NC), elected in 1977, has served 12 years, the last 6 
years as Chairman of the Board. His leadership as a Board Member began 
during the years the Department labored for growth and expansion with 
our first full-time Director, Brother Loyd Olsan (1975-19&3). I appreciate 
his patience and guidance while I struggled to learn the work as a new 
Director. Lee has given double duty to Master's Men work the past four 
years (1986-1989), also serving as Chairman of Ushering at our National 
Conventions. 

Paul Kennedy (CA), elec ted in 1977, has served 12 years. Kennedy 
brought to the Board experience from another term. He served as a Board 
Member from 1967-1971. His duties in California gave opportunities to 
promote our ministry while serving as State Executive Secretary, State 
Paper Editor, and later as State Moderator. 

James R. Orr (KY), elected in 19&3, has served 6 years. His "retired" 
status has enabled Jim to promote Master's Men in several states. He 
remains active building new churches, traveling with Home Missionary 
Builder Howard Gwartney to the Master's Hands Projec ts. Orr is also 
Chaplain of a group of Avian Owners and Campers. His winter trips to 
warmer states have resulted in several new Master's Men chapters. 

Paul Moore (IL), was elected to the Board in 1982 to an unexpired term 
and again in 1985, serving a total of 6 years. His letter of intent to resign 
was accepted by the Board in the December, 1988 meeting. Moore's in­
volvement continues in our work in Illinois. 

Accomplishments 

LifeMembers and LifeF riends 
LifeMembership has shown impressive growth since its introduction in 

December, 1985. During 1988 the total climbed to 275 LifeMembers , and 
25 LifeFriends among our women. At the time this report is written (May 
15) there are 312 LifeMembers, 30 LifeFriends and 65 men and women 
making monthly payments to achieve Life-status. 
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The funds generated by the LifeMember fees are deposited in the Mas­
ter's Men Endowment Trust, held by the Free Will Baptist Foundation. 
The Trust now totals $34,400. It will provide annual revenue for the Mas­
ter's Men General Fund. The principal amount will never be spent. It will 
remain until the Lord comes back, providing help to the budget every 
year. 

A growing number of laity have included Master's Men as beneficiaries 
for insurance policies, bequests from wills and as recipient of portions of 
Living Trusts. Future income is projected to be over $250,000 through 
these methods of giving. A few sentences in your w ill could make a differ­
ence in the ministry of Master's Men in the fu ture. The fu ture is also a 
part of the work of God. 

Master's Hands Projects 

During 1988, Master's Men continued to help construct new churches. 
Since 1984 our men helped in 22 known Master's Hands Projects. Their 
efforts saved an estimated $500,000 in construction costs. Five requests 
for assistance have been received in 1989. It is conceivable men could be 
involved in a project every month within the next two years. More plan­
ning is needed to provide work opportunities in areas as annual weather 
patterns permit. 

These projects give evidence of the great blessing and accomplishment 
the laymen can provide in Free Will Baptist work. These men simply apply 
their gifts and talents in positive ways to aid the planting and growth of 
churches. 

"Above All ... Take the Shield" 

Membership enlistment has been a problem through the 33-year history 
of Master's Men. Records in the office show about 2,000 laymen participat­
ing in the program. Records from State Associations show 3,400 men 
involved. Such a disparity portrays the need for Men's Fellowship groups, 
prayer groups, etc. to join in the Master's Men national ministry. On a 
practical note, dues from those 1,400 men would have prevented a deficit 
in our budget in three of the past four years. 

Men need to realize their service is to the Master, through Master's 
Men. We all need to learn to ask, "What can I do for Him," rather than, 
"What's in it for me." 

In the first 19 weeks of 1989, the enlistment campaign added 16 new 
chapters with 164 new members. Other increases include 37 new Life­
Members, 5 new LifeFriends and at least 30 new LifeCommitments. 

Eleventh National Conference 

"A PERFECT MAN" headlined this year's gathering of 120 men from 15 
states and Japan. Loyd Olsan did a tremendous job as he directed the 
Conference. Dr. Melvin Worthington helped define, delineate and develop 
our theme. He joined nearly two dozen laymen on the program. Workshop 
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. were handled very well by these 
topics, keynote messagetws ar:h dC~~~~~~ce is April 26-28, 1990 at Camp 

The date for our e . 1 
~~~~n. Bring a group and share the blessmgs. 

f D. · 1 ship - 1995 1985 - Decade o ISCIP e . 
. t for our focus on discipleshtp. T~e 

This year marks the halfway pam f , points out the opportumty 
1989 theme, "Disciples Under Co~~tr~~ to~he fruits of the spirit in each 
for abundant living available by cu t~~hmfves of the disciples who walked 
life. Studies in 1990 will c:,nt~r ~rounln Dee~dl" will help show the change 
with Jesus. Our theme Dtsctples lled to follow Him from hilly Judea 
Jesus brought to a g:ou?c of men He c: than me shall ye do!" still echoes 

H. promtse Greater war s 
~o hheave~.d tasnd actions of His disciples today. 
m t e mm s 

Appeal 
. h er ministry efforts. The past lean 

A lack of finances contmu~s to a{;p Fatigue abounds. Your prayers 
ears have been a trial for offtce war ~rs. 
~nd faithful support areha v~;\ n~rest~~- Undesignated Co-op (14%)_ th~ 

As Director, I am t an u . d . n 1988 was a great blessmg. 
· The $20 229 recetve t . . · f all Department recetves. , d of all our national mimstnes- t we 

believe Co-op can ~eet_ the n~e s t We need to learn to structure 
will do more than giVe hp servtee suppo~ . ds will be met in all our 
our gtvmg to honor the Lord. Then t e nee 

ministries. r's Men and local churches kept the 
Faithful gifts ($45,512)_ fro~ ~~~te$16 451 were restricted funds, placed 

work of Master's Men ahve m . . . , ro·ects 
in the Endowment Trust and mtsstons h t~ hel~ all our Departments and 

This Director pleads for every chur~ational Ministries Sunda:y. A once­
Commissions thts September 24th on Free Will Baptist would totally 
a-year offering of only ~32.3~ fr?m ~~erdget That's the ideal. If only 7,724 
underwrite all our combmed at~on~. u rsed to these ministries! What a 
participate, over $250,000 can e tspe 

blessing! h . .l of sharing the blessings and the needs of 
Thank you for t e pnvt ege . 

Master's Men Department with you thts year. 

Respectfully submitted, 
James E. Vallance 
General Director 
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THE MASTER 'S HEN, A DEPARTMENT OF THE 
NATI!l'.jAL ASSOCIATI()'~ OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 

ASSETS 

BALANCE SHEET 
Dec.mber 31, 

Trust account -L ifeti me membership Interest receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
lnve>ntor1es 

Tot a l current asset s 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, nE<t <Note> 2> 
Total asse ts 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT li AB Ill T1 ES 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue (No te 3) 
Accrued expenses 
Notes payable <Note 4> 

Total current l1abllitres 

LONG-TERN DEBT <Note 4> 

Total lrabrlitles 

FUND BALANCE <DEFICIT> <Note 5> 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Total fund balance \def 1c1t) 

Total lrabrlrt1es and fund balance 

J 988 
~ 

.. 793 
27,595 

1 '056 
129 

1 1093 

$ 30,666 

4 I I 74 

$ 341840 

2,796 
89 

539 
1 I 4 I 8 

4, 842 

41842 

$ ( 2,130) 
32 1 J 28 

i 29,998 

' 34 , 840 

' 
; 

$ 

I 987 -

J 2,285 
20 , 064 

813 

1 I 324 

$ 24 ' 486 

5,767 

•• 30 ,253 

* 2,632 
120 
48(1 

3,813 

7 '045 

7 , 045 

251 
22 , 957 

231208 

30 , 253 

STHTft1ENT OF REVEt~UE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN Flt~D BAL,..,tKE 
Years ended December 31

1 

1988 
1987 Unrestr•cted Reo;trtcted Total Total REVft~UE 

Dues from members 
8,902 ~ ~ 8,902 J 10,215 

Cooperat1ve program 
20,229 

20,229 16,817 
Herchand rs e sales 

59! 
591 J I 24J 

G1 fts and other 1ncome 29 , 061 16 I 45 I 45,5!2 39 1055 
•• 58 , 783 $ 161451 <J 75 , 234 ·t 67 , 328 

The accompan y1ng notes are an In te gral part of the f1nancraJ statements. 
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$ 25,949 '$ 24,448 EXPENDITURES 
$ 25,949 $ Sal aries and wages 

5,216 4,426 11 taxes and employee 
5,216 

1 • 705 I , 628 
Payro 

8 , 629 

benef 1 ts 
1, 705 

9 , 322 
t f sa l es and printing 

8,731 59 1 
7,577 6,989 

Cos o 

3,246 

Travel expense 
conventions 7,577 

5 I 116 
Conf erenc es and 

5, 1 16 
J I 173 I I 990 Office expense 

1 I I 73 
I , 225 344 

713 

Postage 
I 1 225 

500 
Promotion expense 

500 
900 975 Professiona l fees 

900 
2 ,248 2 , 224 Bookkee ping expense 

2,248 
123 494 Depreci at ion 

123 
701 218 Interest expense 

701 
6 1689 672 61689 

Insurance expense 
Hisslons projects 

6) I )64 $ 71280 i 68,444 ., 56 1996 

$ 6,790 $ 10,332 REVENUES OVER <L~DER > 
2,381> • 9 I I 71 $ ( EXPENDITURES 

121876 
AT 

23 1208 
FUND BALANCE <DEFICIT ) 

22 , 957 251 JANUARY I I I 988 

231208 
AT 

•• 291998 $ 
Fllm BALANCE <DEFI CIT> 

2 I I 30 ) * 32 11 28 £ ( DECEMBER 31 • 1988 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES 
Years ended 

IN FINo4NCIAL POSITION 
December 31, 

WORKING CAPITAL PROVI OED •:APPLI ED> 
Revenue over <under> expend• tur~~al 

t ·ffect•ng working cap 1 terns no d 

Deprec1at1on 

Working capt tal 
operations 

provided by (used for ) 

Additions to property a~db~QUipment 
Reduction of long-term e 

l.OECREASE> IN WORKING CAPITAL INCREASE 

5 OF CHANGES IN L~ORKING CAPITAL At~Ll'SI _ ) In current assets Increase (dec r ease 

Cash membersh 1 p Trust acc ount - Llfetrme 
Interest recetvaole 
Depos 1ts 
Inventories 
Prepaid exp enses 

Decrease \ Increase > 
Accounts payable 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued exp enses 
Notes pa.yable 

In curren t llabrlrtles 

an In tegral pa.rt of t he . g notes are The accompan ,•n 
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1988 1987 

* 6,790 * 10,332 

21248 2 1224 

' 9,038 t 12,556 

( 655) - .; 1:?4• 

8,383 * 12,43:? 

•·: 1 . 492) 1 '958 
7 , 531 8,044 

243 383 
·- I 00 I 

( 231) 178 
129 

( 164) " 87' .. . -
31 I , 245 

( 59> 251 
< 2 399) 21395 ' . 

8 , 383 * 12,432 

financ ial statements. 



NOTES TO FIIW~CIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1988 

NOTE I - 5LH1ARY OF SIGNIFIC..;NT ACCOLtHJr~G POLICIES 

Follow•ng IS a summary of th~ s•gn1f1cant account1ng poi1C1es of the 
Master ' s Men, a D~partm~nt of the Nat•onal Assoc•at•on of Free W1 II 
Bapt•sts, hereaft~r referred to as the Department. 

GOVERr..t1EtH- The Departrr.~:nt operates under the ausp1ces of tt.e tht•onal 
Assoc1at1on of Free W1 I I Baptists and 1s governed by a Board of Drreciors. 

RECEIVABLES ~4D ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS -Accounts rece1vable ar~ 
presented 1n the frnancral statements at the amount deemed collectrble by 
management . Any provision for doubtful accounts rs recognrzed usrng the allowance method. 

INVENTORIES- ThE> 1nventorres are valued at the lower of cost or market, 
with cost being determrned by us1ng the frrst-rn, frrst-out method. 

PROPERTY AND EGUIPt1ENT AND DEPRECIATION - Property and equipmt>nt are 
presented in the frnanc1al statPments at cost and are depreciated by the 
stra•ght-lrne method over the estimated useful llvPs of the assets of 3-10 Years. 

INCOME TAXES - The Department 1s exEOmpt from Federal and State Income 
taxes; accordingly, no prov1s1on for •ncome ta ... es 1s made 1n HoP f1nancraJ s t a teme n t s . 

NOTE 2 - PROPERTl AND EQUI Pt1EIIT 

The fol low1ng 1s a summary of property and equ1pment owned by the 
Department at December 31,: 

Equipment and furn•turP 
LPss accumulated depr~c•at•on 114,207 *13,552 

1 0 1 (133 7 1 785 
Propert/ and equ1pment, nPt 

NOTE 3 - DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred r even ue cons1sts of dues recerved for future years as of 
December 31, 1988 and 1987. 

NOTE 4 - NOTES PAiABLE 

The Department had notes payable summarized as foll~~s as of Decpmber 31,: 

Note payable to the Board of Retir ement and 
Insurance, a Department of the Natrona! 

Assocratron of Free Will Bapt1sts; 
1nterest at 13.5%; dated 12/28/84; 
payable at 1126 monthly thru 1/1/88; 
sPcured by equrpment w1th a bas1s of 
12,115 as of December 31, 1987 1 

Note pay<sblt> to the F r rs t Amer ~ean Bank, 
Nashvrllel TN; rnterest at 9.75% ; dated 
12/19/87; payable at $210 monthly thru 
5/19/89; unsecured 

108 

1fQ§ 1987 

313 

1 1 41 8 31500 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1988 

< CCJ~T I NUED) 

Less current port•on 

Long-term debt 

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 

$ I 1 418 
1 1418 

$ 3,813 
3,813 

bal-nce is revenue designated 
The restr~etedff~~d fol~o~~•na as of December 31,: 

for specific proJects 
and cons1sts o e -

MISS IOnS projects 
L•fetime Membership 

t-1 I C H AEL JOHNSTON 
Ce r t ' f ' l' d Pub 1 IC Accountant 

106 H. f•fth, P.O. Sox 1403 
Eff•nghM~, lll1no•s 62401 

The Board of Directors 
The Master ' s Men, a Department 

National Association of Free 
Nashville, Tennessee 

of the 
Will Baptrsts 

1988 
1 942 

31 I I 86 

1987 
'* 2.118 
20~o39 

132,12~ $221957 

Trl rphonr: <217>342-9632 

he Master ' s Men, a Department of I have examined thP balance sheets of ~a trsts as of December 31' 1988 
the National Association of Free W~llof ~evenu~, expenditures and changes 
and !987 . and the rl'lated stateme~a~cral pos• t•on for the ~ ea~s then 
In fund balance and changes ~~ f l accordance wrth generally dCcepted t 
ended. t1y eoxamrnat•on was rna e rn Included such tests of the accoun •ng 
aud i t ing standards and, accordingly, d s as I considered necl'ssary rn 
records and such other aud•t•ng proce ure 
the c 1rcumstances. 

. ral statements present fairly the 
In my op 1rnp1oo~:t:~~ ~!o~~~e~!~~~~~/~~~~\ Debpar 3tm1 en! 9~~ !~~ t:;~~o:~~ the 
f1nane1a t t at Decem er ' . f 
Association of Free Will Bap IS s, an es rn ItS financral position _ or 
results of it s operatrons an~ thetchw,~h generally accepted accounting 

ears then ended, In con orm• Y 
tht Y_ 1 . don a consistent basis. pr1nc 1pl ts app 1e 

Effingham, Ill inois 
M~y 9, 1989 
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Income 

1990 
Proposed Budget 

Gifts ............. . Dues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $20 000 00 
•••• 0 •••••••• 0 • • • • ' • 

Master's Men Day ... :::.............................................. 14,656.00 
Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,500.00 
Co-op .. .. · · .... · .... · ...... · ...... · .......... · ...... · .. .. 1 500 00 
T .. · · · ................ , . ravel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,000.00 
MM Conference .... · ...... · .......... · .... · .................. ·.. . 2,000.00 
Interest Income · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·.... . 10,500.00 

Other ............. . .. . . . .. . . 
LifeMember Trust · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... . ..... . .. . 

MM Dl
.nn .... . .... .. 

250.00 
3,500.00 
3,600.00 

• • • • • • • • • 0 ••••••••••••••••• er · · · · · . . .... . 
0 0 •• 0 0 0 • • 0 • 0 0 0 0 •• 0 • 0 0 0 0 •• 0 0 • 0 • 0 

0 •••••••• 0 • 
• • 0 ••••••• 

• • 0 •••••• 

$80,506.00 

Expenditures 

Audit 
...... 0 0 0 •••• 0 

•••• 0 • 0 0 •• 0 • MM Dinner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 600.00 

Dinner ................... . 
Honorarl

·a . . . . . . . ...................... . • 0 •• 0 0 ••• 0 ••• 0 •••• 

MM Conference . . . . . . . . .......................................... . 
Cost of Sales ...... . ............................................... . 

Equipment M~i~t~~~~~~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ................. . 
Promotion ............................................ . 
Postage ... : :: :: : :: ...................................................... . 
Printing ...... ........................................... . . 

............ 
Office Supplies ... : :: :: : : : · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ................ . 
Office Equipment ................................................... .. . 
Telephone . . . . . . . . . . ........ ................................ . 

Travel.
. . . .. .. .. .. .. . . ..................... .. 

•• 0 •• 0 ••••••••• 

Director 
••••• 0 •••• 0 • 

Bo d 
...... 0 ••• 0 ••••••••••••••••••• 0 0 •••••• 0 ar ........... . ............ 

Director's Insuran~~- ~~d · R~·ti~~·~~~t · · · · · · · · · · · · ................. . 
Insurance, Office . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........................... . 
Payroll Taxes 

................. .. 
0 ••• 0 ••• 0 •••• 0 •••••••• 0 

Salaries ........................................................ . 
Loan Reti~~~~~t ...................................................... . 
Miscellaneous ...................................................... . 
Bookkeeping F~~ ::::: ........................................... . 

• 0 ••• 0 •••••• 0 ••• 0 •••••• 0 •••••• 

•••• 0 ••• 0 •••• 0 • 

3,450.00 
150.00 

6,000.00 
1,000.00 

500.00 
1,000.00 
2,000.00 

10,000.00 
2,500.00 

500.00 
1,500.00 

8,000.00 
2,000.00 
4,000.00 

300.00 
2,484.00 

33,072.00 
500.00 
500.00 
900.00 

$80,506.00 
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BOARD OF RETIREMENT REPORT 

This year marks our 20th anniversary. Here are some highlights of these 

20 years. 
July 1969 

March 1971 
March 1972 
July 1973 
May 1975 
January 1976 
January 1978 
September 1978 
April 1980 

April 1983 

Plan adopted by National Association Conven­
tion in St. Louis. Name changed to Board of 
Retirement and Insurance. Herman L. Hersey 
named director. 
161 members in plan 
Assets total $106,604 
Full-time office established in Nashville, TN 
313 members- Assets total $413,890 
Operating fund in the black 
439 members- Assets total $865,638 
Assets reached One Million Dollars 
Voted to recommend to the National Associa­
tion the establishment of the Free Will Baptist 
Foundation 
Mike Mudry presented a study of our pension 
plan 

May 1983 Ray Lewis employed as business manager 
January 1984 Revised plan in force 
September 1984 Assets total $3,400,706 
August 1986 Computers in operation 
March 1988 First annuity check written 
January 1989 917 members- Assets total $7,135,468 
Last year was a good year. The audit reveals that total assets increased 

15% or $15,246 a week. This is the same percentage increase as in the past 
few years. The first quarter of 1989 shows a weekly increase of $17,456. If 
we maintain a 14% average growth rate, our assets will double every five 
years. 

The demand for church loans remains strong. During 1988 we loaned 
$1 ,642,857. Since January first , we have loaned $437,601. 

We thank you who have prayed and have given to make these 20 years 
possible. There are still many challenges in the future. Working together 
we can "serve those who serve us" in a greater way. 

Herman L. Hersey 
General Director 
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BOARD OF RETIREM 
THE NATIONAL ASSOCIA'ENT AND INSURANCE OF 

Assets 
Interest bearing de . 

postts and in 

flON OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1988 

(with comn.. · 
.-rnlJve totals for 1987) 

Unrestricted 
1988 

Retirement Plant Operations Total Fund Fund 

1987 
TOial 

Funds invested wrth . vestments (note 2) $ 
. rettrement fund 

Accrued mterest receivable 
13,915 ],055,556 

All Funds 
AIIFuocJs -

Notes receivable from partici 
53,057 3,069,471 3,478,09() 

fund and churches and d pa.nts of the retirement 
the National Assoct'at' enfomrnahonal agencies of 

26,770 

0 ton o Free W'll B . 
flice furniture eq · 1 apttsts (note 3) 

, urpment, and aut b' 
less accumulated d . . omo ties, at cost 4,004,446 

eprectatton of $40 571 ( • 
'Total assets ' note 4) 

Liabilities and Fund B I a ances 

Notes payable 

Accounts payable and 
I accrued expe 
nterest bearing nses 

revocable trusts 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances (note 5): 
Operations 
Retirement fund 

Destgnated as reserve funds 
Net mvested 10 plant 

• 
Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund b I 
a ances s 

Statement of Fund T . 

$ 

$ 

----
66,972 7,086,772 

JJ ,854 
1,000 

I I ,000 
1,118,791 

11,854 I, I 30,79 J 

55,118 

5 ,880,608 
75,373 

55, I 18 5,955,98! 

66,972 7,086, 772 

34,781 

34.781 

34,78 I 

34,781 

34,78 I 

ransaci.Jons and Ch . 
anges m Fund Balances 

Y e.ar ended Dece 
mber 31, 1988 

(with compa ,, 
ra,.ve totals for 1987) 

Unrestricted 
1988 

26,770 41,64 I 

4,004,446 2,906,485 

34,781 26,887 
7,135,468 6,45),10) 

I ,000 1,000 
22,854 12,354 

1,065, 734 I, I 86,682 

1,089,588 I ,200,0)6 

55, I 18 49,847 
5,880,608 5,094,921 

75,373 75,412 
34,78 J 32,887 

6,045,880 5,253,067 

7,135,468 6,453,103 

Addtllons: O~rations 
Retirement Plant Total 

1987 
Fund Total 

Contnbuhons from pa f . Fund --= All Funds All Funds G ~ r tCtpants 
$ I IS 

Interest income _ 27,610 
515,102 

515,102 ln notes recetvable 501,912 
vestment income d . 

429,254 27,610 20,81 I unrealized I an. realtzed and 
429,254 osses of to vestment 

344,1 10 Forfeitures and 1 t h portfolro 4,4 I 8 . . a e c arges 205,123 
Loan ongrnation fees 

4,058 209,541 201,661 Miscellaneous 
43,223 4,058 4,47) 

Total additions 8 174 43,223 14 ,513 
Deductrons: 32,036 182 

1,196,934 I ,013 
Sa lanes I ,228,970 I ,088,49) 
Fringe benefits 53,776 
Travel and promotional 21,886 53,776 49,904 

29,996 21,886 20,650 

See accompanyin 
29,996 25,6)6 

8 notes to ftoancial state ments. 
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office supplies 16,934 
22,800 

Housrnl 
Mmislr)' to senior adults 

11,136 Occupancy 
Board members expense 7,292 

Le~t•l and audihng 6,060 

M1scellaneous 2,251 418 

16,934 9,357 
22,800 22,800 

4,442 
11,136 II ,239 
7,292 4,995 
6,060 5,156 
2,669 1,440 

Derrectation 19,677 

Interest expense 90,207 
19,677 8,547 
90,207 93,063 

Withdrawal of funds 153,269 153,269 Ill, 153 

Computer services 3,183 

Insurance 455 455 315 

Total expenses 172,586 243,894 19,677 436,157 371,880 

Net increase (decrease) 10 funds for the year ( 140,550) 953,040 (19,677) 792,813 716,613 

fund balances, beginning of year, as reclassified (note 5) 49,847 5,170,333 32,887 5,253,067 4,536,454 

Transfers among funds and other changes: 
To plant fund for asset acquisition (21 ,571) 2 1,571 
Enrollment and admimstrative fees 167,392 (167 ,392) 

fund balance, end of year s 55,118 5,955,981 34,781 6,045,880 5,253,067 

See accompanying notes to ftnllocial statements. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988 

Board of Retirement and Insurance is operated under the auspices of The National Association of Free Will Baptists. The 
purpose of the Board is to maintain contributory retirement accounts for licensed or ordained ministers and lay employees 
of churches, schools and denominational agencies of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(2) 

The major accounting prrnciples and practices followed by the Board of Retirement and Insurance of The National 
Assoctation of Free Will Baptists are presented below to assist the reader in evalwtting the financial statements. 

Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observance of limitations and' restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Board, 
the accounts of the Board are maintained in accordance with the prrnciples of "fund accounting•. This is the 
procedure by which resources for vnrious purp<>ses ore classified for accounting and reporting purposes into fund~ 
that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. The accompanying financial sla!Fments are presented 
on the accrual method of accounting. 

Plant Assets and Depreciation 

Uses of operating funds for plant acquisitions are accounted for as transfers to plant funds. Depreciation of 
equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets on a straight line basis. 

Income Taxes 

The Board is exempt from income taxes; accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in 
accompanying financ1al statements. 

Interest- Bearing Deoosits and Investments 

Interest-bearing deposit.s and investment.s consist of the following: 

Market 
Value 

Interest bearing accounts s 190,371 
Church bonds (at staled value) 150,250 

Mutual funds I ,631,559 

Common stocks 863,862 
U.S. Treasury notes 233,429 

$ 3,069,471 

113 

Cost 
190,371 
150,250 

I ,631,264 
825 ,980 
234,643 

3,032,508 



(3) 

(4) 

Notes to Financial Statements, continued 

Notes Receivable from Participants of the Retirement Fund and Churches and 
Denominational Agencies of the National Association of Free Will Baptists 

Following is a summary of notes receivable: 

Participant notes s 38,623 
Churches and agency notes 3,965,823 

s 4,004,446 

Participant notes are secured by retirement account balances. Cburcb and agency notes are secured by ftrst 
mortgage or similar perfected securi ty interest in the related property. 

Office Furniture. EQuipment. and Automobiles 

A summary of office furnature, equtpment and automobiles is as follows: 

Office furniture and fixtures 
Computer equtpment 
Automobiles 

Accumulated depreciation 

Dep~iallon expenses amounted to $19,677 m 1988. 

s 26,760 
35,533 
13,059 

75,352 
40,571 

s ==3=4,=7=81= 

(5) Reclassification of Fund Balances 

The beginning fund balance of unrestricted opera lions and plant funds bave been reclassified in the amount of 

$6,000 to account for transfers from operations to fund an automobile purchase. Certain other reclassifications of 

the prior years figures have been made to conform with the current years presentation. 

- - - - - · 

~II ill , Neal& Allcn , I~L 

,, II\ \ lid I 
ll ... ·lit t' ,, 

'-"• \ ' \lint 

t n 111 ~ ·d I 'uhht \, ulllllt.u •r-. 

lmJcpemJenl Auditors' Reoort 

Uoard of Directors 
Uoard of Retirement and Insurance of The 

National Association of Free Will Baptists: 

1\tt ltl\\1 ~ 'tll 'U tii ' H (PUC I 

IHI I ~d 1111 !-ott \ l~•lllt \ .o •d 

"'"" 11
1

\ 

1111 til"''"' I N lfll2i 
1•1 "i li7 H H'l 

We have audited the b:tlance sheet of Board of Retirement and Insurance of The National 
Assoctntion of r:ree Will Baptists ns of December 31, 1988, and the related statement of fund 
transnctions and chanj!.es in fund hnlnnces for the year then ended. These finnncinl slntements 
ore Ute responsibility of the Board's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial st.,tements based on our audit. The financial statements of Board of 
Retirement and Insurance of The National Association of Free Will Baptists as of December 
31, 1987, were audited by other auditors whose report dated January 27, 1988, expressed no 
unqualilied opinion on those stnternents. 

We conducted our aud1t in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
el!aminmg, on 1 test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
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. . . les used and significant 
. · the accounting pnnclp 

ts An audit also Includes assessmg . th rail financial statement 
statemen . II as evaluallng e ove . . 

stimntes made by mnnngement, as we. 'd a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
e . We believe that our audit provl es 
Presentauon. · 1 

· 1 · 11 molena d to above present fair y • In a 
In our opinion, the 1988 fi.n.anci:~l stateme~~:~~:::nt and Insurance of the N~ti<lool 

ts the financial position of Board o I 1988 aml fund transactions and 

~::ia:iun of Free Will Onptists ns o~Dec::~~ri! :onfor~Jity with generally accepted 
changes in fund balnnces for the year en 

accounting principles. 

February I U, 1989 

1990 
Budget 

..... $ 84,914 
. . .. . .. 3 102 •• 0 •••••••• 0 3 ....... 

• • 0 • 0 •• 

Salaries .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 3o:ooo 
Employee Benefits ............... ·. ·. ·. ~ ·. ~ ·. ~ ·. ~ ~ ~ ·. ·. ~ ......................... ·. ·. ·. ·. 27,000 
Housing .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ....... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 3 500 
Travel/Promotion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..................... ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. ·. 6',ooo 
Auto/Travel/Mal. ntenance .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·. ·. ·. · ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,500 
Auto Fund·· .. ··· .. ·· .. · · ............ ··....... . .. · · · ........ ·.... 15,000 
Plant Fund ............ . ........................ ·.·.·.·.~·.··························· 5,000 
Off. ·Supplies/Expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,000 tee .......... . 
Equipment/Maintenance ....... ..... ·. ·. ·. ·. ~ ·. ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 300 
Publications · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · p · · ·~i~s ............ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 2 000 
Dept's Shar~ o~ Insurance re . .. .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . , 
ALERT Mimstnes . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............................... · · · · · · · · · · ~,~~ 
Board Expense · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .... ·. ·. · ...... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 1 o: 000 
Insurance · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 00 

d
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,5 

Legal/ Au 1t1ng . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........................ · · · · · · · · · · · 
Miscellaneous · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Total 
•••• 0 • 0 

••••• 0 • 0 

• 0 ••••••• 0 • 0 •• 0 • ••• 

•••• 0 ••• 0 •• 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION REPORT 

It does not seem possible that the Free Will Baptist Foundation is enter. 
ing its tenth year. Here is a summary of the activity and accomplishments 
of these years. 

1.) I have had extensive training in planned giving, tax matters and basic 
estate planning. This is a continual education process. 

2.) Our people have been educated to the concepts of planned giving 
and the use of various types of trusts. Brochures and other printed mate­
rial have been written and distributed. 

3.) Three different seminars have been developed for our churches. 
Each session is two hours in length. 

A.) Family Financial Planning: This is designed to assist our people in 
basic budgeting, debt management and prudent planning for future needs. 

B.) Wills Clinic: This concerns the basic elements of will preparation 
and shows how to effectively work with an attorney. 

C.) Basic Estate Planning: Various types of trusts are explained. 
4.) Three gift annuities have been written. The donors are receiving reg· 

ular checks and will continue receiving them until their deaths. Then the 
gift goes to the Lord's work as they have designated. 

5.) Forty acres of land in Colorado has been given to the Foundation. It 
is for sale. Any buyers? 

6.) Several individuals have established annuity trusts with the Founda· 
tion. They have received a total income of over $1,800. 

7.) The Foundation has already given $23,964.66 to the Lord's work 
through endowments. The beneficiaries include the Cooperative Plan of 
Support, Foreign Missions, Foundation operating fund, Hillsdale College, 
Home Missions, Master's Men, Tennessee Children's Home, state and dis· 
trict missions boards and local churches. The total endowments are in 
excess of $130,000. 

We challe.nge someone to establish endowments for Free Will Baptist 
Bible College, WNAC, state and district ministries, other schools and local 
churches. Remember that one gift may benefit as many agencies as you 
wish. Give a gift that keeps on giving! 

The Foundation is ready to help you and your family in planning an 
income for yourself and help Free Will Baptist ministries too. 

Thanks for your prayers and support. 
Herman L Hersey 
Executive Secretary{f reasurer 
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FREE WILL BAPTIST FOUNDATION' INC. 

Balance Sheets 

December 31, 1988 and 1987 

Assets 

CJsh tn bank "th the Board of Retirement and Insurance accounts WI 
Interest beanng . of Free Will Baptists 

N tiona! Assocauon 
of the • . t at contributed value 

Und held for IDVestmen ' 

ed interest income A ecru 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
t bearing revocable trusts Interes -

Gift aMuity payable 
Accrued earnings payable 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Operations 
Endowment funds 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

t f Support and Revenue, Expenses Statemen o 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

n--. ber 31 1988 and 1987 years ended ~m ' 

Support and revenue: 

Contributions 
Service fee income and other 

Total support and revenue 

Expenses: 

Salaries 
Social security and retirement 

Travel and promotion 
Office expense 
Publications 
Trainina and education 
Legal and auditing 

Equipment 
MiacellanCOUI . 
Write off of service fee mcome 

Total expenses 

Excess of support and revenue• over 

(under) expenses 

· · of yeu fund balance at begtMmg 

Fund balance at end of year 

• ID financial 1tatomenta. Soe accompanying ootoa 

s 

1988 

Oreretions Endowment.s 

8,292 
2,971 

11,263 

5,656 

838 

1,271 
1,018 

11 
556 
400 

18 

4,520 

14,288 

(3,025) 

7,793 

s 4,768 
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39,661 

39,661 

39,661 

89,037 

128,698 

1988 

3,884 

243,027 
4,000 
7,358 

258,269 

113,349 

6,000 
5,454 

124,803 

4,768 
128,698 

133,466 

258,269 

Total 
611 funds 

47 ,953 

2,971 

50,924 

5,656 
838 

1,271 
1,018 

II 
556 
400 

II 
4,520 

14,288 

36,636 

96,830 

133,466 

1987 

986 

351,386 
4 ,000 
7,134 

363,506 

260,349 

6,000 
327 

266,676 

7,793 

89,037 

96,830 

363,506 

1987 
Total 

611 fund! 

35,008 
5,519 

40,527 

4,562 

685 

1,768 
1,811 

531 
1,312 

400 
1,477 

55 

12,608 

27,919 

68,911 

96,830 



Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1988 and 1987 

Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. is operated under the auspices of the National Association of Free Will Baptists. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The major accounting principles and practices followed by the Free Will Baptist Foundation, Inc. are 
presented below to assist the reader in evaluating the financial statements. The financial statements are 
presented in accordance with standards recommended in • Audits of Certain Nonprofit Organizations, • an 
Audit and Accounting Guide (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants). 

Fund Accounting 

In order to ensure observance of limitat.ions and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the 
Foundation, the accounts are maintained in accoardance with the principles of "fund accounting". This is the 
procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into 
funds that are in accordance with activities or objectives specified. 

Basis of Financial Statements 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Income Taxes 

The Foundation is exempt from income taxes; accordingly no provision for income taxes has been made in 
the accompanying financial statements. 

ln1 y ,\ I hi I 

'~""·"''' ""'"'' N.UK)'" Alkn 

Hill, Neal & Allen, P.C. 
Ccrulled Public Acwumamc; 

Board of Directors 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Ucnevolcnt runc..l of the National 
Association of Free Will Baplists: 

IIH'III\1""' ' \\'IIIII\\' ( 1'1111'1 
71•1 l 'll.lllk '-••) ~~~1ln.uol 
~II Ill' II' I 
111\'lll\\\'<'11.1 IN 17ll!7 
111 '1. 17/- HWi 

We hove audited the bolnnce sheet of Renevolent Fund of the National Associa tion of Free Will 
Onptists as o f December 3 J, J 988, nnd the related slntement of revenue, expenses and changes in 
fund balance for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibillly of tl1e Funll'a 
mnnagement. Our responsibility is to expre11 an opinion on these financial atotement.a baaell on our 
audit. The financial statements of the Benevolent Fund of the Notional Association of Free Will 
Dnpti~ts u of December 31, 1987, were audited by other aullitou whose report dated Jonuary 27, 
1988, expressed nn unqualified opinion on those allltementa. 

We conducted our audit in accorllnnce with generally acceplell auditing atanllorda. Thoae alllndarda 
require that we plan and perform the audit to oblllin reuonabte aaaurance about whether tho financ ial 
atAtementa are free of material miaatatement. An aulllt inclullea ouminlng, on a teat boaia, evillence 
aupporting the amounta anlllliaclosurea in lhe financial statement.a. An audit alao lncludea 11ae11ing 
the accounting principlea used and aignificant eatimntea made by mnnngement, 11 well 11 evaluat ing 
the overall financial atatement pretentation. We believe thal our audit providea a reaaonablo bula 
for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the 1988 financial atntementa rererred to above prcaent foirly, in all material 
respects, the finnncinl poMition of Denevolcnt Fund of the Notional Anoclntion of Pree Will 11apt lat» 
aa of December 31, 1988, anll the revtlnue, expensea anll chongea in funll balance for tho year lhlln 
ended In confurmily with generally accepted accounting principlea. 

February 2, 1989 
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""'""''" N. ·'' N.u11.. y-., Allo:u 

lncleoendenl Auditors· Report 

noanl or Directors 
Pree Will Baplisl Foundation. Inc.: 

1\rl'fll""'>tl t "-'ltlll\t: < lllh:r 

7tol (11.11 h .l. • .-y lk•uk:v.ud 
..,., • ., 1\H 
1\n:III\\\W'tll, IN 17tH7 
ttl 'i 177 HH'i 

r l)ececnber ) I, 1911, 
. tist Foundation, Inc. as o 

W have audited the bnlancc sheet o f Free Wtll Bap and changes in fund balances foe the 
e r ...-.-1 and revenue, expenses. -·--·•- - ·s management. 

and the related statement o su~,~.. the responsibility of the F.,.........llon . .......__ 
<led These financ tal statements are . ts based on our aud•L • IK' 

year then en · . . these financtal statemc:o ud' tc:d 
Our responsibility is to express an opt~ton on da . Inc u of l)ecember 31, 1987 • were a ' 

f Free will Baptist Fouo uon, · l"fied nninioo on tbo5e 
finllncial sllltements o 27 1988 expressed an unqua I I -r 

. b port c:lated January • • by other audttors w ose re 

statements. 
ud. · taodards Tbo5e 

' th entrally accepted a ttmg s . b;ethcr 
We conducted our audit in accorllance WI gthe ud' t to obtain reasonable assurance: aboul w 

1 nd perform a 1 • • oa a ICSl 
standards require that we p an a . I . tatement Ao audit includes ex.auuomg, . lso 

free of matena mtss · . ts An audit a 
the financial statements arc nd d " losures in the financial statcmen . as 

t" the amounts a •sc made by maoagemcot. 
basis, evidence suppor tng . . . es used and significant estimateS . ides a 
includes assessing the accounting pn_nclpl resentalioo. We believe that our audtl prov 

I t. g the overall financlll statement p 
well as eva ua 1n 
reosonable basis for our opinion. . 

t ra'trly in all matenal respects , 
~ red to above presen " • 

. . the \98& fi nancial statements re er f "--· ber 3 I 1988, aod the supPOrt 
In our optmon, F d t'on Inc as o V«-em • ' th 

fi 
. I nnsition of Free Will Baptist ·oun • ' • . I then ended in conformity w• 

10ancto 1-- • fund balances for lte year 
and revenue, expenses and chang~s ~n 

g•M""' ""''"' ,_.,,;,& rn~•r•~~ l{d ~ ~' ~ t!. 

February 2, 1989 

1990 
Budget 

... . .... $12,000 
Salary/honorarium .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ . . . . . . . . 3,000 
Travel and promotion . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,500 
Publications .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,000 
Training & education .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,000 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 000 
Office expense. · · · · · · · · · . .. . .... . .. ... .. · · · · · ' 
Legal and auditing . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ~ ...... . . . . ... ... . ... . __ 5_00_ 
Miscellaneous .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ....... . $30,000 . . . . . . . 

Total ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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The Board of Trustees of tb F . recommend: e ree Will Baptist Foundation 

1. That the first sentence of Article VII f h 
the Foundation be amended by substi~ut~n e ihaser of Incorporation of 
The amended sentence will read: "The ~ an ~8 for 5 and 15 .. 
the Corporation shall be cond t d b affat~s, busmess and functions of 
of not less than nine (9) nor m~cr e th Y a . oard of Trustees consisting 
by the National Association ofF e Wu ~ght~en .(18) members elected 
Constitution and Bylaws., ree 1 aptists m accordance with its 

2. That the following be add d ft h . 
tion ~ of the By-Laws of :he aF~~n~:tifirst ,~enten~~ of Artie!~ IV, Sec-
Foreign Missions the Director of H onr:vr I~ addttlon, the Dtrector of 
ter's Men, the Director of S d orne tsstons, the Director of Mas-
President of Free Will Baptist ~bf: ~~~ool ~d Churc.h Training, the 
the Woman's National A T ege, e Executive Secretary of 
tary of the National Assoc~~i~;'s~ftnvention a~d the Executive Secre-

3. That Section 16 of the B -Law a serv~ on t e Board of Trustees." 
by adding to the end of fhe se~tof the}'Jattonal Association be amended 
Free Will Baptist Foundation " ence and the Board of Trustees of the 

4. That Section 17 of the By-L~ws be am d " 
of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist ;n e~ t? a~d ex,?ept the Board 
boards." The amended sentence . oun at!?n after Each of these 
except the Board of Trustees of th will rea~: Eac~ of these boards, 
be composed of nine members wh~ !:ee:,~i!~pt~~ Foundation, shall 
ation, according to an arrangement h b ~ e National Associ­
of office for six years and the· t w ere Y eac member has a term 
in groups of three bie~nially. lr erms are arranged so that they expire 

5. That the following se t b dd d "The B d f T n ence e a e to the end of Section 17 
oar o rustees of the Free Will B f F · 

sist of the member~ of the Board ~P tst oundation shall con-
Director of Foreign Missions, the Dir~~t~rettfHent a~d .Insurance,. the 
tor of Master's Men, the Director of Sund o orne MISSIOns, the Dlrec­
mg, the President of Free Will Ba . a¥ School and Church Train­
Secretary of the Woman's National Atis\ Btble College, the Executive 
utive Secretary of the Natt·onal A . u~t tary Convention and the Exec-ssoctatlon. 
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WOMAN'S NATIONAL AUXILIARY 
CONVENTION REPORT 

Our theme of "Arise and Build" has challenged us this year to build in 

several areas. The Eunice Edwards Fund for Building Churches Abroad had grown to 

$20,261.39 by May, 1989. 
Since July, 1988, we have sent 70 complimentary packets to new or 

reorganizing Auxiliaries. We received notice of 19 Auxiliaries disbanding, 
making a total increase of 51 Auxiliaries joining in the work. We now have 
13,989 subscribers to the CO-LABORER magazine. 

In March, Mrs. Mabel Willey and I had the privilege of joining with the 
women of Panama for their first National Woman's Retreat. Eighty women 
enjoyed singing, praying, and talking together. 

Our reports show that Auxiliaries gave $30,356.40 more to Missions and 

related causes in 1988 than in 1987. 
Our retreat in September, 1988, was a prayer retreat with 718 women 

from 19 states joining in prayer and praise to God for His promise . "Call 
unto me, and I will answer thee, and shew thee great and mighty things, 

which thou knowest not." Jeremiah 33:3. 
The executive committee serves well in planning, encouraging, and 

promoting. I'm especially thankful for them: Mary Neal, president; Maurine 
Lee, vice president; Peggy Outland, secretary; and Nora McCarty, Kay 
Hampton, and Lila Faye Morgan, members at large. Also I want to express 
appreciation to the officers who serve in state, district and local Auxiliar-
ies. Without them, the work could not flourish. 

The office staff also serves faithfully and efficiently: Yvonne Wolfen-
barger, executive assistant; Lorene Miley, editor; Sue Hayes, bookkeeper. 

Our theme for 1990 is "The Great Invitation.,. My prayer is that we will 
join together in extending the invitation of Christ to all people everywhere . 

Mary R. Wisehart 
Executive Secretary-Treasurer 

ASSETS 

WO~ ' S ~ATIONAL AUXILIARY CO~VENiiON 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTI STS 

GENERAL FUND 

STAT~~E~~ OF ASSETS ~~D LIABILITIES 

1988 -
OECE~1BEP. 3 I -----

1987 

$64 ,007 . 79 $77 , 724 . 31 

Cas h 
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FUSD BALANCE 

General 
Designated - Fore1'gn St de t S h 1 u n c o arship 

$64 , 007.79 

564,007.79 

$77,475.31 
249.00 

$77,724.31 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

~ENERAL _FUND 

CASH RECEIPTS ANO __ DISBURSE~IENTS 

Cash balance • beginning 

RECEIPTS 
Printing & supplies for sale 

Magazine 
Literature 
Literature & printing refund 
Postage on literature 
Postage refund 

Auxiliary dues 
Delegate fees 
Convention dinner tickets 
Other convention income 

Offering 
Refund 
Petty cash 

Co-Laborer offerings 
Gifts for general purposes 

General fund 
Emphasis offering 
Provision closet 
Convention gift 

Retreat 
Promotional income 
WNAC minutes 
l'liscellaneous income 
Interest income 
Stamp money - general fund 
Exchange checks - student loans 
Travel refund 

Total office receipts 

Designated contributions: 
Foreign Missions 
Home missions 
Bible Colleges 
Foreign Student 
Other gifts for 

Scholarship Fund 
various missionary 

objectives 
Total designated contributions 

Total recepits 

Total to be accounted for 
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DECE~ffiER 31 

1988 

Ll_7. 724.31 

75,998.88 
6,399.42 

898. 14 

14,740.00 
191.00 

8,180 .00 

770 . 35 
62. 18 

13,552.72 

12,317.31 
3 , 271.70 
3,000.00 
4,682.89 

517.00 
213.00 
47.48 

3,659.08 
91.36 

1,179.69 
149,772.20 

209,539.23 
59 , 024.09 
12,341.92 

870.00 

11,033 . 11 
292 , 808.35 

442,580.55 

$520,304.86 

1987 

s 73,221.46 

103,105.52 
7,288.25 

22.76 
1,047.44 

106.53 
16,061 . 75 

190.00 
8,198 .00 

908.50 
29.90 

120 .00 
7,788.96 

12,633.71 

4,033.06 
4,000 . 00 

212.00 
85.74 

4,388.75 
758.23 
332. 77 

171,311.87 

173,915.81 
69,790.99 
10,629.57 

593.78 

8,947.27 
263,877 . 42 

435,189.29 

$508,410.75 

GENERAL FUND 

CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS - continued 

DISBURSEHENTS 
Operating expenses: 

Printing & supplies for sale 
Printing 
Literature refund 
Supplies for resale 

Execu t i ve committee expense 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Postage 
Ret reat 
Office supplies & equipment 
Office r ent 
Telephone 
~ailing supplies 
Miley's love gift 
Auditing 
Convention dinner & expenses 
Miscellaneous 
Travel & promotion 
Subscriptions & dues 
Maintenance - equipment 
Petty cash National 
Continuing education 
Plant fund - carpet 
1989 Convention expense 
Target 90 
Stamp money - office equipment 
Provision closet 
Magazine expenses 

Hagazine art 
Magazine forms 
Magazine mailing 
Magazine oostage 
Magazine printing 
Magazine refund 
Magazine mailing supplies 
~!agazine prints 

Oesignated refund 
Exchange check - student loan 
Insurance 

Total operating expenses 

Designated Mission Work: 
Foreign Missions 
Home Missions 
Bible Colleges 
Foreign St udent Scholarship Fund 
Other disbursements for various 

missionary objectives 
Total designated mission work 

Total disbur sements 

Cash balance, ending 
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DECEMBER 31 

1988 1987 -

$ 3,832.08 
9.90 

1 , 278.10 
1 , 420.87 

66,155.97 
13,931.19 
3,575.56 
2 , 840.60 
1 , 271.09 
6,242.40 
2, 173.49 
1, 321.18 
2,000 .00 

400.00 
13,178.53 

536.68 
4. 7 59.5 7 

100.02 
1,164.24 

140.00 
924.35 

1,686.64 
16.64 

279.44 

218.28 

1,357.74 
1 , 725.15 

2R,625.00 
349.22 
7413.70 

_ _ l..l..027 .09 
163,2P,9 . 72 

s2oq,539.23 
59,024.09 
12 , 341.92 
1. 119.00 

10,983 . 11 
293 ,007.35 

456,297.07 

$ 64,007.79 

$ R, 116.20 
272 . 61 

1,718.82 
3,280.09 

70,725 . 79 
14,138.33 
5,302.23 

1. 381.88 
6,242.40 
2. 108. 2 7 

740.70 

750.00 
11 ,055.16 

7 24 . 10 
1,422.15 

139.54 
1,377.29 

473.46 

179.26 
238.01 
90.00 

276.76 

lt 7. 00 
233.51 

1, 302.94 

32,7Ro.on 
'l.23.R6 
100.00 

3. 72 
2:!.00 

332.77 
4 36. 1 7 

--t66-,84-4:'o:: 

$173,915.131 
69,790.99 
10,629.57 

558.78 

8,947.27_ 
263,842.42 

430,686.44 

$ 77,724.31 

- -----lllillllllll 



MEt!ORIAL STUDENT LOA.'l FUND - --
STATE.'!E:-IT OF ASSETS ASD LTAIHLITIES 

DECE~1BE!l 31 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Loans receivable 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance 

CASH RECEIPTS fu'lD DISBURSEMENTS 

1988 

$43 ,028.7(} 
55,967.98 

$98,996.68 

$98 , 996.68 

'$48,970.86 
42,912.61 

_$91 , 833.47 

$91,833.47 

DECEt-1BER 31 

Cash balance, beginning 

RECEIPTS 

Contributions 
Student loans repaid 
Interest collected 

Total receipts 

Total to be accounted for 

DISBURSEMENTS 

Student loans 
Bad debt 
Adminstrative 
Miscellaneou'S 

expense 

Total disbursements 

Cash balance, ending 

EUNICE EDWARDS FUND 

STATEHE:-IT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

1988 

$48,970.86 

4,694.80 
2,596 .63 
_2~18 . 41 

10,209.84 

59,180.70 

15,652.00 

500.00 

16,152.00 

$43 , 028 .70 

1987 

$40 ,211. 06 

4,046.81 
5. 300. 18 
2,546.96 

11.893.9 5 

52,105.01 

2,625 . 00 
500.00 

9. 15 

3. 134. 15 

$48 ,970.86 

DECEMBER 31 

1988 1987 

ASSETS 

Cash $17 , 886.31 $ 9 , 870.24 
FUND BALANCE 

Fund balance ~17 , 886 . 31 $ 9,870.24 

The accompanyin~ notes are an inteAral part of this statement. 
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CASH RECEIPTS fu~D DISBURSEMENTS 

DECE.'1BER 31 

Cash balance, beginning 

RECEIPTS 

Contributions 
Interest income 

Total receipts 

Total to be accounted for 

DISBURSD1ENTS 

Promotions 

Cash balance, ending 

1988 

$ 9,870.24 

8 , 061.61 
4 71 . 46 

8 , 533 .07 

18,403.31 

517.00 

$17,886.31 

•;on:s "'0 THE FlXANCIAL STATE'-1F.NTS ----
DEC~Bf.R ~I 1988 

Note 1 

1987 

s 1, 239. 55 

8 , 630.69 

8 , 630 . 69 

9,870.24 

s 9,870.24 

In order to be more informative , T have changed the order of reporting 

certain funds . The Eunice Ed\~ards Fund is reported separately , as it 

stands on its own . National Student Fund has been assigned a new name 

to closer show its identity, Foreignt Student Scholarship Fund, and since 

the monies are designated therefore, I am reporting this fund with the rest 

of designated funds. 1 also reclassifed 1987 to correspond with the changes. 

EZRA JONES 

~~# 9..6k ~ .... ..,(4 .. / 

1161 "'URFREESBOAO AOAO 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE 37211 

February 1, 1989 

\~oman's National Auxiliary Convention 
National Assoication of Free Will Baptists 
Nashville, Tennessee 

I have examined the statements of assets and liabilities arising 
from cash transactions of the General Fund, the Memorial Student Loan 
Fund, and funice Edwards Fund of the Woman's National Auxiliary 
Convention of National Association of Free lUll Baptists as of 
December 31, 1988 and 1987, and the related statements of revenues 
collected and expenses paid for the periods then ended. ~zy exam-
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inations were made in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standar ds and, accordingly , included such tests of the accounting 
records and such other auditing procedures as I considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of cash 
receip t s and disbursements; consequently, the financial statements 
may not include certain assets , liabilities , revenues, and expenses. 
Accordingly , t he financial statements are not intended to present 
financial position and results of operations in conformity with 
generally accep t ed accounting principles . 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly the assets and liabilities arising from cash tranactions of 
the Woman's National Auxiliary Convention of National Association of 
Free Will Baptists during the periods ended December 31, 1988 and 1987, 
on the basis indicated in the preceding paragraph, which is consistent 
with tha t used in the preceding year . 

~I 

•.- L"" 1 

l 
•)tf. I I \ 1--

Gifts To Missions/ Missionary Objectives 
January 1, 1988-December 31, 1988 

Cash Gifts ............................................................. ... $401,091.08 

Foreign Missions .. . ................................................... 269,714.46 
Sent through WNAC ........................ $209,539.23 
Sent directly to department . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,175.23 

Home Missions ....................................................... 69,810.90 
Sent through WNAC ......................... 59,024.09 
Sent directly to department . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,786.81 

Bible Colleges ....................................................... . 
Memorial Student Loan Fund ................................... .. 
Other Gifts: ........................................................... . 

Foreign Student Scholarship.................. 870.00 
Retirement and Insurance .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 488.75 

12,341.92 
808.69 

12,264.10 

Missions Objectives ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,905.35 
Provision Closet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,271. 70 
National Project: Eunice Edwards Loan 

Fund for Churches Abroad ................................... . 
WNAC Operating Expense ....................................... . 

Co-Laborer Offering .......................... 12,500.39 
Emphasis Offering. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,317.31 

Non-Cash Gifts 

8,061.61 
24,817.70 

Provision Closet . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,352.03 

Total Cash and Non-Cash Gifts ..................................... $431,443.11 

126 

Top Ten Contributors To WNAC 

Co-Laborer Fund 
1. Arkansas 
2. Tennessee 
3. California 
4. North Carolina 
5. Maryland 
6. Missouri 
7. Mississippi 
8.· West Virginia 
9. Georgia 

10. Oklahoma 

1990 
Budget 

Emphasis Offering 
1. North Carolina 
2. Tennessee 
3. Arkansas 
4. Oklahoma 
5. South Carolina 
6. Missouri 
7. Alabama 
8. Georgia 
9. Ohio 

10. Maryland 

Estimated Income ......... $ 22,900.00 
CO-LABORER Fund · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·............. 4 000.00 
Convention Expense Gifts · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·.. 1, 000.00 
Convention Offering · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · , 200.00 
Delegate Fees .·············································:::::::::: 24,000.00 
Dues ......... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·.......... 2,000.00 
Interest Income · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 10 000.00 

. . . . . . . . . . , 
Literature Sales .··········································· 75 000.00 . . .. .. .. . .. . .. .. , 
Magazine Subscnptlons · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . . . . . . . 250.00 
Miscellaneous . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 200.00 
National Minutes .. · .. · .............. · .. · ...... · .... · .... · ...... ·.... 6 400.00 

.. . .. .. .. . , 
Retreat Fees .... ············································ 22 900.00 
WNAC Emphasis Offering ...... · ............ · .......... · .. ·...... 1' 500.00 

............... --=.!·~--
Travel ............ · .......... ·· ...... ·· ............ · .... · ........... $170,350.00 

Total Income ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

Estimated Expense ............ $ 74,100.00 
Salaries ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 16 550.00 
Employee Benefits .............. · .................... 5.7oo:oo .... · , 

Payroll Tax E~pense ........ ·................ 3,450.00 
Employee Retirement ···.······················ 7, 400.00 
Insurance-Health & Ltfe .................. · ' 

Insurance-General & Comp. .. ............................... .. 
Audit ........ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

....... 

Continuing Education · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·::: 
Convention Expense . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
Executive Committee Expense · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ::: 
Literature and Printing .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
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600.00 
2,000.00 
1,000.00 
5,000.00 
5,000.00 
3,000.00 



.. 
. . 

. ...
 ' 

" 
.....

. ~ ..
 "·

··-

._
.:.

 
-

-
·-
·
--

· 
, 

.-
-.

:-
=:

: 
.:;

_ 
·:-

::.
.:,

; ..
 ·:·.
-
-
~

-~
~
 •·
:.

=~
:.

.-
•· •

 ..:.
..:;:

::.
=::!

'T"'
-:-~

·:.1
...t

.:..
...·

·o
··

 .. ·
-·
wf

TT
·.

.-
..

--
-«

•·•
·~·

··•
·•=
~
.
-
~
~
-
~
~
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
•
 

'· 
-

-
-
-

-
··· .

. .
,
 
··

·-
· 

·--
--·-

...
....

 --.
. --

.. 
-
-
-

··--
·-
-
-

·-·
· .

. 
. 

. .
.

..
.
.
 . 

-
--

-·· 
--

·· .
... 

__
 

,
, 

-
--

-· 
··-

---
--

-· 
-

....
 

,.
_

..
_

 ..
. 
"
-
-
-
~

-..
 _

_ 
_.

._
 

••
 ..:

·:~
 

_
.,

 _
_

 ,,
 .

.
...

. 
··-

··
"
"
'"

 
·-

··
--

· 
-

-
-
·

· 
-

-
...

...
..

...
.

...
 7 

. .
 . 

--
·-

·.
 
-
· 
--

···
·--

· 
-­

-
·-·

-
·--

·. 
...

. 
-

" 
....

 ,. ... 
-·

-

W
N

A
C

 R
ec

ei
p

ts
 F

o
r 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

-D
ec

em
b

er
, 

19
88

 

B
ib

le
 

C
o-

la
bo

re
r 

E
m

ph
as

is
 

E
un

ic
e 

E
d.

 
S

ta
te

 
C

ol
le

ge
s 

F
un

d 
D

ue
s 

O
ff

er
in

g 
F

un
d 

A
la

ba
m

a 
A

ri
zo

na
 

A
rk

an
sa

s 
C

al
if

or
ni

a 
C

ol
or

ad
o 

Fl
or

id
a 

G
eo

rg
ia

 
H

aw
ai

i 
Id

ah
o 

$ 
42

.0
0 

22
4.

00
 

46
1.

00
 

Dl
in

oi
s 

50
.0

0 
In

di
an

a 
22

5.
00

 
Io

w
a 

K
an

sa
s 

K
en

tu
ck

y 
M

ar
yl

an
d 

M
ic

hi
ga

n 
M

is
si

ss
ip

pi
 

17
.5

0 
M

is
so

ur
i 

30
6.

70
 

N
eb

ra
sk

a 
N

ew
 M

ex
ic

o 
N

or
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a 
5,

37
3.

39
 

N
or

th
w

es
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
O

hi
o 

94
2.

90
 

O
kl

ah
om

a 
3,

21
1.

06
 

Pe
nn

sy
lv

an
ia

 
S

ou
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a 
T

en
ne

ss
ee

 
95

 1
.3

7 
T

ex
as

 
V

ir
gi

n 
Is

la
nd

s 
V

ir
gi

ni
a 

29
7.

00
 

W
es

t 
V

irg
in

ia
 

24
0.

00
 

C
on

ve
nt

io
n 

O
ff

er
in

g 
R

et
re

at
 

$ 
20

5.
90

 
$ 

11
0.

00
 

1,
83

5.
03

 
1.

50
0.

02
 

23
6.

47
 

48
0.

05
 

14
.9

3 

27
6.

49
 

28
8.

21
 

42
.6

3 
13

9.
25

 
82

3.
35

 
32

0.
00

 
55

9.
15

 
63

4.
71

 

1,
12

3.
73

 

26
9.

76
 

46
5.

27
 

29
5.

97
 

1,
81

7.
95

 
29

2.
55

 

26
8.

97
 

50
0.

00
 

82
2.

00
 

63
.0

0 
1,

49
2.

50
 

55
8.

00
 

52
.5

0 
29

8.
50

 

13
.5

0 

37
8.

00
 

17
4.

00
 

19
.5

0 
75

0
0

 
46

3.
00

 
13

8.
00

 
48

4.
50

 
49

9.
50

 
1,

23
0.

00
 

7.
50

 
34

.5
0 

2,
00

7.
00

 
58

.5
0 

62
8.

50
 

1,
86

7.
50

 
18

.0
0 

1,
02

1.
50

 
1,

19
5.

50
 

40
6.

50
 

15
.0

0 
43

3.
50

 
28

5.
00

 

$ 
67

0.
91

 

1,
32

8.
64

 
18

7.
18

 
20

.0
0 

16
2.

41
 

54
4.

83
 

85
.0

0 
99

.1
8 

80
.6

0 
16

0.
00

 
24

8.
00

 
17

0.
00

 
15

8.
45

 
86

1.
44

 

2,
88

7.
15

 
30

.0
0 

36
6.

39
 

1,
14

1.
55

 

1,
03

3.
78

 
1,

66
8.

98
 

17
5.

00
 

21
8.

25
 

19
.5

7 

T
ot

al
s 

$1
2,

34
1.

92
 

$1
2,

50
0.

39
 

$1
4,

74
0.

00
 

$1
2,

31
7.

31
 

$ 
29

3.
00

 

34
5.

00
 

1,
04

8.
31

 

15
.0

0 
12

8.
00

 
50

.0
0 

28
5.

00
 

13
5.

00
 

16
.0

0 

29
0.

00
 

41
8.

00
 

51
0.

84
 

1.
00

 
81

8.
96

 

90
.8

8 
73

0.
00

 

21
2.

00
 

66
0.

87
 

16
5.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

1,
74

8.
75

 

$8
,0

61
.6

1 

g 8 M
 .. 

r-..
. 

M
 

o
o

o
g

o
o

g
o

o
o

o
o

 o
 

o
o

o
 

o
o

 
o

o
o

o
o

 o
 

a
8·

8·
§

·o
o

8·
o

o
o

o
o

 o
. 

0 
o

o
 

o
o

o
o

o
 l

(
)
 

0 
l(

)
 
0 

0 
lf

)
 ~
 f

""
'-4

 
lO

 0
 

l(
)
 l

(
)
 

M
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

f
t
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

~
 

t-.
.. 

f""
'-4

 
~
 N

 
"
"
 

.-
c
 

M
 

M
 

0 t--
o. 

f""
'-4

 
. • . 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

~
 

• :
o

o
g

o
o

 
·
0

0
 

0
0

 

. • 

. • . 
. • 

. • • 
. • 

. 
. 

. 
. 

• • 

. • • . 

. • . . . ' . 
. 

: 8
·o

8·a
8· 

: 
: 

: 
: 

. 
0 

0 
. 

' 
. 

: 
lf

)
 (

'.
) 

0 
('.

) 
"
"
 

: 
: 

. 
. 

""' 
.. 

"' 
. 

. 
. • ' 

. ' 
. . • . 

. 
. 

. 
•.

-c
 

M
 

C
\1

 
•
•
 

: 
C

V
) 

: 
• 

• . 
• • 

. • . 
. • • 

• ' 

. • • 

. • 

. • 
• • 

• . . 
. 

. 
. 

. • 

. • 
. . . . 

. • 
• • • 

. • • • 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
' 

.. 
. 

. 
. 

. • 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

~ 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

a,
) 

• 
• 

• 
. 

• 
. 

~ 
• 

• 
t.

i)
 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

. • 

. . 
. • . 

. . . . . 

. • • 

. • 
,..

 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

-
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
t 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

Q
,) 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
t 

• 

0
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

t 
• 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

... 
.....

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
><

 
. 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

,..,. 
. 

. 
. 

t 
• 

• 

' 
t'

 
t 

' 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
...

...
 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

. • . • . • • 

w
-1

 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
.. 

(l
,)

 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

. 
. 

. 
. 

.. 
. 

.. 
E

 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
.. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
" 

. 
<

l
)
'
 
•
.
•
•
•
 

·c
. 
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
 

. 
c: 
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
 

·
·

·
·

·
·
·

· . • . . • • 
. • . • . • . • . • . 

. -
. 

. 
.. 

.. 
. 

. 
'"

' 
. -

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

N
 

• 
. 

, 
• 

. 
• 

"'
' 

::
l 

. 
• 

. 
. 

• 
. 

. 
• 

. 
. 

. 
... 

. 
·
(
}
)
~
 

.
.
.

. 
" 
.
.
.
 

t'I
J 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

.:..
= 

v 
• 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

0
')

 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
0

.'
'1

 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

. 
. 

"""
" 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
..

..
..

 
• 

• 
. 

• 
• 

Q
) 

. 
• 

• 
'"

" 
.. 

• 
• 

tl
) 

• 
• 

0
. 

. 
. 

. 
'"

' 
. 

-
. 

. 
. 

. 
~
 

• 
~"J

. 
• 

• 
• 

v,
 

. 
~ 

. 
. 

. 
. 

.c:
. 

: 
. 

: 
cv 

: 
. 

::I
 '

-'
0

 
• 

. 
• 

-
. 

'"
 

• 
. 

"
' 

Q
) 

• 
(/)

 
• 

.:..
:= 

1 
• 

f 
1

"\
 

• 
• 

• 
U

 
• 

V
I
 

• 
• 

'I
' 

1
/)

 
,....

. 
. 

-
. 

c.
 

. 
. v

, 
IJ) 

. 
. 

. 
I1J

 
• 

Q
) 

• 
• 

(/
) 

..
..

. 
..

J
 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

}
..

, 
• 

,.
..

..
 

• 
c:: 

c:: 
L1

J 
: 

0 
. 

c.
 

. 
: 

0
1

.9
l 

: 
: 

: 
-

1
/)

 
..

..
..

. 
: 

1
/)

 
Q

) 
Q

) 
a::

 
: 

(l
) 

: 
=' 

: .
....

. S
 0

. 
: 

: 
: 

s::
 

c 
~o.o 

: 
g 

o.
 

o.
 

0 
; 
~ 

. (
/) 

. 
C

 
~
 0

. 
. 

. 
C

 
0 

.Q
 J

2 
: 

CV
 

X
 

X
 

0
1

=
 
8' 

0
')

 
~
 Q

) 
~ 

:J
 

: 
: 

0 
u 

E.
 

. 
c: 

LL
J 

LL
J 

0
)
 
c 

Q
) 
·
-

c 
t'I

J 
cr:

 ~
 (J

) 
: 

Q
) 

·.;
:;

 
1

\
\ 
·
-
~ 

: 
t'IJ

 
-

-
:5 

·-
u 

....
. ·

-
-

0
) 

0 
""

 
lo

.o
 

...
.. 

-
~ 

~ 
~
 (

/) 
c 

:--;
; 

IJ) 
Q

) 
Q

) 
cv 

<l
.l 
~ 

E
 .u

 u
 .:

.=
 <

iJ 
<i

J 
Q

) 
..

..
. 

' 
~ 

·-
•t

: 
'"

 
0 

u 
u 

u 
c 

....
. 

5 
tl>

 
0

. 
>

 u
 

-
0 

O
~~

~:
:E

~~
~~

O~
r>

o~
o.

o~
o.

~I
J)

-~
 

.c:
. 

-
-
-

..c
 0

 
}..

, 
Q

) 
::3

 
:J

 
}..

, 
·-

Q
) 

u 
oo

o~
~~

(/
)C

f)
Cf

)~
~a

::
: 

--
·· 

·-..
... 
-·

 

. • 

---
·-···

···-
-

-
--

-
-

·-
·

-
-

...
..

 : •
• -:

::'
:"

':=
.._

 
-
~
-

--
-

· 
···

·-
-·

-
-
-

...
 F

or
ei

gn
 

S
tu

. 
S

ch
ol

. 

$ 

60
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

25
.0

0 

30
.0

0 

30
.0

0 

20
.0

0 

5.
00

 

21
9.

00
 

32
1.

00
 

12
5.

00
 

20
.0

0 

$8
70

.0
0 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 

F
or

ei
gn

 
H

om
e 

R
et

ir
em

en
t 

&
 

M
is

si
on

s 
C

lo
se

t 
M

is
si

on
s 

M
is

si
on

s 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s 

$ 
10

.0
0 

$ 
7,

11
6.

59
 

$ 
6,

95
4.

77
 

10
5.

00
 

90
.0

0 
26

,3
48

.9
2 

93
4.

50
 

10
,5

16
.7

7 
75

.0
0 

3,
87

1.
23

 
85

.0
0 

8,
24

3.
33

 

60
.0

0 
57

.0
0 

48
.0

0 

17
7.

52
 

15
2.

50
 

23
8.

57
 

96
0.

36
 

18
2.

50
 

30
.0

0 
10

0.
0

0
 

14
5.

75
 

14
0.

00
 

7,
18

5.
69

 
43

8.
45

 
44

1.
00

 
1,

37
4.

11
 

5,
71

2.
85

 
1,

25
5.

10
 

3,
18

1.
00

 
7,

09
0.

70
 

25
,4

19
.2

6 
43

.0
0 

11
5.

00
 

26
,6

48
.5

9 
58

0.
62

 
9,

60
7.

32
 

18
,5

53
.9

5 
27

0.
00

 
14

.7
89

.7
0 

8,
76

9.
47

 
7,

30
0.

40
 

5,
67

0.
15

 
4,

78
5.

78
 

5,
91

4.
55

 
1,

52
2.

21
 

85
.0

0 
1,

93
0.

89
 

1,
83

4.
34

 

2,
15

1.
64

 
37

0.
00

 

38
7.

81
 

3,
72

0.
21

 
47

0.
75

 
1,

56
7.

50
 

89
1.

10
 

2,
23

7.
41

 

50
.0

0 
7,

63
4.

22
 

34
1.

63
 

1,
78

1.
42

 
7,

93
1.

48
 

1,
01

2.
57

 
6,

96
4.

21
 

31
7.

89
 

1,
65

2.
99

 
43

5.
00

 

3,
89

0.
25

 
86

4.
50

 

$3
,2

71
.1

6 
$2

09
,5

39
.2

3 
$5

9,
02

4.
09

 

$ 
20

.0
0 

$ 
68

6.
50

 

10
.0

0 

11
5.

00
 

19
9.

34
 

14
0.

00
 

33
0.

00
 

25
.0

0 

25
.0

0 
2,

02
3.

50
 

1,
17

5.
09

 

11
0.

00
 

66
0.

00
 

51
.7

5 
48

7.
76

 
2,

18
7.

54
 

50
.0

0 
91

6.
46

 
1,

04
1.

41
 

19
7.

00
 

29
.5

0 

35
.0

0 
17

7.
00

 
70

1.
25

 

$4
88

.7
5 

$1
0,

90
5.

35
 

··-
-

. 
-

-·
-·

 
. -

...
...

..
. . 

S
tu

de
nt

 
lo

an
 

T
ot

al
s 

$1
00

.0
0 

$ 
16

,9
21

.6
7 

27
8.

00
 

15
2.

00
 

37
,7

90
.6

4 
16

,2
91

.9
9 

23
2.

50
 

6,
65

4.
50

 
11

,9
75

.8
9 

78
.4

3 
14

0.
00

 
10

,6
11

.8
2 

1,
78

6.
84

 
46

0.
50

 
),

97
6.

15
 

10
,5

55
.3

1 
3,

25
0.

20
 

5,
75

3.
00

 
11

.6
82

.9
0 

11
7.

64
 

32
,5

41
.0

9 
50

.5
0 

20
0.

50
 

17
0.

50
 

47
,6

11
.0

6 
1,

03
0.

75
 

47
.0

0 
14

,4
26

.1
8 

36
,3

31
.9

2 
28

8.
00

 
20

,5
11

.3
4 

22
1.

55
 

23
,7

94
.8

1 
9,

03
8.

84
 

11
5.

00
 

9,
01

8.
61

 
6,

96
6.

60
 

1,
74

8.
75

 
4,

75
4.

75
 

$8
08

.6
9

 
$3

44
,8

69
.0

4 

0
0

 
N

 
~
 0

'\
 

N
 
~
 

··-
.. ·

-·
 ··

--
--



COMMISSION FOR THEOLOGICAL INTEGRITY 
REPORT 

The purpose of this Commission is: 1) To alert our people of theological 
trends that could threaten our theological integrity as a denomination, 
2) To prepare materials that will contribute to the continued preservation 
of the theological integrity of the denomination, and 3) As the need and 
opportunity arise, to conduct seminars on subjects which are pertinent to 
the purpose of this Commission. 

In keeping with our purpose, we have prepared materials on current 
concerns and have made them available to our people for a modest cost. 

This year we have a new booklet on the Charismatic movement availa­
ble. It was prepared by Reverend Harrold Harrison and Reverend Leroy 
Forlines. 

We believe that the denomination has benefited significantly over the 
years from the contribution made by the Commission for Theological 
Integrity. However, we think that this benefit would be increased signifi­
cantly if we could have a broader distribution of our material among our 
people. If you have any suggestions on how we can more effectively minis­
ter to the needs of our people, please let us know. 

The Commission will conduct seminars on subjects of concern. If you 
would like to have a seminar conducted in your area, please contact our 
secretary, Reverend Fred Hall , 210 South lOth Street, Nashville, Tennes­
see 37206. 

Financial Report 
Balance in Bank, JanuarJ 1, 1988 ............................... .. ..... $4,932.58 

Income: 
Gifts: 

Alabama ........................................... $ 
Arkansas ......................................... . 
Arizona . . ........................... 0 •••••••••••••• 

California ......................................... . 
Delaware . .......... 0 •••••••••• 0 ••••••• 0 ••••••••••• 

Florida .. 0 •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Georgia 0 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Idaho .............................. 0 •••••••••••••••• 

Illinois .. 0 ••••••• 0 ••• 0 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Indiana ..... 0 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Kansas ..... . ... . ..................... 0 ••••••••••••• 

Kentucky ......................................... . 
Maryland ................ 0 ••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Michigan ...... . 0. 0 • ••••••••••••••••••••• •• ••••••••• 

Mississippi . ... ..... ............................... . 
M

. 0 

ISSOUrl ........................................... . 

North Carolina ................... .. ............. . 
New Mexico . 0 •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 
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36.69 
228.66 

5.43 
66.06 
13.48 

102.87 
70.11 
2.69 

55.34 
135.88 

3.91 
4.52 

25.29 
68.81 
19.93 

432.18 
52.14 

.10 

120.15 ........... Ohio .... ... ........................ 0 • • • • • 381.04 
•• 0 •••••••• Oklahoma .. 0 .. 0 ............ 0........... 99.65 
0 •• 0 ••••• 0 • Tennessee ............. 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 27.83 
•••• 0 0 ••••• Texas .............. 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 9.16 

Virginia ....... 0 ••••••••••• 0 • 0 ••••••••••••••• 0.. • • • • • .89 
Washington (Northwest) ...................... · 

9
1.87 

West Virginia ........ 0 .•..................... 0.... 2.35 
Canada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,05 7.03 

Total Gifts . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 363.21 
Sales of Literature. .... . ............................ 50 00 
Refund on Nat'l. Assn. Booth Expense .... . ... 128:86 2,599.10 
Interest on Bank Account . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... $7,531.68 

Total Income and Balance ...................................... .. . 

Expenditures: $ 512.15 
Office Expense ...... 0 .......... 0.................... 29.17 
Shipping Literature Expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200.00 
Salary/ Bookkeeping ................................ 2 699.72 
Printing Literature .. . 00 •••••••••••• 00 •••••• 0 • • • • • • • • 1, 018.70 
Nat'l. Assn. Booth Expense ...................... , 525.14 
Annual Meeting Expense ..... ·:.................. 675.00 
Writer's Expense for Manuscnpt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 576.48 
Mailing Expense .... 0 ••• 0 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Refunds {for materials ordered that are no 28.94 
longer in print) . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200.00 

Nat'l. Assoc. Seminar Speakers Expense . . . . . 6 465.30 
0 0 0 0 0. 0 ° 

0 ·----~' --------Total Expenditures .............................................. . 

B l 
. B k December 31 1988 ..................... .. . . 

a ance m an , ' 

Leroy Forlines, Chairman 
Dari Goodfellow, Bookkeeper 

1990 
Recommended Budget 

Anticipated Income 
Gifts from the Cooperative Program 
Sale of literature . 
Interest on bank deposit 

Total Anticipated Income 

Anticipated Expenditures 

Office expense 
Shipping material~ 
Bookkeeping servtces 
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0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0$1 ,066.38 

$ 2,200.00 
400.00 
100.00 

$ 2,700.00 

$ 175.00 
75.00 

200.00 



National Convention Booth 
Annual Meeting expense 
Seminar expense 
Printing costs 
Writer's honoraria 

Total Anticipated Expenditures 

soo.oo 
700.00 
200.00 
600.00 
250.00 

$ 2,700.00 

RADIO AND TELEVISION COMMISSION REPORT 

The Free Will Baptist Radio and Television Commission has been 
charged to use the media to win the lost and strengthen the saved. We are 
also to encourage active involvement in Free Will Baptist churches. 

To fulfill this responsibility, the Commission has, for the past three 
years, produced a IS-minute radio broadcast. Rev. Bob Shockey is the 
speaker for this weekly outreach entitled "Victorious Faith." 

The Commission pays production costs for "Victorious Faith." Local 
c hurches buy air time. Write for information about airing this program in 
your community. 

We are currently exploring the possibility of producing radio spots for 
use on stations across the country. This format has been used effectively 
by other groups. 

The Radio and Television Commission has no building. We have no full­
time employees. The only funds we have are those donated by Free Will 
Baptists. 

Quite frankly, the amount of support we receive at this time is not suffi­
cient to allow us to develop a well-rounded media ministry. Still, we are 
committed to using the media to spread the Gospel. If we are to accom­
plish this goal, we must have your help. 

Pastors, please consider including us in your church budget. Put "Vic­
torious Faith" on the air in your community. Encourage your district and 
state associations to support this worthy cause. 

Larry D. Hampton 
Chairman 

Financial Report 
Report ending December 31, 1988 

Total Projected Income 1988 .......................................... $11,980.00 

Projected Monthly Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 998.33 

Actual Year-to-Date Income ........................................... 3,289.73 

Income: 

Co-op . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,184.62 
Designated ..... ... . .. ... . ............. .. ... $979.60 
Undesignated .. . ... .. .. . ......... .. ...... $1,169.60 
National Ministries Sunday ................ 35.42 
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•• 0 ••• 0 ••• 0 • 0 
0 0 • 0 0 •••• 

GiftS.-······································::: ...................... . 
teres t Earned ......................... . 

In (Added to Savings Account) ....... . 
• 0 • 0 ••• 0 0 ......... Total Income ..................... .. . . . . . . 

Ex~nses: ................. . ...... 
• 0 ••••• 0 •••• 

Promotion .. ····················· . . . . . . . .. · · · 
••••••• 0 •••• 

Board Expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .................... . 
Bookkeeping · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · :: : .................. . · · · 
Other Help .... ····· · ··· · ··· · ··············· .......... . 

•••••• 0 0 • 

P Oductl.on Costs .. . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · r . 0 •••••• 0 ••••• ......... 
Supplies ...... ······························· . .. ......... . 

0 •••••••• 

Postage . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ......... · · · · · · 
Equipment & Maintenance ..................................... . 
Telephone ..... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ....... . 

•••••••••• 0 

•••••••••• 0 

Printing ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . . . . ... · · · · 
National ConvJntio$~SO. ·t·~ · ~~~~k~; · (~·; ·~~~~~~es) 

(lnclu es ................ . 
Broadcast Air-time · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : :: : : : ................ . 
Miscellaneous· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. 

••• 0 ••••••• 0 0 
• 0 ••••• Total Expenses · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 

945.65 
159.46 

$ 3,289.73 

$ 195.14 
200.00 
150.00 
775.00 
155.13 
810.00 
114.00 

186.77 
681.04 

72.00 

$ 3,339.08 

............ $ 
Balance on January 1, 1988 .... · .. · ...... · ...... · .. ::::::: .......... .. 

982.01 
3,130.27 

3,339.08 
Income .... · · · (d~~~ ~~i i~~i~d~ ;~;~;~~;j · ·... . ......... .. ... . 

0 •••• 0 ••• 
• • • • • 0 ••• 

Expenses .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .. . ....... $ 
0 ••••••• 0 

Ending Balance · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
............. . . . . . . . . . 773.20 

1990 Budget 
- 0 •••••• 

0 ••••••••••••• 

Promotion .... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ............... · 
Commission Travel Expense ................................... . 
Part time work · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........... ::::: .$zoo.oo 

Bookkeeper · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 200.00 
Other ..... .................................. . 

• ••• 0 •• 0 • 0 • 

Production costs ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·::::::: .......... . 
Supplies ... · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · : :: : : : :: .............. · · · · 
Postage .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · .......... · · · · · · 
E ui ment & Maintenance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............. . q p ...... 
Telephone .. . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........ . 

••• 0 ••••• 

Printing .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . · . . . . . ..... · · · · · · 
National Convention· ···············:::::::: $iso.oo 

Booth .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 150.00 
Digest .. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · . 200.00 
Materials ... .. ······························· .......... . 

Broadcast Air Time · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 
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$ 2,000.00 
500.00 
400.00 

1,800.00 
500.00 

1,000.00 
500.00 
250.00 
600.00 
500.00 

7,000.00 

$15,050.00 



HISTORICAL COMMISSION REPORT 

Under Robert Picirilli's supervision, the Commission published an 
updated index of Free Will Baptist minutes in the Historical Collec­
tion. The index is available at the national convention. 

The Commission continues to make available copies of the 50-
Year Record which was published in 1988. Copies were shipped to 
each local church through state promotional offices. We are now 
selling the remaining 700 copies for $2.00 each. 

During the 1988 convention, the National Association referred a 
resolution to the Commission concerning the First Free Will Baptist 
Church in New Durham, New Hampshire. After consultation with 
Pastor James Nason, the Commission authorized $1,500 in building 
r~pairs and up to $1,000 in cemetery maintenance and highway 
stgns. 

1988 
Financial Report 

Balance on hand, January 1, 1988 .............................. $11,462.63 

Income: 

Gifts (Co-op, designated & undesignated) .... $1,936.07 
Interest (Savings, First Amer. Bank) . . . . . . . . . . 542.23 
Royalties (Randall House) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .50 
Sales, The 50-Year Record . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 246.00 
Special Ministries Offerings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.42 

Expenditures: 

Books for Historical Collection .................. $ 73.00 
Executive Office, Digest Fees .................... 217.37 
The 50-Year Record, printing & mailing ..... 4,629.87 

2,760.22 

4,920.24 

Balance on hand, December 31, 1988 ........................... $9,302.61 
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• • 
Historical Commtsston 

1990 Budget 

Inc~~ (Designated CU:d Coop Plan) 
Interest (First Amencan Bank) 
Royalties (Randall House) 
Sales (The 50-Year Record) 

Total 

Ex~~;~: and Material_for Historical Collection 
Executive Office (Dt.gest fees) 
Other historical proJects 

Total 
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$1,400.00 
300.00 
100.00 
200.00 

$2,000.00 

$1,200.00 
200.00 
600.00 

$2,900.00 



GENERAL BOARD REPORT 

The General Board met Monday, July 17, 1989, in the Ybor Room of 
Curtis Hixon Convention Center, Tampa, Florida. As a result of this 
meeting, we offer the following report and recommendations: 

1. We have heard the reports of the Executive Office, Foreign Missions 
Department, Free Will Baptist Bible College, Sunday School and 
Church Training Department, Home Missions Department, Master's 
Men Department, Retirement Department, Free Will Baptist Founda­
tion, Commission for Theological Integrity, Radio-TV Commission, 
Music Commission, Historical Commission, Budget Committee, 
Benevolent Committee and Target 90 Committee. We recommend 
that these reports be received and their budgets adopted as each is 
presented. 

2. The Board of Trustees of the Free Will Baptist Foundation are pre­
senting recommendations to amend the Charter of Incorporation of 
the Foundation and two recommended changes in the By-Laws of the 
National Association. The General Board recommends the adoption of 
these proposed amendments. 

3. The General Board recommends that Article 5, Section 3 (p. 74, 
Treatise) of the constitution be amended by insertion. Following the 
words "Not more than one elective member shall serve from any 
state," the recommendation is that these words be inserted, "No Exec­
utive Committee member shall serve more than two successive 
terms." 

4. We recommend that all ordained deacons be recognized as standing 
delegates at the National Association of Free Will Baptists (Insert 
"deacons" after"ministers," p. 73 Treatise) 

5. The General Board recommends the adoption of the following recom­
mendation which comes from the Sunday School and Church Training 
Board. It reads, "That a change in the NYC dress code be allowed. 
The change involves Section 1, Point B, Item 1, from'Boys and men 
are to wear coats and slacks' to 'Boys and men are to wear a shirt, tie, 
and slacks (coats are optional).' " 

6. There is a possibility that the work of Executive Church Bonds, Inc. 
can be phased out by December 31, 1989. The General Board recom­
mends that Executive Church Bonds, Inc. be dissolved as soon as is 
feasible, and that the funds in this treasury be transferred to the 
special projects fund to service any programs that might be remaining. 
A budget for operating another year is included in case dissolving the 
operation is not possible. 
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d the adoption of the following item. 
7 We recommen . . 

. . Offi nd Foreign MiSSions 
d of Executive ce a . T f ga-

The committee, compo~e h ized to study the feasibilty o o~ 
Department repre~entatlves a'-!t fo~/Fellowship of Free Will Bap~sts, 
nizing an Interna~io~al AssoJia iO d offers the following recommen a­
concluded its prehmmary stu Y an 

tions: F Will 
. l) from each field where re~ . 

A That a representative (~atl~:m~ th 1992 National Convention m 
. Baptists have a work be mvite tf th: National Association of Free 

Indianapolis, Indiana as guests o 
Will Baptists, Inc. d 

. to underwrite the travel, lodging, meals an 
B. That funds be raised f these representatives. 

other necessary expenses or . 

. . e artment be authorized to provide 
C That the Foreign MiSSions D p . t 

. interpreters and coordinate the pro)eC . . 

tatives meet for consultation m Nash-
D. That these national represe~he feasibility of organizing an Interna-

ville, Tenne~se.e to/Fe~plo~~ip of Free Will Baptists. 
tional Assocmtion e ow 

d t se these repre-. C mmittee be encourage o u 
E. That the Execut~ve l o th 1992 convention program. 

sentatives when it P ans e . 
. C ission be authonzed to 

We recommend that the ~is~oncal ro o~:e recognition. of d.ecease~ 
8. develop a proce~u~e for. provid;Io~p~re~rving this histoncal mforma 

ministers and miSSlonanes, an 

tion. · be 
(19912000) growth campaign 

9 We recommend that. a ~en-year owt-h committee composed .of a 
. l hed under the direction o~ a groff· WNAC and each national 

aunc . f the Executive lCe, din t the cam-
representative !om . ·n be authorized to coor a e 
department. This committee Wl 

pa1gn. . f r the July 18-22, 

W mmend that Atlanta, Georgia be the Slte o 
10. e reco . 

1999 National Convention. 
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. REGISTRATION COMMITTEE REPORT 
National Convention 

Ministers 
State Delegates 
Local Church Delegates 
Lay Board Members 
Home Missionaries 
Foreign Missionaries 
Non-Delegates 

703 
96 

134 
8 

62 
27 

2,324 

W
National Youth Conference 

oman' N · 
s atJOnal Auxiliary Convention 
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Total 3,354 

1,380 
973 

Grand Total 5, 707 

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT 

We, the Credentials Committee, have examined the letters and find them 
in order as stated below. 

1. From the following state associations with the right to five delegates 
each: 
Alabama, Arkansas, Arizona, California, Georgia, Illinois, Kentucky, 
Maryland, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, Florida, Indiana, New Mex­
ico, Kansas, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennes­
see, Texas, Virginia, West Virginia. 

2. From the following district associations with the right to three delegates 
each: 
Atlantic-Canada Association, First Colorado District Association, 
Northeast Association, Northwest Association, Mexico Association. 

3. From the following local churches reporting directly to this body with 
the right to one delegate each: 
Virgin Islands FWB Church; Waipahu FWB Church, Hawaii; Marana­
tha FWB Church, Omaha, Nebraska; Capitol FWB Church, Lincoln, 
Nebraska; First FWB Church, Billings, Montana; Victory FWB Church, 
Pineville, Louisiana. 

4. We recommend that the delegates from the three above mentioned 
categories be seated. We further recommend that all other delegates 
properly registered from local churches comprising the above associa­
tions be seated. 

5. We recommend that all legally appointed lay delegates of standing 
boards be seated, if properly registered. 

Report of the Nominating Committee 

General Board Members 
Terms to expire in 1990 

Northwest Association: replacing Mike Mutchler, Mike Criswell 
South Carolina: replacing Earl Hendrix, Joe Cagle 
Texas: replacing Ron Parker, Thurmon Murphy 

Terms to expire in 1991 
Alabama: replacing John Edwards, John Edwards 
Arizona: replacing Mark Vandivort, Paul Thompson 
Arkansas: replacing David Joslin, David Joslin 
Atlantic-Canada: replacing Fred Hanson, Oral McAffee 
California: replacing Do ice McAlister, Do ice McAlister 
Colorado: replacing Bob Thomas, Bob Thomas 

139 



Florida: replacing Robert Owen, Robert Owen 
Georgia: replacing Herbert Waid, Herbert Waid 
Idaho: replacing Tommie Carlson, Tommie Carlson 
lllinois: replacing Wallace Malone, Wallace Malone 
Indiana: replacing Archie Ratliff, Archie Ratliff 
Kansas: replacing Warner Collier, Warner Collier 
Kentucky: replacing Edgar VanHoose, Edgar VanHoose 
Maryland: replacing Lester Horton, Lester Horton 
Mexico: replacing Fred Jones, Fred Jones 
Michigan: replacing Charles Cooper, Charles Cooper 
Mississippi: replacing J .L. Gore, J.L. Gore 
Missouri: replacing Dale Skiles, Dale Skiles 

Executive Committee 

Terms to expire I99I 
Replacing Dale Skiles (Mo.), Charles Cooper (Mich.) 
Replacing David Joslin (Ark.), J.L. Gore (Miss.) 
Replacing Doice McAlister (Calif.), Bob Thomas (Colo.) 

Nominees to Home Miss ions Board 

Terms to expire in I 995 
Replacing Gordon Sebastian (N.C.), J.D. Norris (Fla.) 
Replacing James Puckett (Okla.), Fred Hanson (Atl.-Canada) 
Replacing Nathan Ruble (Mo.), Earl Hendrix (S.C.) 

Nominees to Master's Men Board 

Term to expire I99I 
Replacing Paul Moore (Ill.), Thumon Pate, Jr. (Tenn.) 

Terms to expire I 995 
Replacing Paul Kennedy (Calif.), Johnny Fowlkes (Ark.) 
Replacing James Orr (Ky.), James Orr 
Replacing Raymond Lee (N.C.), Waymon Ray (Okla.) 

Nominees to Board of Retirement 

Terms to expire I995 
Replacing Jack Daniel (Ga.), Jack Daniel 
Replacing Robert Picirilli (Tenn.), Waymon Fields (Ala.) 
Replacing Wilburn Beasley (S.C.), Wilburn Beasley 

Nominee to Sunday School and Church Training Board 

Term to expire I990 
Replacing Malcolm Fry (N.C.), Larry Hughes (Ark.) 
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. . f r Theological Integrity . e to ComDUsston o No DUne 

Term to. exLpirCe J!~!on (Tenn.), L.C. Johnson 
Replacmg · · • • 

. to Radio-Television Commtsston NoDUnee 

Term to. expire 199: ce (Tenn.), James Vallance 
Replacmg James Va an 

• • . to Music Commtsston NoDUnee 

Term to expi~e 1994h (N C) Blaine Hughes 
Replacing Blame Hug es . . ' 

• • . n· torical CommtSSIOD Nommee to ts 

. 1994 ... lli Term to expue p· . "lr (T enn ) Robert P1cm 
Replacing Robert lClfl 1 . ' 

General Officers H t n (Tenn.), Ralph Hampton . 
Moderator: replacing Ral)h. amc!ar~ Cheshier (Ark.), Carl Cheshler 
Assistant Moderator: rep acmg (Okla) Waldo Young 
Clerk: replacing Waldo. Yo~n~h Burd~n (Okla.), Keith Burden 
Assistant Clerk: replacmg el 
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Resolutions Committee Report 

Res olution #I Apprec iation 

Whereas, the Florida State Association of Free Will Baptists has so 
graciously hosted our 53rd annual convention, therefore, 

Be it resolved that we express our appreciation to them with a standing 
vote of thanks. 

Resolution #2 Submitting Resolutions 

Whereas, resolutions should receive careful considerations by the Reso­
lutions Committee, and, 

Whereas, it would be a great benefit to the Resolutions Committee to 
be able to meet as early and as long as in necessary on Tuesday to give 
adequate consideration to all resolutions, 

Be it resolved that we request that those who wish to submit resolutions 
either mail them in ahead of time to the Executive Office, or submit them 
by Monday night of the week the convention meets. 

Resolution #3 Honesty 

Whereas we as Free Will Baptists still believe in old-fashioned biblical 
honesty and that the Ten Commandments are the expression of God's 
holy nature and His standard of conduct for mankind and especially His 
people, 

Be it resolved: 
That we, as a part of the Body of Christ, still believe that lying is a 

violation of the ninth commandment and is therefore sin, and that to 
solicit funds under the guise of starting a Free Will Baptist church 
and then to use those funds to start a non-Free Will Baptist church is 
willful deceit or lying which violates this commandment. 

That we, as a part of the Body of Christ still believe that stealing is 
a violation of the eighth commandment and is therefore sin, and that 
to knowingly and willfully take unauthorized money and to disperse it 
in violation of contractual agreements is still stealing and violates this 
commandment making the guilty party a thief. 

That we, as the National Association of Free Will Baptists, go on 
record supporting our national Home Missions Department in their 
moves to protect Free Will Baptist investments and to ascertain that 
future investments are protected. 

Resolution #4 Unaffiliated Free Will Baptists 

Whereas, we believe that under God our beloved predecessors were by 
Divine Providence directed to call together a group of people to form the 
National Association of Free Will Baptists, to set in motion a movement 
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. hi for like-believers and an organization which 
which would provide fellows P nit for larger ministry' and 
could provide strength and oppo~u Y ect their labors of faith and l~ve by 

Whereas, we woul~ honor an u;:~~ the enriching of our .fell~wshlp an.d 
affirming our commitment to P . t . the evangehzahon of thls 

re h . of our efforts to assls m 
the strengt emng . 
generation for Jesus Chnst, a;:~ allowed issues to break and hinder our 

Whereas, we have too o S .. tin His work among us, and, 
fellowship and have limited thd. ~oly p~r~o be insignificant when compared 

Whereas, v:e confess t~~~ ;ndr~~~~mportanc~ of involving all our Free 
to the eno~lty ~f our b. tive of evangehsm, and, . 
Will Baptists m thls common o .Jec h ulmination and climax of our F1Ve 

Whereas we will be observmg. t e c. . 1990 
' t · Ph emx Anzona m , a1 

Year Plan when we mee ~n o , Executive Committee of the Gener 
Be it resolved that we mstru_ct .our of Free Will Baptists to extend an 

Board of the Natio~~ Assoclahon f Free Will Baptist churches and ~he 
invitation to ~ll unaffihaWt~dll Bgro~p~s ~o send representatives to our meetmg 
United Amencan Free l ap lS 
in Phoenix, Ariz., July 15-19, 19~. E tive Committee designate a da.y 

Be it further resolved that e fxecu . ·tual awakening in Free Wlll 
f f d prayer or a spm 

each month for as mg an . f 1990 convention. 
Baptist churches in preparation or our 
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TARGET 90 COMMITTEE REPORT 

The first three years of the Tar . 
Here are the statistical data for 1 §~.:.campaign yielded steady growth. 

Baptisms 
1986 198

7 1988 T 8,517 otaJ 
Members Added 12 0 

8,407 7,910 24,834 

Members Lost 7 ~3~~ 12,134 12,436 36 622 

The campaign's three-year, net 6,581 . 6,454 20:349 
~ams fell 6,227 short of the . members~tp goal was 22 500 A t I 
mcrease. campatgn goal With a 16 273 net ' . b c u~ 

A dd. · ' mem ersh1p 
n a thonal 103 Free Will Ba . ~~~rechyears of the campaign. Thi:~~~~;~;~hhesf_were started in the first es. e tve-year goal of 100 new 

The Target 90 Report a uart tors for the past two y~ars: erly newsletter, has been sent free to pas-

The Target 90 Committees ~st year's National Associati:n~ored ~Church Growth Seminar during 
_rowe, Cookeville, Tennessee· ~nJt~l t':"ood, Wabash, Indiana· David 

ma, shared church growth c , . audle Hames, Bakersfield Car£ 
sas City oncepts wtth several hund d ' . t or-. . re pastors m Kan-

Commlttee members m gr~th and devise plans to e~ti~~r~~;'~r!~~oughout the year to monitor 
e encourage every church . . er growth. 

largement Cam~igns sponsored t~ p~rtiCipate in the S~nd~y School En-
T aOrget 90 campaign is scheduled f~ ~~II House Pubhcahons. A special 

. ur goal of 50,000 new m r_ . . . . 
achieve this goal. Togeth embers IS shll Wlthm reach. T ogethe 

E 

. er we can grow for God' 1 r we can 
xec~t1ve Secretary s gory. 

Melvm Worthington Ch · , a1rman 
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MUSIC COMMISSION REPORT 
The 1988 session of the National Association of Free Will Baptists estab­

lished the Music Commission. Our goals are: 
(a) To preserve Free Will Baptist hymnody by guiding and developing 

creative hymn text and tune writing, evaluating regional demands 
for gospel music needs, encouraging creative congregational singing 
in our worship and evangelistic services, and enlisting congrega-

tions to use Free Will Baptist hymnals. 
(b) To promote Free Will Baptist hymnody by encouraging denomina-

tional songwriters and composers to publish and distribute their 

own materials. 
(c) To prepare Rejoice: The Free Will Baptist Hymn Book (1988) for 

publication as an independent book. 
(d) To publish and produce choral music and related recordings for use 

by choirs, youth groups and music ministries. 
(e) To publish music curriculum to meet the diverse demands identified 

with Free Will Baptist children, teens and adults. 
(f) To present music workshops/ seminars for the training of children, 

teens and adults in singing, playing of instruments, accompanying, 

choral conducting and worship leading. 
We have been given the responsibility of overseeing our new hymnbook. 

The sales have done quite well. We have sold over half our supply of books. 
It is proving to be a good tool for our denomination, and for the first time 
across ·our denomination, we are now using the same hymnbook. 

Because of the interest we are paying on the borrowed money, the price 
of the hymnbook has been raised to $9.98. If you find any musical or typo­
graphical errors in the book, please send them to the commission. 

' This year at the national convention, we are sponsoring a seminar on 
how to incorporate hymn singing into the worship service. 

In the fall or spring of 1990 we plan to sponsor a music conference to 
assist our churches in selection of music and direction of choirs. The con­
ference will have reading sessions, performances by children, youth and 

adult choirs and other performers. 
We would appreciate it if you would include us in your church budget 

this year. 
Bill Gardner, Chairman 
Rodney Whaley, Secretary-Treasurer 

Doug Little 
Vernon Whaley 
Blaine Hughes 

Treasurer's Report 
November 30, 1988 - April, 1989 

Receipts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 18.84 
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Board expense 1990 Budget 
Postage . . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... . . . . . . . $ 
Telephone ~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 200.00 

100.00 
300.00 National Co·~~~~tio. n. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ........ . ~ ~ ~ ~ · · · · · · · · · · 

Booth · · · · · · · · · · 

Materiai~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ..... . 
Speakers ~ ~ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ...... ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ · · · · · · · · · · · 

Music Confere. n. c. e. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·.. · · · . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

150.00 
100.00 
150.00 
500.00 

$1,500.00 

BENEVOLENT FUND FINANCI 
BENEVOLENT FUND OF AL STATEMENTS 

OF FREE WITHE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

Assets 

Cash m bank 

Liabililies and Fund Balance 

9.5~ note payable to bank 
Fund balance (deficit) 

Total liabilities and fund b I a ance 

Commitments (note 2) 

LL BAPTISTS 

Balance Sheets 

December 3 I • 1988 and 1987 

Statement of Revenue E • xpenses and 

Revenues - contnbultons 

Expenses: 

Claarns paad 

Interest expense 

Other expenses 

Total expeoses 

Excess of revenues over e xpenses 

Fund deficit, beginning of year 

Fund balance (deficit), eod of year 

Changes in Fund BaJance 

Years ended Dec be em r 3 1, 1988 and 1987 

See accompanying ootes to flllliJ)CiaJ state meats. 
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$ 

s 

s 

$ 

$ 

1988 

974 

974 

974 

22,080 

10,737 
2,179 

14 

12,930 

9,150 

(8, 176) 

974 

1987 

354 

8,530 
{8, I 76) 

354 

21,735 

I 2,425 
I ,732 

14, 157 

7,578 

( 15,754) 

(8, 176) 

Notes to foinancial Statements 

December 31. 1988 and 1987 

1 he J)ene,·olent fund 1S operated under the ;~us paces of the Notaonal Associataon of free Will Baptists. The purpose 
of the Fund IS to pay medacal claims wluch were defaulted on by an 1nsurance company whach had contracted to 

prov
1
de coverage to participants under the Free Will Bapll~t Hosp1tahutaon Plan in prior penods. Claims pa1d are 

to be funded by contnbutions. 

(I) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
·1 he mnjor occuunlln)! princtplcs onc.l practices followed by the Benevolent fund ore presented below lo n,s.-1 
the reader 1n evaluating. the financial statements. The financial statements are presented in accordance w11h 
standards recommended in • Audits of Certam Nonprofit Organizations, • an Audit and Accounting Gu1de 

(2) 

(American institute of Certified Public Accountants). 

fund Accounting 
In order to ensure observance of hmitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the 

Fund, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of "fund accounting" . This is the 
procedure by which resources for various purposes are class1fied for accounting and reporting purposes 1nto 

funds that are in accordance wath activities or objectives specified. 

Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from 1ncome taxes; accordmgly no provision for for income taxes has been made in the 

accompanying financial statements. 

Claims Unpaid 
The Benevolent Fund, since its inception, has pa1d med1cal cla1ms amounting to $40,707. Such cla1ms had 
beeo defaulted on by an insurance company wluch had contracted to prov1de coverage to participants under 
the Free Will Baptist Hospitaliz.ation Plan an prior periods. Claims are funded by voluntary contnbutions. As 

of December 31, 1988, $32,476 rem:nns unpaid on these medical claims. 
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BUDGET COMMit I EE REPORT 

. T~e National Association f . 
m this convention the foil C? Frbee Will Baptists Inc ha owmg udget for 1990~ . s approved 

Executive Office 
Executi~e Church. ·B~~d· · · · · · · · · ............... . 
Free. WIll Baptist Bible 2 . jj ................... . 
Foreign Missions o ege . .............. . 

(lncl~des $1so .. ocxi.ao· A.·· ..... ...... .... . . 
Home Missions and Ch hdvance Budget) 
Master's Men urc Extension . .... 
Retirement and .. I . ... .... ....... .. ....... .... . . nsura .. .. . 
Free Will Baptist Foun~~~i~ ... ..... ........ .. . . 
Sunday School and Ch n · · · ·: ·: .......... . 
Commission for Th u:ch Training ....... . 
Historical Co . ~ological Integrity .. . mmiSSIOn · .... . 
Mu~Ic Commission . . ........................ . 

Rad d T 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 IO an elevision C . : .. : .............. . 

$ 395,004.26 
6,650.00 

2,204,300.00 
3,517,152.00 

1, 900,000 0 00 
80,506.00 

249,316.00 
30,000.00 

2,603,935.00 
2,700.00 
2,000.00 
1,500.00 

15,050.00 Total om miSSIOn . .......... . 

All th · · $ll,008,113.26 
ese ministries rec . f 

for Executive Ch eive unds through the C 
Department whic~~~eBo~fs, and the Sunday Schoo"f~~~a~~e Plan except 

The Budget C . se ·susta1n1ng. urch T ra•ning 
Co . ommittee recomm d h 
basf:'rallve Plan be allocated to th~n n:ti~:~l gifts received through the mimstnes on the following 

1. ~nderwrite the Executive 0 . . . gl~ts received directly fflce Administration Budget b h 
2. D isburse the b I . a ove t ose 

. . . a ance of uncles· t d mlmstnes according to th Igna e funds to the follow· . 
Free w·n B . . ese percentages: mg national 

Foreign I Mis~f~~: Bible College ........................ 23o' 
Home M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . to 
Boa d f ISRSions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23% 

M 

r o etirement and ~~~~ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 189t 
aster's Men ranee ............ 

0 

Free Will B ·:·························· .......... 14% c . . apt•st Foundation .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 14% 
ommiSSIOn for Th I . . ............. . 

Historical c . eo Oglcal Integrity ... .. ............ · 6% 
Mu . C OJ?~ISSIOn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . O.So6 

R d
~IC OmmiSSIOn . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 so; 

a 
10 

d T . . . . . . . . ,
0 

an elevision Commi~~i·~·.................... . .. . . 0.5% 
Total n · · · · · · · · · ·... . . . . . . . . . O.S% 

100% 
Respectfully Submitted y S M 1 · W . ' our ervants 

e VIn orthington E . , 
Charles Thigpen p ' _xdecuhve Secretary 

• res1 ent of F w·1 ree I I Baptist Bible College 
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R. Eugene Waddell, General Director of Foreign Missions Department 
RoY Thomas, General Director of Horne Missions Department 
Herman Hersey , General Director of Retirement and Insurance Department 
James Vallance, General Director of Master's Men Department 
Roger Reeds, General Director of Sunday School and Church Training 

Department 

STEWARDSHIP MONTH REPORT 

Delegates at the 1988 National Convention charged the Budget Corn· 
rnittee with the responsibility of promoting September as Stewardship 
Month and the last Sunday in September as National Ministries Offering 

Sunday. Each church is encouraged to observe Stewardship Month annually. If 
another month is better for your church than September, that's fine. Fit it 
into your church calendar when it is best for you. Suggestions for ser· 
mons, teaching, and general promotion have been sent to each pastor. 

Every member of every Free Will Baptist church is urged to give $32.37 
as an offering on National Ministries Sunday. We arrived at this figure by 
dividing our total membership (204,382) into the total gift budgets of all 
national ministries ($6,616,622.36). It will give every Free Will Baptist an 
opportunity to give their proportionate share of the total budget in one 

This is not to take the place of Co-Op, faith promises or other regular offering. 
giving. The regular support of all ministries must continue and increase. 
This is an annual EXTRA gift. With our people rallying together, it will cut 
back or eventually eliminate the need for emergency appeals. 

You may choose any Sunday of the year as your National Ministries 
Sunday if the last Sunday in September is not convenient. Make your 
check payable to National Ministries Offering and mail to National Minis· 
tries Offering, P.O. Box 1088, Nashville, TN 37202. 

H erman L. H ersey 
Stewardship Month Coordinator 
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